




 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VI. Consent Agenda: 
A. Approval of minutes from February 11, 2013 

meeting 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 1 of 16  

Wilsonville City Hall 
29799 SW Town Center Loop East 
Wilsonville, Oregon 
 
Development Review Board – Panel A 
Minutes–EXCERPT Resolution No. 243 
February 11, 2013   6:30 PM 
 
I. Call to Order  
Acting Chair Lenka Keith called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
II. Chair’s Remarks 
The Conduct of Hearing and Statement of Public Notice were read into the record. 
 
III. Roll Call 
Present for roll call were:   Lenka Keith, Mary Fierros Bower, Simon Springall, Ken Ruud, and Jerry 

Greenfield. Councilor Liaison Susie Stevens arrived after Roll Call. 
 
Staff present:   Blaise Edmonds, Barbara Jacobson, Nancy Kraushaar, Michael Wheeler and Amanda 

Hoffman. 
 
New Development Review Board (DRB) Panel A members Ken Ruud, Jerry Greenfield and Simon 
Springall briefly described their reasons for joining the Board. 
 
Chair Keith noted Councilor Liaison Susie Stevens was not expected until after 7 p.m. 
 
IV. Citizens’ Input This is an opportunity for visitors to address the Development Review Board 
(DRB) on items not on the agenda. There were no comments. 
 
V. City Council Liaison Report 
This agenda item was addressed following the public hearing on Resolution No. 243. 
 
Councilor Stevens reported that on February 4, 2013, City Council:   
• Approved amendments to the Parking Ordinance to allow motor homes and trailers to park overnight 

on the street for one night, providing travelers extra time to unload their vehicles after returning from 
a trip.  

• Discussed numerous possible uses for the Visitor’s Information Center building located across from 
Goodwill during work session. Discussion about the issue would continue. 

• Approved the hiring of a consultant to work on ways to streamline Smart Transit operations in the 
city, including evaluating Dial-a-Ride routes and every aspect of the public transit system to make it 
more efficient. Prior to her joining the Council, state and federal grant money was awarded to the City 
for the Transit Integration Project, which was now ready to be implemented.   

• Awarded an engineering contract to Wallace Engineering to begin work on the rebuilding of the 
Memorial Park parking lot. The project is expected to come before one of the DRB panels for review.  

 
Councilor Stevens noted the next City Council meeting was scheduled for February 21, 2013. She 
welcomed the new DRB members. 
 
The Board continued to Public Hearing Item B. Resolution No. 244 at this time. 

 
VI. Election of 2013 Chair and Vice-Chair: 



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 2 of 16  

• Chair 
Simon Springall nominated Mary Fierros Bower for the 2013 DRB-Panel A Chair. Lenka Keith 
seconded the nomination. Mary Fierros Bower was unanimously elected as 2013 DRB-Panel A 
Chair. 

• Vice-Chair 
Mary Fierros Bower nominated Lenka Keith for the 2013 DRB-Panel A Vice-Chair.  Ken Ruud 
seconded the nomination. Lenka Keith was elected as the 2013 DRB-Panel A Vice-Chair by a 4 to 0 
to 1 vote with Lenka Keith abstaining. 
 
VII. Consent Agenda: 

A. Approval of minutes of November 15, 2012 meeting 
-Note:  Due to a lack of quorum to approve minutes from the November 15, 2012 minutes 
in the normal fashion, staff has attained signatures of approval from all attendees.   The 
board is asked to recognize those signatures as valid and therefore adopt those minutes as 
approved 

 
Simon Springall moved to adopt the November 15, 2012 DRB-B minutes as approved.  Mary 
Fierros Bower seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
VIII. Public Hearings: 

A. Resolution No. 243.   Wilsonville Family Fun Center:  Ben Altman, SFA Design Group 
– representative for Wilsonville Land Partnership and Darren Harmon, Wilsonville 
Family Fun Center – Owner and Applicant.  The applicant is requesting approval a 
Modified Stage I Master Plan, Stage II Development Plans, Site Design Review, Waiver and 
Type B Tree Removal permit for Wilsonville Family Fun Center to allow a 74’ support 
tower for a zip line ride and minor associated site modifications. The site is located at 29111 
SW Town Center Loop West on Tax Lots 100 and 109, Section 14D; T3S R1W; Clackamas 
County; Wilsonville, Oregon.  Staff:  Amanda Hoffman 
 
Case Files:   DB12-0070 – Modified Stage I Master Plan 
   DB12-0071 – Stage II Development Plan 
   DB12-0072 – Site Design Review 
   DB12-0073 – Waiver 
   TR13-0002 – Type B Tree Removal Permit 
 

Chair Keith called the public hearing to order at 6:38 p.m. and read the conduct of hearing format into 
the record. All Board members declared for the record that they had visited the site. No board member, 
however, declared a conflict of interest, bias, or conclusion from a site visit. No board member 
participation was challenged by any member of the audience. 
 
Amanda Hoffman, Assistant Planner, announced that the criteria applicable to the application were 
stated on page 2 of the Staff report, which was entered into the record. Copies of the report were made 
available to the side of the room.  
 
Ms. Hoffman presented the Staff report via PowerPoint, entered into the record as Exhibit A3, with these 
key additional comments:  
• She entered the letter submitted by Holland Partner Group dated February 11, 2013 into the record as 

Exhibit D1. The letter had been emailed to the Board members earlier that day. 
• The Family Fun Center proposed a zip line tower of 74 ft, which would be located east of Interstate 5 

south of the new Jory Trail apartment complex and north of Town Center Loop West.  



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 3 of 16  

• She noted the applications regarding the request, including the requested waiver to the 35-ft height 
limit in the PDC-TC Zone for the 74-ft zip line tower. The Type B Tree Removal Permit would allow 
removal of two trees for additional equipment to be located next to the tower.  

• The tower is proposed to be 20 inches in diameter and tan in color to match the building. 
• A photo simulation of the tower indicated the lines that run from the tower down to the beginning of 

the chair lift and the support guide wires that extend east into the parking lot. The simulation also 
depicted how the tower would appear in relation to the trees around the site. The photo simulation 
illustrated the view seen from the bank across Town Center Loop approximately 325 ft away.  
• Another slide simulated how the site would appear from a viewpoint further east along Town 

Center Loop toward the edge of the bank parking lot.  
• Another slide simulated what the site would look like with the apartment complex in the 

background, showing the trees behind the apartment complex. Photos at the bottom of the slide 
showed how the site appears today and what it would look like with approval of the application. 

• She displayed a height comparison showing different places in the city with elements at the height 
limit of the proposed tower or higher.  The Wilsonville Business Center towers were approved in 
1988 with heights of 130-ft, 100-ft, and 80-ft. The 76 Station sign was approved at 75 ft in 2010.  The 
movie theater tower was approved at 54 ft.   

• The Applicant’s argument in support of the request is a slim design, much like a cell tower, taller 
trees to the north that provide a good screening and buffering to the 74-ft tower. Tree heights to the 
north vary, but can be more than 100 ft with some adjacent trees being 90-ft tall.  

• The entertainment use was compatible with the Town Center zoning.  The Applicant would allow the 
Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue to use the tower for safety training as well.  

• The tower’s height was determined by the clearance needed for the chair above the existing 
entertainment building. An illustration showing the dimensions was presented that indicated how the 
Applicant determined that 74 ft was necessary.  

• When the Family Fun Center was approved in 1992, City Council restricted operation of the Fun 
Center batting cages to 10 p.m. due to the noise the facility created for residents of the Thunderbird 
Mobile Home Park. City Council also prohibited outdoor music and paging in 1992.  

• Exhibit D1, the letter from Holland Partners, identified three requests:  including a 10 p.m. restriction 
on operation of the zip line; the need for trees to provide additional screening, which was discussed 
with the Applicant; and addressing the outdoor music and paging, which was currently an ongoing 
issue even though City Council had prohibited it. These issues would need to be discussed with the 
Applicant.  

• Otherwise, Staff recommended approval with conditions, including the 10 p.m. restriction for the zip 
line. She noted additional slides with more details about the tree issue were available. 

 
Simon Springall asked how the tree screening and noise issue would be negotiated.  

 
Ms. Hoffman replied it would be difficult to provide screening anytime soon.  With a 74-ft tower, trees 
would take a number of years to grow tall enough to provide screening. At that point in time, it is unclear 
what the Family Fun Center’s plans will be regarding its featured attractions. Trees may or may not help 
the situation.  Planting a few trees to provide for potential screening in the future, or how tall the trees to 
be planted must be needed to be discussed with the Applicant. The Board needed to decide if the 
Applicant would be required to plant the trees.  
 
Mary Fierros Bower asked about the zip line ride, how and how many times an hour it would operate; 
where people would queue up for the ride, etc.  
 
Ms. Hoffman replied that some questions would have to be addressed by the Applicant who had more 
detailed information. She understood people would get on the ride near the bumper boats inside the gates 



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 4 of 16  

and go up with their backs facing the tower.  Once riders reach the tower, they would come back down 
facing forward. 
 
Ken Ruud stated that the outdoor music and paging issue was interesting. He visited the site and asked 
about the speaker locations. He noted some speaker systems would be needed to give people instructions 
about the rides.  He confirmed that paging referred to paging specific people over the intercom and asked  
 
Ms. Hoffman answered yes, according to the condition. She could not find that this requirement had been 
overturned at any point.  
 
Simon Springall asked to see the additional slides about the tree screening. 
 
Ms. Hoffman first displayed a slide highlighting the City Council conditions, which were included in the 
Staff report.  
• Next, she presented the additional slides indicating two areas where an additional one or two trees 

might be placed. The trees would likely need to be evergreen.  
• One area with deciduous trees created a gap, providing very little screening. She displayed the view 

from the apartment complex with deciduous, not evergreen, trees and a straight view toward the zip 
line tower’s proposed location. Another area was at the end of the apartment complex where the 
windows had a sight line right through a gap. 

• She was concerned that the areas available to provide trees were on the Holland property and would 
require negotiation between the Family Fun Center and Holland to plant new trees.  

 
Chair Keith asked the height of the apartment building’s top floor. 
 
Blaise Edmonds, City Manager, Current Planning Director replied the peak of the building is about 
45 ft, so each story is approximately 9 ft high. 
 
Mr. Springall noted Staff’s recommendation was to approve with the recommended conditions of 
approval. He asked what exactly the recommended conditions are.  
 
Ms. Hoffman replied the approval would include all the conditions listed on Pages 4, 5, 6, and 7 of the 
Staff report. She noted that under the conditions of approval, the Building Division and Natural Resources 
did not have comments. She had missed including the table from engineering which stated that 
department did not have any comments either. 
• She clarified that the trees discussed in the additional slides were not in Staff’s conditions, but were 

mentioned in Exhibit D1, the letter Staff received from Holland Partner Group, which she read into 
the record. 

 
Mr. Springall believed the conditions outlined in Holland’s letter made sense. The 10 p.m. restriction 
was already in effect by Code, and while there seems to be a precedent of playing music, it made sense 
that the volume should be low to avoid disturbing neighbors. He asked if the ideas of adjusting the 
speaker placement and keeping the volume low could be expressed in Code. 
 
Chair Keith stated that should be addressed with the Applicant. 
 
Ms. Hoffman stated the problem was that the music playing is prohibited by the City Council decision 
and, therefore, could not be allowed by the Board. 
 
Mr. Ruud confirmed that the issue regarded enforcement versus anything discussed at DRB and would 
be completely different than the subject application. 



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 5 of 16  

 
Ms. Hoffman added that after hearing from the Applicant, they could discuss having Holland meet with 
the Family Fun Center to negotiate the type of trees that would be placed and determine what was 
reasonable.  
 
Chair Keith called for the Applicant’s presentation. 
 
Ben Altman, SFA Design Group, 9020 SW Washington Square Dr, Portland, OR 97223 representing 
the Fun Center introduced Fun Center General Manager Darren Harmon to respond to any specific 
operational questions.  He thanked Ms. Hoffman for her extra help with the somewhat unique application 
being a request for a height waiver for a specific use.  
• The Applicant has reviewed the Staff report and generally agreed with the findings and conclusions 

except for some minor adjustments on one of the conditions.   
• He noted the application also included a Master Plan update that provides for future anticipated 

improvements and modernization of the Fun Center over the next several years. These improvements 
would be subject to subsequent design review for the specific actions when that stage is reached. 
• One key improvement involved removing the batting cage and expanding the entertainment 

building to create more indoor space. The batting cages are outdated and not one of the more 
popular activities.  

• The Applicant also anticipated expanding the building to the north where the patio and large 
umbrellas currently exist, to expand the dining room area. These revisions would return to the 
Board with specific applications at some future date. The Applicant believed these expansions 
were consistent with the general recreational entertainment characteristics of the Fun Center that 
have already been approved within the context of the Town Center.  

• In the present Application for the zip line, the primary issue the Applicant sought to address was the 
height, requesting a waiver for the height to exceed the 35-ft standard. This was a unique request 
because the design of the facility requires distance and height to make it work. The only way this 
could be achieved was to provide the start point inside by the boat pond and extend the cables and the 
tower outside into the parking lot.   

• He understood someone on the Board had a question about the original intent of the walled in area 
versus the parking lot. He explained the general intent of the walled area in the original application 
was to control the entry points to the entertainment options or features, providing some type of crowd 
control area so visitors come into the building and then back out to the entertainment area.   
• Although the facility required that the tower be extended outside, the access remains inside the 

wall, which was consistent with the original layout. If there was a concern about the design 
setting precedence, he noted this had never been an issue during his time in Wilsonville, as the 
City reviews every application on a case-by-case basis and considers circumstances for anything 
similar that might come up in the future. At this point, the Applicant did not anticipate a similar 
structure. The other planned improvements were mostly with the building itself and activities that 
would take place inside.   

• The other controlling aspect was the City’s landscaping and parking requirement. The Applicant 
was right at the threshold for the parking requirements, and the landscaping requirements were 
fulfilled.  There was not much room on the site to add more parking, so the Applicant was locked 
into the remaining area unless more property could be acquired, but none was available.  

• If any issue were to arise, it would come back for review by the Board.  
• Another issue raised was the fact that the tower is not lighted. While an FAA beacon would be 

installed on top as required by Federal Aviation, the Applicant has considered, but decided against 
lighting. Lighting was not needed for safety or security because access to the zip line was internal to 
the center like all other events and activities that take place at the facility. Participants on the ride 
would only be outside for a few seconds. Existing ambient lighting from the parking lot, apartments 



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 6 of 16  

to the north, and street lights would be sufficient to light the area. Anyone in a zip line chair would be 
looking down at the lighted parking lot.  
• The only safety issue he could think of was if a cable were to get hung up, which would prompt a 

need for fire and rescue, who would have spotlight provisions.  
• Working with the City’s lighting standard, the Applicant did not want to push the limits and add 

unnecessary lighting.   
• One issue raised by Holland included outdoor music.  
 
Darren Harmon, General Manager, Family Fun Center, understood there was a 100-ft limit from the 
wall for the placement of amplified sound devices. The sound device was facing north now because 
previously, the area to the north was unoccupied. When Brenner (Daniels) came by, the Applicant had 
already removed all the northward-facing sound devices as well as those located on the golf course.  
 
Mr. Altman stated the Applicant could work with Staff if an enforcement issue exited or a 
misunderstanding about that condition. 
• Mr. Harmon had spoken with Holland Group about planting additional trees; however, not much 

space is available onsite to do much. The Applicant acknowledged the need to replace the two trees 
being removed, and the Applicant was willing to work with Holland to some extent, even if it 
involved working on Holland Group’s side of the wall to provide additional screening.  
• The Applicant was concerned about setting limits to ensure the Applicant was not doing what 

Holland Group should have done in light of the fact that their facility was recently built knowing 
that the Fun Center was adjacent to their property. Holland Group could have planted more trees 
for screening themselves; however, the Applicant would not mind planting a couple trees to fill 
gaps in a few areas.  

• The Applicant understood the 10 p.m. limit addressed the noise sensitivity of the residential area to 
the north, and did not have a problem with shutting the zip line down at 10 p.m. in general.  However, 
historically, the Fun Center has had special event nights like Grad Night and Boy Scouts/Girl Scouts 
nights during which the center operates for extended hours in the summer. The Fun Center would like 
to maintain the extended hours during these events, especially now that the zip line would be a new 
attraction.  
• The Applicant understood that the sound of the bats hitting the balls was the main concern with 

the batting cages. The zip line would not have the same type of noise with exception of 
occasional screams.  

• The Applicant requested some flexibility for special event nights with extended hours beyond 10 
p.m. The extended hour activities would take place approximately 20 to 25 nights during the year.  
The Applicant recognized the sensitivity regarding noise to the north. However, if the neighbors 
know about the events ahead of time and the events do not take place every night, the Applicant 
hoped that the extended hours would be allowed.  

 
Chair Keith inquired about safety in the area of the parking lot; was there a way to prevent items like cell 
phones from dropping into the parking lot and on people’s heads.  
 
Mr. Harmon replied that the company that makes the zip line equipment also makes chair lifts for ski 
resorts; therefore, they do not have such procedures. The Fun Center would like to put something in place 
to address the issue. Participants on some of the current rides are required to empty their pockets and put 
their belongings in a secure box and remove flip flops. This would likely be part of the procedures for the 
zip line. As soon as an incident occurs, the Fun Center generally writes a procedure addressing the issue. 
Falling items was expected to be one of the procedures that the Fun Center would need to put into place.   

 
Mr. Ruud asked if installing the zip line would put the Applicant over the parking requirement.  
 



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 7 of 16  

Mr. Altman replied the Applicant was still be within the minimum range. Currently, the facility had a 
couple parking spaces over the limit. While two spaces were being removed to put the tower in, they 
would remain within the required range by two or three spaces. 
 
Jerry Greenfield acknowledged the contribution the Family Fun Center has made to Wilsonville for 
nearly two decades.  He had concerns, but stated that the Applicant had addressed them very well. 
 
Ms. Fierros Bower asked how much noise the ride would generate, how often it would go up and down 
and how fast.  
 
Mr. Harmon replied that the ride is not very fast and would take approximately 45 seconds from 
beginning to end. The thrill was not the same as a typical zip line; however, the ride would be thrilling 
enough that people would want to go on the ride multiple times and bring their children. Passengers on 
the ride would be in a chair lift with double seatbelts controlled by a computer. The seatbelts, once 
engaged, would not reengage unless a signal was received from the ride’s base.  
 
Mr. Springall asked for a characterization of any mechanical noises associated with the ride. 
 
Mr. Harmon responded that the ride is mostly quiet as an electric motor does the lifting. The area with 
the motor would be screened because it would be located on the golf course where people put.  The 
stopping mechanisms have baffles, so the air brakes would not be audible. The zone in front of Holland’s 
Building 6 was the only area where ride participants would be seen. Riders would face the freeway when 
going up on the lift chair, so voices would project that direction.  
 
Mr. Rudd inquired about the car track’s and bumper boats’ hours of operation during special events. 
 
Mr. Harmon replied that those attractions operate all night. Grad Nights involve 14 or 15 nights from 
late May to mid-June. The Fun Center might operate all night during these nights, depending on what 
schools attend. Fundraisers and church nights were also all night events that could last until 3:00 a.m.  
 
Chair Keith asked how many back-to-back runs can be made on the ride in an hour. 
 
Mr. Harmon stated he hopes to have at least 20 to 25 maximum runs in an hour.  
 
Mr. Altman noted that getting in and out of the chair would likely take longer than taking the ride.  
 
Mr. Harmon added the zip line would be one of the 11 attractions for kids to choose from during the late 
event nights. Protecting the Grad Nights was his primary concern. These events have a maximum of 600 
students in the park spread across all the available attractions, except the batting cages due to safety 
reasons and the noise restriction. He did not anticipate a significant number of zip line rides taking place 
at the overnight events.  
 
Mr. Greenfield understood the Applicant was already aware of the critical nature of the parking situation 
and that the Board would consider that closely. He asked if the Applicants had estimated the anticipated 
increase in their patronage. 
 
Mr. Harmon stated if the Fun Center added the 25,000 square feet by removing the batting cages, more 
than likely, 12,000 square feet would be a footprint for an attraction housing 10 people. Right now, the 
Applicant had no plans for modifications, but wanted to do two things at once [update the Master Plan] 
because they were coming before the Board with the subject application.  



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 8 of 16  

• The Applicant knew the batting cages would eventually go away, and more indoor space is needed to 
stay competitive since many new entertainment facilities are very large and indoors. The newness of 
the Family Fun Center has worn off after 20 years and the Applicant would like to appeal to peoples’ 
desire to play inside. As a result, they were considering a motion-based theater or miniature bowling 
alley. However, this would take up a large footprint without necessarily generating more parking or 
traffic. The aim was to allow guests to come inside when the park is slow during the winter, when 
people tend to go to indoor facilities.   
 

Mr. Greenfield asked whether the expansion of Bullwinkle’s would have a greater impact. 
 
Mr. Harmon replied that part of the restaurant would likely be removed anyway to make room for 
something right now. It was not a 40-ft expansion of the restaurant because the facility needed to expand 
the game room. 
 
Mr. Altman stated this would be addressed when the Applicant returned for those specific applications. 
Essentially, the parking requirement is driven by square footage relationships, and the Applicant would 
work with Staff because the Fun Center does not have a normal building footprint. There would be some 
tradeoffs of existing space for future or new space, and the Applicant would have to determine those net 
numbers. 
 
Mr. Greenfield believed he had read the margin was more like fifty parking spaces being available. 
 
Mr. Altman said he did not remember that part, but believed plenty of parking existed for now. 
 
Chair Keith called for public testimony in favor of, opposed and neutral to the application. Seeing none, 
she closed the public hearing at 7:25 p.m. 
 
Councilor Susie Stevens arrived at 7:25 p.m. 
 
Ms. Feirros Bower inquired whether the Board wanted to add verbiage about having the Family Fun 
Center negotiate with Holland Group regarding the specifics of adding additional trees.  
 
Mr. Ruud did not believe that was something to be addressed with the current application. Holland knew 
they were building next to an existing amusement park and those choosing to live there were aware of the 
surroundings. 
 
Mr. Springall agreed nothing specific needed to be added to the application; however, the Applicant 
stated he would be happy to negotiate with Holland about the placement of additional trees. The 
Applicant and Holland could come up with a reasonable solution without the Board making it a condition.  
  
Mr. Ruud agreed the two parties should be left to negotiate, and the negotiations should not be required.  
 
Chair Keith did not believe any screening would be effective for many years.  
 
Mr. Ruud asked about the Staff’s recommendation on noise. He had asked about the bumper boats and 
cars because they tend to be attractions that generate noise from excited participants. If additional people 
were on the zip line, he was curious how much added noise would be generated. With no existing time 
limit restrictions on the existing rides, he asked if restrictions should be imposed for the new ride. 
 
Mr. Edmonds stated when this project was reviewed years ago, there was always ambient noise from the 
freeway. The Applicant had been conditioned to conduct a sound study a year later and the Fun Center 



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 9 of 16  

was found to be within the State decibel requirements for being next to a residential area. It was difficult 
to distinguish the ambient noise of cars and trucks on the freeway, which is noisier when wet, from the 
noises coming from the batting cages and go karts, which are on a lower plane. The Applicant was 
conditioned to construct a 10-ft concrete wall to provide a noise buffer. The wall was pretty effective, but 
at that time, City Council was concerned about the paging system and loud music. He did not have the 
evidence in front of him to verify Mr. Harmon’s testimony about sound equipment being a certain 
distance from the wall.   
• He noted that during his years with the City, the Applicant has operated a very good business and has 

had very few complaints. In the beginning, there were concerns about sound and complaints about 
litter being thrown over the wall, but the Applicant has always been responsive and tried to be a good 
neighbor to the previous Thunderbird Mobile Park residents. He did not believe those efforts would 
stop with the new residents. 

 
Mr. Springall inquired about Staff’s recommendation that the park impose a 10 p.m. limit on the ride; 
however, remaining open late during special events appeared to be an important part of the Appplicant’s 
business. 
 
Mr. Edmonds replied that traditionally Staff honors previous DRB and Council decisions. The condition 
was imposed on the batting cages due to the piercing sound of pinging metal bats. The Board could 
decide if the Applicant’s proposal was reasonable and adjust that condition. 
 
Mr. Springall asked if specifying that a 25-night maximum per year be allowed for extended hours 
would be acceptable. 
 
Mr. Edmunds explained the hearing would need to be reopened if the Board wanted to discuss that 
proposal with the Applicant. 
 
Chair Keith asked if the issue could be reassessed after the ride had been operating. 
 
Mr. Springall noted the Applicant would not be able to operate the new ride during Grad Night and the 
zip line would be the big appeal. 
 
Ms. Jacobson advised that the Board could make a change, or approve the recommendation in the Staff 
report as presented. The Applicant could return or be invited to return after some period of time to offer 
testimony as to why that issue should be reopened. If the Board made the decision to open the park for the 
specified nights, it would be a binding decision. 
 
Ms. Fierros Bower supported that proposal. 
 
Mr. Ruud inquired whether the Applicant could give neighboring properties advance notice seven or 
twenty-one days prior to those nights with extended hours. 
 
Mr. Edmonds stated that because the late nights are consecutive, there would have to be advance notice 
of the grouping of the upcoming late nights. 
 
Chair Keith reopened the hearing at 7:36 p.m. 
 
Mr. Springall asked the Applicant if changing the condition to allow 25 nights per year of extended zip 
line operation would be acceptable if advanced notice of those nights was given to the neighbors to the 
north. 
 



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 10 of 16  

Mr. Harmon asked it be no less than 25 nights because right now, the Fun Center was pushing that 
number due to the Grad Nights and a few other events already scheduled. He and the Jory Trail property 
manager have spoken often and he has invited the manager to contact him with any problems. He agreed 
to 25 nights and would notify the neighbors in advance of those nights. He noted that Holland has a 
newsletter that is sent to their residents. A calendar could be used to notify about the June nights. The 
remaining late nights would be sprinkled throughout the year 
 
Mr. Springall clarified the proposed 25-night limit would apply to the zip line because the other 
operations of the Fun Center would be unaffected. 
 
Mr. Ruud noted the line of sight and noise would not be an issue when the facility operates after 10 p.m. 
because of the blocking; however line of sight and the potential for screaming and more noise could be an 
issue with the zip line on special event nights.  
 
Mr. Altman reminded that the batting cages were not operating beyond 10 p.m. at all due to the prior 
condition. 
 
Mr. Harmon added the music does not operate on Grad Nights either; it did when no neighbors were to 
the north. No overnight music was played when the Thunderbird Mobile Park was there, nor was the 
instructions announced for go karts. Now that residents live adjacent to the Fun Center, the facility would 
resume its prior operations. Go kart safety instructions could be verbally given while students are on the 
bus. 
 
Chair Keith asked whether all night operations would be allowed for the 25 nights per year. 
 
Mr. Harmon asked that a time limit not be placed on those nights because closing times vary. 
 
Mr. Edmonds confirmed that no City Ordinance limits business operations at night; however a noise 
ordinance does exist; but it was difficult to administer. Determining what residents here is difficult 
because Staff must stand behind the wall as they did not have permission to stand on someone’s third 
story balcony at 3 a.m. Administrating the noise ordinance is based on complaints. If enough complaints 
are received about noise, Code Enforcement would contact Mr. Harmon and determine how to mitigate it. 
 
Mr. Springall commented that the noise would still be subject to the City’s noise ordinance in all cases. 
 
Chair Keith confirmed with Mr. Edmonds that there was nothing to stop the neighbors from filing a 
formal noise complaint. If the zip line is operated 25 nights a year, the neighbors could always object to 
the noise if there was a problem and return to negotiate shorter hours. 
 
Mr. Ruud added it would not be valid if the ride did not comply with the noise ordinance.  
 
Mr. Springall did not believe the noise of the zip line could be significantly greater than the noise of the 
go karts, which are pretty loud and run all night. He asked if any noise complaints had been received 
about the go karts or the water. 
 
Mr. Altman explained that even at night, the freeway generates ambient noise that could be heard over 
the go karts. 
 
Mr. Harmon stated that before the residents moved in, he listened from the third floor balcony of the 
apartments and could hear the occasional go kart, but mostly the freeway. The sound barrier erected along 



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 11 of 16  

the freeway has become a tunnel for the freeway sound instead of minimizing it. Sound study technicians 
in the past have been unable to get a baseline because the freeway is so loud. 
 
Chair Keith believed the ride should be allowed to operate at extended hours 25 nights a year, and if it 
became a problem, it could be addressed at that point. 

 
Chair Keith closed the hearing at 7:44 p.m. 
 
Mr. Greenfield noted that given the two decade-long relationship, he considers the Fun Center to be a 
partner with the City. 
 
Jerry Greenfield moved to amend the Staff report to include Exhibit A3, Staff’s PowerPoint, and 
Exhibit D1, the letter dated February 11, 2013 from Holland Partner Group. Chair Keith seconded 
the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
Chair Keith moved to adopt Resolution No. 243 accepting the Staff report with the modification of 
Condition PDB 3 to allow zip line operations 24 hours a day for a maximum of 25 nights a year with 
notification to surrounding neighbors and property owners. The motion was seconded by Ken Ruud 
and passed unanimously.  
 
Chair Keith read the rules of appeal into the record. 
 
The Board returned to the Council Liaison Report at this time. 
 

B. Resolution No. 244.   Ron Tonkin Gran Turismo:  LRS Architects. – Representative for 
RTGT Properties LLC DBA Ron Tonkin Gran Turismo – Applicant/Owner.   The 
applicant is requesting approval of a Stage II Final Plan, Site Design Review, Type C Tree 
Removal Plan and Master Sign Plan Modification for remodel and expansion of an existing 
automobile dealership.  The site is located on Tax Lots 200 and 300, Section 02A; T3S 
R1W, City of Wilsonville, Washington County, Oregon.   Staff:  Michael Wheeler 

 
Case Files:   DB12-0060 – Stage II Final Plan   
   DB12-0061 – Site Design Review 
   DB12-0063 – Type C Tree Removal Plan 
   DB12-0068 – Master Sign Plan Modification 

 
This agenda item was addressed following the City Council Liaison Report.           
 
Chair Keith called the public hearing to order at 7:54 p.m. and read the conduct of hearing format into 
the record.  
 
Mary Fierros Bower declared a conflict of interest because the Applicant’s representative, LRS 
Architects, was her employer.  She stepped down from the dais. 
 
All remaining board members declared for the record that they had visited the site. No board member, 
however, declared a conflict of interest, bias, or conclusion from a site visit. No board member 
participation was challenged by any member of the audience. 
 
Michael Wheeler, Associate Planner, announced that the criteria applicable to the application were 
stated on page 2 of the Staff report, which was entered into the record. Copies of the report were made 
available to the side of the room.  



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 12 of 16  

 
Mr. Wheeler presented the Staff report via PowerPoint, the exhibits of which were included in the 
meeting packet, with the following key comments: 
• The displayed exhibits could be referenced on pages 12 and 13 of the Staff report.  
• The application’s four components included a Stage II Final Plan for a proposed remodeling to 

expand the existing automobile sales and service facility; Site Design Review to consider the design 
of the improvements, circulation, landscaping, required on-street parking; Type C Tree Removal Plan 
for the removal of 12 trees, and modifications to an existing Master Sign Plan for the proposed 
improvements.  

• He noted two corrections to the Staff report: 
• The last sentence of Finding A28 on Page 20 of 45 was corrected to state, “...property line 

(Exhibits See Conditions PFA 8, PFA 20 and PFA 21).” 
• The first sentence of Finding D7 on Page 36 of 45 was corrected to state, “Master Sign plan (Case 

File DB12 05-0006;…”   
• The application received several comments from City divisions as well as Tualatin Valley Fire and 

Rescue (TVFR), which were included in the Staff report, and where appropriate, conditions of 
approval were recommended for the application.  

• The application was to increase the floor area of an existing facility to approximately 22,500 square 
feet.  Parking will be reconfigured. Circulation will be largely the same, but the improvements to the 
facility would be more modern and better for the environment. As a result, the proposal included an 
expansion of the showroom facility at the west end of the existing building, an enlargement of the 
service area to the east, outside waste and recyclable storage that would be covered, and an enclosed, 
locked storage area for fuels and other fluids. 

• He displayed maps showing surrounding parcels in the vicinity of the existing facility and site of the 
proposed improvements off Parkway Avenue with Elligsen Road to the south and Interstate 5 to the 
west. 

• The rendering on the cover page depicted the prominence of the proposed architectural alterations to 
the structure.  

• All the exhibits discussed had been included in the record and He reviewed the items addressed in the 
Staff report with these key comments: 
• The site includes a loop drive with two access points on Parkway Avenue, which would remain in 

place following some modifications to the site in the form of demolitions. Parking east of the loop 
drive is very limited, and circulation through the drive was expanded in the northeast area. Most 
parking in the past had been into opposing bay areas on the driveway that takes drivers back out 
to Parkway Avenue.  
• The Applicant’s revisions called for new parking to the south and east, which would be 

screened from view and would be reserved for employee parking or service parking that 
would be used during the day and vacated at night.  

• The Utility Plan illustrated the extent of paving improvements that would be made in replacing 
the driveway system and adding the parking. The surface would be pervious rather than 
impervious and would funnel the runoff through the layer of proposed pavement into catch basins 
directing it to a treatment facility along the south edge of the property and finally to the street 
through a weep hole at the curb. The northern portion of the site was always served by storm 
drainage that flows to the north along the north property line and out to an existing storm 
drainage system flowing to the west. 

• The Applicant proposed to remove 12 trees in the process of constructing the improvements, 
three of which were in the vicinity of the front street trees. The area would be graded and built up 
for a terrace to display vehicles.  The 12trees will be removed or relocated and then mitigated 
with the Applicant planting 31 trees, which would enhance the landscape significantly. 



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 13 of 16  

• The Applicant intends to meet the requirement that inventory stored onsite be screened from view 
offsite. A stretch of landscaping would act as a screen to buffer the view from the west. Plantings 
along the east boundary would serve the same purpose for the public site owned by TVFR. 

• The Demolition Site Plan showed the removal of asphalt, replacement of the parking and 
resulting circulation.  

• Two areas of expansion were proposed, one to the showroom in the southwest corner of the 
building, and a service-related expansion in the southeast vicinity. A plaza or terrace would be 
built up at the southwest corner of the building for the display of vehicles and a canopy would 
enhance its appearance. Two other minor areas of improvement were the fluid storage on the east 
side of the property, and the covered waste and recycling facility accessible to hauling utilities 
directly south of the fluid storage.  

• Current elevations of the structure, proposed demolition changes and the existing location of the 
Grand Prix Import sign on the south wall of the facility were displayed. In the proposed remodel, 
the storefronts would be rebuilt and enhanced, and the canopies would be extended along the 
southwest corner and on the west side of the building. The signage would be relocated farther 
west.  

• Code requires that when changes are made to electrical lighting facilities beyond a certain 
threshold, all must be brought up to current Code. The City adopted the Dark Sky Ordinance 
about three years ago to prevent lights from shining on the stars and clouds; to be available only 
when needed and then diminished or shut off by a certain time at night. The Applicant chose one 
of two methods for implementing the outdoor lighting ordinance. The proposed lighting levels 
were displayed. The Applicant was not proposing as much illumination as allowed; therefore, the 
lighting levels would meet the Code requirements.  

• The Applicants provided a color and materials board, which was represented in the prospective 
drawing and another, more elevated drawing to the southwest. [of the southwest elevation] The 
Applicant could provide more detail about the materials and their use. 

• One graphic showed all the components involved with the modifications to the Master Site Plan. 
• He reviewed the existing and proposed placement of the signage shown on Exhibit A401. The 

proposed signage, would be placed farther west on the fascia, as well as the service sign. The new 
monument sign would consist of the pair of monuments approximately 15 feet tall and be placed 
just off the terrace that would be built along Parkway Avenue. 

• He reviewed Staff’s four minor areas of concern with the application, noting that conditions of 
approval had been recommended for each area to bring the proposal into full compliance with the 
criteria, except that regarding the exterior display.  
• In the site design, the curb line for the parking spaces along the east edge and the three spaces 

along the south edge were five feet from the east and south property lines. Code requires a 
minimum of seven feet of landscaping from the property line when parking overhangs the curb, to 
avoid interfering with potential sidewalks. Because the Applicant only has five feet, wheel stops 
must be placed in each pair of parking spaces to prevent vehicles from hanging over the curb. 
Otherwise, the Applicant could redesign the parking areas to move cars away from the east and 
south property lines to comply with the requirement.  

• The monument sign was being moved from its former location and rebuilt into what appeared to 
be a pair of monument signs. The proposed sign area would comply with the approved sign area 
amounts of the previous approval. Only one monument sign was approved in the Master Site 
Plan. 

• Staff assumed that the area beneath the canopy on the west side of the building would be used for 
outdoor display. An exterior sales display opportunity is built into the Code; however, the area 
must be fully covered. In the prospective drawings, the placement of vehicles for display on the 
plaza would not comply. Because the Code governs compliance, and not a condition of approval, 
Staff simply noted the requirement.  



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 14 of 16  

• Staff disagreed with the Applicant’s calculation of four bicycle parking spaces as a minimum is 
required for each type of use specified in the Parking Standards, resulting in a total of eight 
bicycle parking spaces being required. The Applicant has proposed one area for bicycle parking, 
but other areas might be available to split the eight required spaces up.   

• He concluded, stating that Staff recommended approval of the four components of the application 
with conditions. 

 
Chair Keith called for the Applicant’s presentation. 
 
Daniel Drake, LRS Architects, 720 Northwest Davis, Portland, Oregon 97209, thanked Staff for their 
presentation and for working with the Applicant.  
• He addressed the architectural portion of the building’s exterior, noting the expansion of the existing 

automotive facility to increase some presence along the frontage, beautifying it with new metal panels 
and a two-story jewel box. The Applicant also wanted the opportunity to do some exterior display, as 
noted by the City Code, up to five percent and allowable by 10 percent of the DRB. Elements of glass 
and light metals were used to lighten up the building. The terracing was also extended around the 
corner and brought down through the plaza area and landscaping was added to soften the edge. The 
building would open from the inside via a couple doors to create a plaza area in the summertime to 
allow customers to interact on the outside, such as during private dinner functions.  

• The service bay was enlarged by creating a new service area. In doing so, the parking had to be 
reconfigured. As a result of working with Staff, some impervious surface was removed, and a 
pervious paving area was created to control a lot of the storm water onsite and create less impact to 
the City’s sewer system. Landscaping would also be increased, which would also help absorb storm 
water. The service area would be screened to reduce the impact of the visual implications commonly 
associated with an auto dealership in the neighborhood. Employee parking would be vacated at night 
as well as customer parking.  

• Through the requirements of the Dark Skies Ordinance, LED lighting would be used to reduce energy 
impacts on the facility and also reduce the light level at night and the impact to the city.  

• The Applicant would like to work with Staff to address the vehicle overhang in the parking areas on 
the east and south property lines by considering either low rubber bumpers for low exotic cars or to 
relocate the curb westward to obtain the seven-foot clearance from the property line.  

• Staff’s comments about the bicycle parking had been incorporated into the drawing, and the 
Applicant would address those comments on their resubmittal.  

• The Applicant reviewed the previous conditions of approval for the facility as far as the building sign 
and site sign through the Master Sign Plan. The Applicant was working to incorporate the duel totems 
onto a single pylon to create a more uniform, one sign approach. The Applicant ensured the sign 
would remain within the area and height requirements based on the previous Master Sign Plan, and 
therefore, was requesting a modification to the plan.  

• A foam board exhibit was displayed to more clearly illustrate that vehicles could be accommodated 
underneath the canopy overhang. The exhibit was a modification of Exhibitb41. He noted the staging 
area might be moved further away from the building; consequently the overhang might need to be 
increased about two feet to accommodate complete overhead coverage. The Applicant would like to 
work with Staff and the owner to determine that increase and ensure the overhang would still comply 
with the allowable percentage area of exterior display, which would be 10 percent as approved 
through the DRB.  

• He concluded by offering to answer any questions. 
 
Chair Keith asked if any lighting intrusion impact was anticipated on hotel property.  
 
Mr. Drake replied the Applicant hired a lighting designer at MFIH to go through the site. The LEDs have 
incorporated cutoff shields, so light would cut off at the property line. Additional landscaping would be 



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 15 of 16  

added to the existing landscaping along the south property line as noted in one of the exhibits included in 
the packet. Additional lighting would be used through the canopies within the incorporated 
seeding/landscaped tiered area to shine down onto the walkways for safety purposes. Impervious pavers 
were being incorporated in that area as well. This added lighting would ensure people are stepping in 
correct areas.  
 
Chair Keith called for public testimony in favor of, opposed or neutral to the application. There was 
none. 
 
Simon Springall stated he was slightly confused about the exterior sales limit, whether it was 5 percent 
or 10 percent and if the application was in compliance.  
 
Mr. Wheeler deferred the question to the Applicant as he was unaware where the numbers were 
specifically calculated in the Applicant’s narrative. He stated that the displayed illustration seemed to be a 
revision of an earlier drawing in which two vehicles were depicted beneath the canopy, which would 
satisfy the requirement of outdoor display of merchandise. The vehicle on the west side of the building 
had not appeared to be beneath the canopy, which was likely the reason for caution. He did not know 
whether the canopies would exceed five percent of the total floor area.  
 
Mr. Drake apologized for not having the exact number for percentages; however, the canopies’ area was 
below five percent. The Applicant should still be below five percent if the lower canopy on the west side 
had to be extended two feet. He clarified that the DRB has the authority to increase the maximum to 10 
percent. He was not 100 percent sure the Applicant would not need to increase that limit, but he would get 
the exact number for Staff. Looking at the size of the buildings for the canopies, it appeared the proposal 
would be below five percent, but that would need to be verified. If the DRB approved the 10 percent, the 
Applicant could work with Staff. He emphasized the Applicant was not proposing to increase the 
percentage any more, except for the two feet to cover the vehicles as requested. 
 
Jerry Greenfield asked if the Applicant planned to extend the canopies to the north.  
 
Mr. Drake answered no. The canopy on the west side would be extended two feet as Staff requested.  
 
Blaise Edmunds entered the foam board exhibit displayed by the Applicant into the record as Exhibit 
B42.  
 
Mr. Drake clarified the new exhibit only showed that vehicles were able to fit under the canopy; no 
canopies had been extended. 
 
Mr. Ruud confirmed the Applicant would work on adding the required bicycle spaces and would work 
with Staff on extending the vehicle overhang beyond curb, and the exterior sales display limits. 
 
Mr. Drake agreed the Applicant was willing to work with Staff on all the noted items. The Applicant had 
no issues with the conditions. 
 
Mr. Greenfield complimented the Applicant’s design, adding it was a handsome plan overall. 
 
Chair Keith believed the proposal would be a great improvement. She confirmed there were no further 
questions and closed the public hearing at 8:32 p.m. 
 



Development Review Board Panel A  February 11, 2013 
Minutes  Page 16 of 16  

Chair Keith moved to amend the Staff report adding Exhibit B42, the foam board displayed by the 
Applicant showing that vehicles could fit under the west canopy of the building, and including the 
following corrections:  
• The last sentence of Finding A28 on Page 20 of 45 should state, “...property line (See Conditions 

PFA 8, PFA 20 and PFA 21).” 
• The first sentence of Finding D7 on Page 36 of 45 should state, “Case File DB05-0006;…” 
Ken Ruud seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
Simon Springall moved to adopt Resolution No. 244. The motion was seconded by Jerry Greenfield 
and passed unanimously. 
 
Chair Keith read the rules of appeal into the record. 
 
IX. Board Member Communications: 

A. Meeting notes from January 28, 2013 DRB Panel B Meeting 
 
X. Staff Communications: 
There were none. 
 
XI. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 8:37 p.m. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 

 
By Paula Pinyerd of ABC Transcription Services, Inc. for  
Shelley White, Planning Administrative Assistant 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VII.  Public Hearing:     
A.    Resolution No. 250.   Wilsonville Family Fun 

Center:  Ben Altman, SFA Design Group – 
representative for Wilsonville Land Partnership 
and Darren Harmon, Wilsonville Family Fun 
Center – Owner and Applicant. Modify condition 
PDB3 in case file DB12-0071 – Stage II 
Development Plan to address specific notice and 
process related issues for the 25 special all-night 
events for a zip line attraction. The site is located at 
28855 SW Parkway Avenue on Tax Lots 100 and 
109, Section 14D; T3S R1W; Clackamas County; 
Wilsonville, Oregon.  Staff: Amanda Hoffman and 
Blaise Edmonds. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 250  Page 1 
 

 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 250 

 
 

A RESOLUTION MODIFYING CONDITION OF APPROVAL PDB3 IN RESOLUTION  NO. 
243 FOR THE WILSONVILLE FAMILY FUN CENTER.  THE SITE IS LOCATED ON TAX 
LOTS 100 & 109, SECTION 14D, T3S-R1W, CLACKAMAS COUNTY, OREGON. BEN 
ALTMAN, SFA DESIGN GROUP – REPRESENTATIVE FOR DARREN HARMON, 
WILSONVILLE LAND PARTNERSHIP – OWNER/APPLICANT. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, this Resolution modifies Condition of Approval PDB3 in Resolution No. 243 which 
Resolution shall remain in effect but for the modification set forth herein; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Staff prepared a staff report on the above-captioned subject dated 

February 28, 2013; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said planning staff report was duly considered by the Development Review Board 
Panel A at a regularly scheduled meetings conducted on February 11, 2013 at which time exhibits, 
together with public testimony were entered into the public record; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Development Review Board, upon the Applicant’s request, voted to amend 
Condition PDB3 to allow for extended hours of operation for the Soaring Eagle Zip Line ride (“Zip 
Line”) on up to 25 nights during any given calendar year and such amendment was incorporated into the 
staff report and adopted as part of Resolution No. 243; and  
 
 WHEREAS, following approval of Resolution No. 243 and following further discussions with 
City staff over concerns raised about the unknown and unstudied noise levels of the Zip Line operations 
and their impact on newly constructed adjoining residences, the Applicant voluntarily agreed to request 
that the DRB modify Resolution No. 243 to remove the DRB modification to Condition PDB3 
concerning the hours of Zip Line operations and reinstate the original staff recommended 10 pm curfew, 
as set forth in the original Condition PDB3; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Applicant has agreed to return to the original condition PDB3 in consideration of 
the agreement of the City’s Planning Director to issue the Applicant a Class 1 Temporary Use Permit, 
waiving the application fee therefor, which will allow the Applicant the right to operate the Zip Line 
beyond 10 pm on up to 25 nights during 2013, subject to Applicant’s Zip Line operations being in 
compliance with the City’s Noise Ordinance, understanding that issuance of said Temporary Use Permit 
does not create any exception to compliance with the City Noise Ordinance; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Director has further agreed that the Applicant may continue to make 
annual applications for a similar Class 1 Temporary Use Permits in future years and the application fee 
will be waived; and 

 
WHEREAS, Staff, the Applicant and other interested parties, if any, have had an opportunity to 

be heard on the subject of this modification. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 250  Page 2 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Development Review Board of the City of 
Wilsonville does hereby adopt the staff report, dated February 28, 2013, as amended and attached hereto 
as Exhibit A4, with recommendations contained therein including the revised  PDB3, and authorizes the 
Planning Director to enforce condition PDB3 consistent with staff’s original recommendation  but subject 
to the Planning Director’s  discretionary issuance of a Temporary Use Permit to allow for extended Zip 
Line operation hours on up to 25 days during the calendar year, as described above and does hereby 
amend Resolution No. 243 with this Resolution No. 250.  Except as set forth herein, Resolution No. 243 
shall otherwise remain in full force and effect. 
 

ADOPTED by the Development Review Board of the City of Wilsonville at a regular meeting 
thereof this 11th day of March 2013 and filed with the Planning Administrative Assistant 
on _______________.  This Resolution is final on the l5th calendar day after the postmarked date of the 
written notice of decision per WC Sec 4.022(.09) unless appealed per WC Sec 4.022(.02) or called up for 
review by the City Council in accordance with WC Sec 4.022(.03). 

 
 

 
              

   Mary Fierros Bower, Chair - Panel A 
   Wilsonville Development Review Board 

Attest: 
 
       
Shelley White, Planning Administrative Assistant 



 
EXHIBIT A4 

 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING  

STAFF REPORT 
 
Meeting Date: March 11, 2013 
Date of Staff Report: Feb 28, 2013  

Subject: Revisit condition PDB-3 to address specific 
notice and process related issues for the 25 special all-
night events. 
 
Staff Members: Blaise Edmonds, Manager of Current 
Planning and Amanda Hoffman, Assistant Planner 

Action Required: Modify Condition PDB3 of Resolution 243.  
☒ Resolution – Public Hearing  

 ☐ Information or Direction 
☐ Information Only 
☐ Consent Agenda 
 
Staff Recommendation: See the proposed condition PDB3 at the end of this staff report. 
 
PROJECT / ISSUE RELATES TO: DB12-0071 Stage II Final Plan. The applicant proposes to 
install a 74 foot monopole to support a zip line amusement park ride. 

  
OWNER: Wilsonville Land Partnership (Family Fun Center) 
 
ISSUE BEFORE DRB: Revisit condition PDB-3 to address specific notice and process related 
issues for the 25 special all-night events for a zip line attraction. 
 
In Resolution No. 243 the DRB approved condition PDB3 as modified to read: 
 
PDB3. The operation of the zip line amusement ride shall be prohibited between the hours of 10 
p.m. and the regular opening time with the exception of 25 nights a year where the zip line is 
allowed to run 24 hours a day with prior notification to adjacent neighbors and property owners. 
(See Finding B19).  
 
Finding B19 in Exhibit A1: Subsection 4.118 (.03) E. Other Requirements or Restrictions: 
 
B19. Review Criteria: “Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.140 to the contrary, the 

Development Review Board, in order to implement the purposes and objectives of Section 
4.140, and based on findings of fact supported by the record may adopt other requirements 
or restrictions, inclusive of, but not limited to, the following:” Listed 1. through 12. 
 
Finding: “These criteria will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 3.” 
 

 
Page 1 of 52



Details of Finding 19: “Under 92PC05, Condition #30, staff finds that City Council made 
an additional condition of approval regarding the operation of the batting cage. Because of 
the noise sensitivity of the adjacent residential to the north the hours of operation were 
restricted. The previous condition prohibited operation of the batting cage between 10 p.m. 
and the regular opening time. Staff finds that the zip line amusement ride is a similar type-
use related to noise and will be located much closer to the residential than the batting cage. 
Limiting the operation time will give assurance that this amusement ride will not be a 
nuisance to adjacent residents regarding noise. Therefore, staff finds that the operation of 
the zip line amusement ride shall be prohibited between the hours of 10 p.m. and the 
regular opening time. (See Condition of Approval PDB 3 and Exhibit A2)” 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
On February 11, 2013 the Family Fun Center’s zip line “soaring eagle” proposal was heard by 
the Development Review Board (DRB) Panel A.  Staff’s recommendation and condition PDB3 
included limiting the operation of the zip line to 10 p.m. based on the previous approvals of the 
Family Fun Center and the sensitivity that the previous residents of Thunderbird Mobile Home 
Club had regarding the issue of noise as well as the presence of new multi-family housing at Jory 
Trail at the Grove.  
 
Staff received a letter from Holland Partner Group (Exhibit D1 of Exhibit A1), owner of Jory 
Trail at the Grove that was included in the public record identifying three concerns they had 
regarding the proposal, however they were generally in support of the project. One of the three 
issues they raised was a request that the zip line operation to be limited to 10 p.m.  
 
During the hearing, the applicant raised the issue of certain special event nights when they would 
like to operate the zip line for extended hours and potentially all night on “grad nights”. The 
Development Review Board listened to the testimony and discussed noise in great length.  In 
testimony to the DRB, the applicant requested to operate the zip line attraction 24 hours a day for 
not more than 25 days a year. According to the applicant, many nights would be less than 24 
hours depending on the event. The DRB approved the zip line attraction and amended the 
proposed condition of approval limiting the operation to 10 p.m. and allowed 25 nights with 
prior notice to surrounding neighbors and property owners.  
 
There are concerns with the approved condition of approval PDB3 because it does not provide an 
adequate level of specificity on notice and it does not provide an opportunity for evaluation of 
potential impacts of the attraction to the residents and community, including remedy and could 
result in long-term complaint/enforcement issues for the city and the applicant for the following 
reasons.   
 

• The condition does not provide any protocols or guidelines for notification. There are no 
details regarding lead time, who receives notice, what the notice is required to include, or 
other details that may assist residents with an understanding of when the events will 
occur. Language could be added to strengthen this issue.   

 

 
Page 2 of 52



• The city cannot rely on the Noise Ordinance for enforcement in its current form due to a 
specific exemption found in WC Section 6.204(3.f.) which states:  
 
Sounds caused by the following are exempt from the prohibitions set out in 6.204 and are 
in addition to the exemptions specifically set forth in 6.204(2). 
 
(f.) Other Outdoor Events.  Outdoor gatherings, public dances, shows, sporting events, 
and other similar outdoor events, provided that any necessary permit has been obtained 
from the appropriate permitting authority. 
 

Approval of this development permit will be the only chance the City has to ensure that 
processes are set up for monitoring, evaluation and adjustment of the activity if necessary in the 
future. Staff met with the applicant and came up with the following agreement.  
 

1. The applicant agreed to return to the Development Review Board on March 11th to re-
address the language in the above condition. 

2. The applicant agreed to toll the 14-day City Council call-up to March 18th, the first City 
Council meeting following the March 11th DRB meeting. 

3. The applicant will work with the staff to re-write the condition to address the review 
process and public notice. 

 
Staff would propose to the DRB in a new revised condition PDB-3 that the “special events” 
should be processed annually via a Class II administrative review which:  
 

1. Provides for public notice of the calendar of special events.  
2. Will allow for the potential neighborhood impacts of the attraction to be evaluated and 

monitored over time and the hours of operation adjusted, if necessary. 
3. Will allow for the noise ordinance to be enforced as the special event permits would be 

issued annually and the permit would be modifiable or revocable.  
 
PROPOSED REVISED CONDITION PDB3: Bold/underline = new words. 
 
1. Proposed revised condition PDB3 to read: 

 
PDB3: The operation of the Zip Line amusement ride shall be prohibited between the hours of 
10 pm and the regular opening time with the following exception: Pursuant to Section 4.030 of 
the City of Wilsonville Code (“Code”), the Family Fun Center (“Applicant”) will be 
granted a Class 1 Temporary Use Permit for the year 2013 to allow the Applicant to 
operate its new Soaring Eagle Zip Line ride (“Zip Line”) after 10 pm for a maximum of 25 
days during 2013.  Except on those 25 identified dates, the Zip Line must cease operations 
between the hours of 10 pm and the regular opening time.  Issuance of the Temporary Use 
Permit is subject to the following conditions: 
  

1. Applicant will provide the City with all known proposed dates for late night Zip 
Line operations at least two (2) weeks in advance of the first date for a late night Zip 
Line operations. If all dates are not known at the time this notice is provided, or if 

 
Page 3 of 52



the dates should change, Applicant will provide the City with notice of added dates 
or revised dates at least 48 hours in advance of those late night Zip Line operations 
dates. 

2. The City may, but shall not be obligated, to provide notice of the late night Zip Line 
operations dates to nearby residents and property owners who may be impacted by 
the late night Zip Line operations. 

3. The Temporary Use Permit is subject to compliance with the City’s Noise 
Ordinance found in Section 6.204 of the Code, as it may be amended from time to 
time, it being understood by the Applicant that issuance of said Temporary Use 
Permit does not create any exception to compliance with the City Noise Ordinance. 

4. No fee will be charged by the City for issuance of the Temporary Use Permit 
described herein. 

5. Subject to compliance with the City’s Noise Ordinance, Applicant may apply for a 
Class 1 Temporary Use Permit for up to 25 days of late night Zip Line operations 
annually. 

 
Staff comment: The above condition may result in noise complaints requiring public resources 
to help mitigate the issues.   
 
2. The Board may also retain the original staff recommended Condition of Approval PDB3 that 

reads: 
 
PDB3. “The operation of the zip line amusement ride shall be prohibited between the hours of 
10 p.m. and the regular opening time with the exception of 25 nights a year where the zip line is 
allowed to run 24 hours a day with prior notification to adjacent neighbors and property owners.”  
 
Staff comment: The original staff condition limiting the zip line use to a 10:00 p.m. curfew is 
clear and objective and it does not require administrative reviews, protocols or guidelines for 
notifications.  
 
EXHIBITS: 
 
Exhibit A1 – Amended and Adopted Staff Report in Resolution 243. 
   

 
Page 4 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 1 of 36 
 

Exhibit A1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION 

Family Fun Center 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL ‘A’ 

QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 
AMENDED AND ADOPTED FEBRUARY 11, 2013 
ADDED LANGUAGE BOLD ITALICS UNDERLINED 

 
HEARING DATE: February 11, 2013 
DATE OF REPORT: February 4, 2013 
 
 
APPLICATION NOS.: A.  DB12-0070: Stage I Master Plan Modification 
 B. DB12-0071: Class 3 Stage II 

 C. DB12-0072: Class 3 Site Design Review 
 D. DB12-0073: Height Waiver 
 E. TR13-0002: Type B Tree Removal 
   

APPLICANT: Ben Altman, SFA Design Group  
 
OWNER: Wilsonville Land Partnership  
 
REQUEST: SFA Design Group on behalf of the Family Fun 

Center, proposes to develop Tax Lot 100, 109 in 
Section 14D; T3S R1W; Clackamas County, 
Oregon.  The applicant proposes to install a 74 foot 
monopole to support a zip line. 

 
LOCATION: Approximately 5.93-acres between two parcels 

located at 29111 SW Town Center Loop W. (See 
Vicinity Map on Page 2).  

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Tax Lots 100 and 109 in Section 14D; T3S R1W; 

Clackamas County, Oregon. 

LAND USE DESIGNATION: Wilsonville Comprehensive Plan Map  
 Designation: Commercial  
 
ZONING DESIGNATION: Wilsonville Zone Map Classification: Planned 

Development Commercial-Town Center (PDC-TC)-
(Service Commercial) 

 
STAFF REVIEWER: Amanda Hoffman, Assistant Planner 

 
Page 5 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 2 of 36 
 

 
REQUESTED ACTIONS:  
The Development Review Board is being asked to review the following concurrent 
applications: 

 
A. DB12-0070: Stage I Final Plan Modification: Includes the addition of a zip 

line and other concept plans to expand the use in the future. 
B. DB12-0071: Stage II Final Plan: Approval of a modification to add a zip line, 

composed of a 74 foot support tower, and other small site modifications. 
C. DB12-0072:  Class 3 Site Design Review: Approval of site design review 

plans to build a 74 foot support tower for a zip line. 
D. DB12-0073: Height Waiver: Approval of a request for a waiver to the height 

limitations of the PDC-TC zone 
E. TR13-0002:  Type B Tree Removal Permit: Approval of a request for a Type 

B Tree Removal for two parking lot trees. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Stage I Modifications to Master Plan, 
Stage II, Site Design Review Plans, Height Waiver, and Type B Tree Removal with 
recommended conditions of approval. 
 
VICINITY MAP: 

 

 
 
APPLICABLE CRITERIA:  
Planning and Land Development Ordinance: Sections 4.008-4.015; 4.116; 4.118; 
4.131.05; 4.140; 4.155; 4.167; 4.171; 4.175; 4.176; 4.177; 4.178; 4.179; 4.199; 4.320; 
4.400-4.450; 4.610.30. Other Planning Documents:  Comprehensive Plan, Wilsonville 
Town Center Master Plan. 

Tower 
Subject Property 

 
Page 6 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 3 of 36 
 

SUMMARY:  
 
• Request A – Stage I Master Plan Modification (DB12-0070): 

As demonstrated in findings A1 through A14, with conditions of approval 
referenced therein, the proposed Stage II Final Development Plan modifications 
meet the City criteria in Subsections 4.118, 4.131, 4.155, 4.171, 4.177 and 4.140.  

• Request B – Stage II (DB12-0071): 
As demonstrated in findings B1 through B34, with conditions of approval 
referenced therein, the proposed Site Design Review plans (architecture and 
landscaping) meet the City criteria in Subsections 4.118, 4.131 and 4.140. 

• Request C – Class 3 Site Design Review (DB12-0072): 
As demonstrated in findings C1 through C22, the proposed Master Sign Plan 
modification with proposed conditions referenced herein meets the City 
criteria in Subsections 4.156, 4.400, and 4.421. 

• Request D-Height Waiver (DB12-0073): 
As demonstrated in findings D1 through D2, the proposed waiver with 
proposed conditions referenced herein meets the City criteria in Subsections 
4.400, and 4.421. 

• Request E-Type B Tree Removal (TR13-0002): 
As demonstrated in findings E1 through E11, the proposed waiver with proposed 
conditions referenced herein meets the City criteria in Subsections 4.600. 

 

 
CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  

Staff has reviewed the applicant’s analysis of compliance with the applicable criteria.  Staff finds 
that the analysis satisfactorily demonstrates compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and 
the Planning and Land Development Ordinance.  The Staff report adopts the applicant’s 
responses as Findings of Fact, except as noted in the Conclusionary Findings, and modified by 
proposed Conditions of Approval.  Based on the Findings of Fact and information included in 
this Staff Report, and information received from a duly advertised public hearing, Staff 
recommends that the Development Review Board approve the proposed applications (DB12-
0070, DB12-0071, DB12-0072, DB12-0073 and TR13-0002), together with the following 
conditions: 

 
Page 7 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 4 of 36 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR REQUESTS ‘A’ – ‘E’:  
 
The application and supporting documents are hereby adopted for approval with the 
following conditions:  
 
PD  
BD  
NR   
FD 
 

= 
= 
= 
= 

Planning Division Conditions 
Building Division Conditions 
Natural Resources Conditions 
Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue 

A.  DB12-0070: Modification to the Stage I Master Plan  
B.  DB12-0071: Stage II 
C.  DB12-0072: Site Design Review 
D.  DB12-0073: Waiver 
E.  TR13-0002: Type B Tree Removal Permit 

 
 

Planning Division Conditions: 

Request A – DB12-0070: Stage I Modification to Master Plan 

PDA 1. On the basis of findings A1 through A14, this action approves the Stage I 
Master Plan modification to install a zip line and associated 74 foot support 
tower as well as other concept plans to expand the use in the future, as submitted 
with this application, approved by the Development Review Board, and stamped 
“Approved Planning Division”, unless altered by a subsequent Board approval, 
or with minor revisions approved by the Planning Director under a Class I 
administrative review process. 

PDA 2. Should the operations of this project by either the owner or future tenants fail to 
meet any performance standards of Subsection 4.135(.05) of the City’s 
Development Code, the property owner and/or future tenant(s) shall seek 
approval from the Planning Division for the City of Wilsonville. 

 
 

Building Division Conditions: 

Request A-D – DB12-0070-73  

No comments 
 
 

Natural Resources Division Conditions: 

Request A-D - DB12-0070-73 

No comments 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 8 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 5 of 36 
 

Planning Division Conditions: 

Request B – DB12-0071:  Stage II  

PDB 1. The approved final plan and stage development schedule shall control the 
issuance of all building permits and shall restrict the nature, location and design 
of all uses.  Minor changes in an approved preliminary or final development 
plan may be approved by the Planning Director through the Class I 
Administrative Review Process if such changes are consistent with the purposes 
and general character of the development plan. All other modifications, 
including extension or revision of the stage development schedule, shall be 
processed in the same manner as the original application and shall be subject to 
the same procedural requirements. 

PDB 2. The applicant/owner shall provide the general contractor for the proposed 
project with a copy of the approved plans and conditions of approval adopted by 
the City.   

PDB 3.   The operation of the zip line amusement ride shall be prohibited between the   
   hours of 10 p.m. and the regular opening time with the exception of 25 nights a   
   year where the zip line is allowed to run 24 hours a day with prior notification   
   to adjacent neighbors and property owners. (See Finding B19) 

 

Planning Division Conditions: 

Request C – DB12-0072:  Class 3 Site Design Review 

PDC 1.   The applicant/owner shall develop the Site Design Review Plans in substantial   
               compliance with the plans approved by the DRB, unless altered with Board    
               approval, or minor revisions are approved by the Planning Director under a  
               Class I administrative review process. (See Finding C3) 
PDC 2. All equipment shall be inconspicuous and designed to be screened from off-site 

view. This includes, to the greatest extent possible, private utilities such as 
natural gas and electricity. The City reserves the right to require further 
screening of the equipment and utilities if they should be visible from off-site 
after occupancy is granted.  (See Finding B28 and C17) 

 
 

Planning Division Conditions: 

Request D – DB12-0073:  Height Waiver 

No conditions 
 

Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue Conditions: 

Request D – DB12-0073: Waiver   

 
Page 9 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 6 of 36 
 

FDD 1.   Training-The manufacturer or designated representative shall provide the fire 
district with on-site training surrounding emergency operation procedures. 
 
 

Planning Division Conditions: 

Request E – TR13-0002:  Type B Tree Removal Permit 

PDE 1. The applicant/owner shall allow Planning Division staff access to the subject 
properties as necessary for tree related observations including verifying 
information provided by the application, observe site conditions, and verifying 
the terms and conditions of tree removal permits are followed. (See Finding E1) 

PDE 2. This approval for removal applies only to the two (2) trees identified in the 
Applicant’s submitted materials. All other trees on the property shall be 
maintained unless removal is approved through separate application. The 
applicant shall replace one Callery Pear tree onsite and shall pay into the City’s 
tree fund for the other tree. 

PDE 3.  Trees planted as replacement of the two (2) removed trees shall be staked, 
fertilized and mulched, and shall be guaranteed by the permit grantee or the 
grantee’s successors-in-interest for two (2) years after the planting date. A 
“guaranteed” tree that dies or becomes diseased during that time shall be 
replaced. (See Finding E8) 

PDE 4.    All trees to be planted shall consist of nursery stock that meets requirements of 
the American Association of Nurserymen (AAN) American Standards for 
Nursery Stock (ANSI Z60.1) for top grade. Tree shall be approximately two 
inch (2”) caliper. 

PDE 5.    Solvents, building material, construction equipment, soil, or irrigated 
landscaping, shall not be placed within the drip line of any preserved tree, 
unless a plan for such construction activity has been approved by the Planning 
Director or Development Review Board based upon the recommendations of an 
arborist.  

PDE 6.    Before and during development, land clearing, filling or any land alteration the 
applicant shall erect and maintain suitable tree protective barriers meeting the 
specifications shown in Drawing Number: R-1155 of the City’s Public Works 
Standards.  

PDE 7.      Following performance required by Conditions Numbered PDE1 through 
PDE6, above, the Applicant shall submit evidence of completion of all required 
improvements within 30 days of completion to the Planning Division 
staff.  Such evidence shall be either:  a)  dated photographs of each required 
improvement, sufficient in detail to enable confirmation of compliance with 
required conditions; or, b)  request on-site inspection of all improvements by the 
Planning Division staff by doing one of the following: 
i. Send a request for inspection via email to planning@ci.wilsonville.or.us, 

identifying the case-file number of this action (TR13-0002) and the date of 
completion; or, 

ii. Send a request for inspection via regular U.S. Mail, identifying the case-

 
Page 10 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 7 of 36 
 

file number of this action (TR13-0002) and the date of completion.  Send 
such mail to Planning Division; City of Wilsonville; 29799 SW Town 
Center Loop East; Wilsonville, OR  97070; or, 

iii. Phone such request to the Planning Division staff at 503-682-4960, 
identifying the case-file number of this action (TR13-0002) and the date of 
completion. 

 
Page 11 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 8 of 36 
 

MASTER EXHIBITS LIST: 
 
The following exhibits are hereby entered into the public record by the Development 
Review Board as confirmation of its consideration of the application as submitted. This is 
the master exhibits list that includes exhibits for Planning Case Files DB12-0070, DB12-
0071, DB12-0072, DB12-0073, and TR13-0002. 
 
A. Staff’s Written and Graphic Materials: 
 A1.  Staff Report: 
 Findings of Fact for Requests A through E 
 Proposed Conditions of Approval for requests A through E 
 Conclusionary Findings for requests A through E 
      A2. Additional Conditions of Approval for 92 PC 05 
      A3. Staff’s Powerpoint 
 
B. Applicant’s Written and Graphic Materials: 
 B1. Applicant’s Narrative; dated 1/4/2013 
 (NOTEBOOK SUBMITTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER) 
 
  B 1.2 Application Form; dated 11/29/2012 
   B 1.3 FAA Beacon Lighting cut-sheet; dated 1/7/2013 
  B 1.4 Color and Materials; dated 1/7/2013 
 
 B2. Plan Set (full size): 

Sheet Title 
Surrounding Building Height Exhibit 
Preliminary Site Plan 
Preliminary Assembly-Complete Ride 

 
C. Development Review Team Correspondence and Materials: 

C1. Memo from D. Walters, Building Plans Examiner; dated 1/18 /2013 
C2. Memo from Steve Adams, Deputy City Engineer; dated 1/16/2013 
C3. Letter from D. DeBois; Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue; dated 1/25/2013 
C4.  Table from City Public Works Department; dated 1/24/2013 
C5. Letter from Oregon Department of Aviation; dated 1/15/2013 

 
D. General Correspondence: 
 D1.  Letters (neither For nor Against): Holland Partners; dated 2/11/2013 

D2.  Letters (In Favor): None submitted 
D3.  Letters (Opposed): None submitted 

 
Page 12 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 9 of 36 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
1. Statutory Timeline: 

The statutory 120-day time limit applies to this application. The application was 
received on November 29, 2012.  On December 10, 2012, staff conducted a 
completeness review within the statutorily allowed 30-day review period, and, on 
January 7, 2013, the applicant submitted new materials.  On January 9, 2013, the 
application was deemed complete.  The City must render a final decision for the 
request, including any appeals, by May 9, 2013. 
 

2. Adjacent land uses: 

 
3. Comprehensive Plan and Zone Maps: The site has a Comprehensive Plan 

designation of Commercial and is zoned Planned Development Commercial-Town 
Center (PDC-TC)-(Service Commercial) 

 
4. Previous Planning Approvals:  

 
03DB32: Stage I Modification, Stage II Final, Site Design Review for bldg. addition 
03DB15: One-year TUP for tent 
02DB17:  One-year TUP for tent 
01DB21: One-year TUP for tent 
00DB27: One-year TUP for tent 
99DB19: One-year TUP for tent 
98DB10: One-year Temporary Use Permit for tent 
95SR02: Sign Review 
95DR07: Parking lot improvements 
94DR07: Review condition of approval 
94DR14: Site Design Review for building addition 
92DR32: Wilsonville Family Fun Center, Site Design Review 
92PC05: Stage I, Stage II for Family Fun Center 

 
5. Natural Characteristics: The subject property is of generally flat terrain.  

Vegetation is limited to existing landscape and trees throughout the site, within the 
existing parking lot and along the site’s southern street frontage.    

 
6. Streets: The subject property is located on the north side of SW Town Center Loop 

W. Access to the property is by Town Center Loop W. 
 

Compass Direction Zone: Existing Use: 
North:  PDR Jory Trail Apartments 
East:  PDC-TC  Napa Auto Parts 
South:  PDC-TC  Commercial services 
West:  n/a Interstate 5 

 
Page 13 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 10 of 36 
 

7. Review Procedures: The required public notices have been sent and all proper 
notification procedures have been satisfied. In addition, staff sent notifications to 
apartment dwellers in the Jory Trail Apartments facing the proposed development. 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
Section 4.008 Application Procedures-In General 
 
Review Criteria: This section lists general application procedures applicable to a 
number of types of land use applications and also lists unique features of Wilsonville’s 
development review process. 
Finding: These criteria are met.  
Details of Finding: The application is being processed in accordance with the applicable 
general procedures of this Section. 
 
Section 4.009 Who May Initiate Application 
 
Review Criterion: “Except for a Specific Area Plan (SAP), applications involving 
specific sites may be filed only by the owner of the subject property, by a unit of 
government that is in the process of acquiring the property, or by an agent who has been 
authorized by the owner, in writing, to apply.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The application has been submitted on behalf of Wilsonville Land 
Partnership, dba Wilsonville Family Fun Center, Darren Harmon, General Manager, with 
the help of the consultant firm, SFA Design Group, specifically Ben Altman.  The 
property owner, through signature on the development application, has given approval for 
submission of the application.  This provision is met.  
 
Subsection 4.010 (.02) Pre-Application Conference 
 
Review Criteria: This section lists the pre-application process 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: Pre-application conference was held on October 11, 2012 in 
accordance with this subsection. 
 
Subsection 4.011 (.02) B. Lien Payment before Application Approval 
 
Review Criterion: “City Council Resolution No. 796 precludes the approval of any 
development application without the prior payment of all applicable City liens for the 
subject property. Applicants shall be encouraged to contact the City Finance Department 
to verify that there are no outstanding liens. If the Planning Director is advised of 
outstanding liens while an application is under consideration, the Director shall advise the 
applicant that payments must be made current or the existence of liens will necessitate 
denial of the application.” 

 
Page 14 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 11 of 36 
 

Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: No applicable liens exist for the subject property. The application 
can thus move forward. 
 
Section 4.014 Burden of Proof is on the Applicant 
 
Review Criterion: “The burden of proving that the necessary findings of fact can be 
made for approval of any land use or development application rests with the applicant in 
the case. In the case of an appeal, the burden of proof rests with the appellant.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant has provided the necessary findings of fact for 
approval with conditions of the requested development applications in accordance with 
this Section. 
 
Subsection 4.035 (.04) A. General Site Development Permit Submission Requirements 
 
Review Criteria: “An application for a Site Development Permit shall consist of the 
materials specified as follows, plus any other materials required by this Code.” Listed 1. 
through 6. j. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant has provided all of the applicable general submission 
requirements contained in this subsection. 
 
Section 4.110 Zoning-Generally 
 
Review Criteria: “The use of any building or premises or the construction of any 
development shall be in conformity with the regulations set forth in this Code for each 
Zoning District in which it is located, except as provided in Sections 4.189 through 
4.192.” “The General Regulations listed in Sections 4.154 through 4.199 shall apply to all 
zones unless the text indicates otherwise.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The subject properties are designated Commercial on the 
Comprehensive Plan map and zoned Planned Development Commercial-Town Center on 
the zoning map. The site is situated within an area identified on the Town Center Master 
Plan as being in the Service Commercial (SC) overlay zone. In 1992, the Stage I Master 
Plan and Stage II Site Development Plans (Resolution 92PC14) were approved by the 
Planning Commission. The Planning Commission and City Council approvals allow the 
recreational uses within the SC (Service Commercial) overlay zone. These approvals 
further amended the Town Center Master Plan to include privately operated recreational 
centers as a recommended use in the SC overlay zone. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 15 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 12 of 36 
 

REQUEST A 
DB12-0071: STAGE I MASTER PLAN MODIFICATION 

CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS 

 
Planned Development Regulations 
 
Subsection 4.140 (.01) Purpose of Planned Development Regulations 
 
A1. Review Criterion: The proposed revised Stage I Master Plan shall be consistent 

with the Planned Development Regulations purpose statement. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant asserts the application is consistent with the 
purpose statement and staff concurs. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.02) Lot Qualifications for Planned Developments 
 
A2. Review Criterion: “Planned Development may be established on lots which are 

suitable for and of a size to be planned and developed in a manner consistent with 
the purposes and objectives of Section 4.140.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The properties owned by the applicant subject to this 
application are of sufficient size to be developed in a manner consistent the 
purposes and objectives of Section 4.140. 

 
A3. Review Criteria: “Any site designated for development in the Comprehensive 

Plan may be developed as a Planned Development, provided that it is zoned “PD.”  
All sites which are greater than two (2) acres in size, and designated in the 
Comprehensive Plan for commercial, residential, or industrial use shall be 
developed as Planned Developments, unless approved for other uses permitted by 
the Development Code.”   
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The subject properties are greater than 2 acres, are designated 
for commercial development in the Comprehensive Plan, and are zoned Planned 
Development Commercial-Town Center. The properties have been and continue to 
be developed as a planned development in accordance with this subsection.  

 
Subsection 4.140 (.03) Ownership Requirements for Submitting Planned Development 
Application 
 
A4. Review Criterion: “The tract or tracts of land included in a proposed Planned 

Development must be in one (1) ownership or control or the subject of a joint 
application by the owners of all the property included.”  
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The land included in the current application is under the single 

 
Page 16 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 13 of 36 
 

ownership of Wilsonville Land Partnership, dba Wilsonville Family Fun Center 
and an authorized representative, Darren Harmon, has signed the application.  

 
Subsection 4.140 (.04) Professional Design Team Required for Planned Developments 
 
A5. Review Criteria: “The applicant for all proposed Planned Developments shall 

certify that the professional services of the appropriate professionals have been 
utilized in the planning process for development. One of the professional 
consultants chosen by the applicant shall be designated to be responsible for 
conferring with the planning staff with respect to the concept and details of the 
plan.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: As can be found in the applicant’s submitted materials, 
appropriate professionals have been involved in the planning and permitting 
process. Ben Altman of SFA Design Group has been designated the coordinator for 
the planning portion of the project.  

 
Subsection 4.140 (.05) Planned Development Permit Process 
 
A6. Review Criteria: “All parcels of land exceeding two (2) acres in size that are to be 

used for residential, commercial or industrial development, shall, prior to the 
issuance of any building permit: 
1. Be zoned for planned development; 
2. Obtain a planned development permit; and 
3. Obtain Development Review Board, or, on appeal, City Council 

approval.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The subject property is greater than 2 acres, is designated for 
commercial development in the Comprehensive Plan, and is zoned Planned 
Development Commercial-Town Center. The property has been and continues to be 
developed as a planned development in accordance with this subsection.  

 
Subsection 4.140 (.06) Stage I Master Plan Consistent with Comprehensive Plan 
 
A7. Review Criteria: “The planning staff shall prepare a report of its findings and 

conclusions as to whether the use contemplated is consistent with the land use 
designated on the Comprehensive Plan.” “The applicant may proceed to apply for 
Stage I - Preliminary Approval - upon determination by either staff or the 
Development Review Board that the use contemplated is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan.”  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The proposed project, as found elsewhere in this report, 
complies with the Planned Development Commercial-Town Center zoning 
designation, which implements the Comprehensive Plan designation of 
‘Commercial’ for this property. All other applicable Development Code criteria 

 
Page 17 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 14 of 36 
 

that implement the Comprehensive Plan are being met, or will be met as conditions 
of approval. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.07) Stage I Master Plan Application Requirements and Hearing 
Process 
 
A8. Review Criteria: This subsection establishes that the Development Review Board 

shall consider a Stage I Master Plan after completion or submission of a variety of 
application requirements. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: Review of the proposed revised Stage I Master Plan has been 
scheduled for a public hearing before the Development Review Board in 
accordance with this subsection and the applicant has met all the applicable 
submission requirements as follows: 
• The properties affected by the revised Stage I Master Plan are under the sole 

ownership of Wilsonville Land Partnership, dba Wilsonville Family Fun Center 
and an authorized representative, Darren Harmon, has signed the application. 

• The application for a revised Stage I Master Plan has been submitted on a form 
prescribed by the City.  

• The professional design team and coordinator have been identified. See Finding 
A5. 

• The applicant has stated the various uses involved in the Master Plan and their 
locations. 

• Boundary survey and topography plans were submitted with 92DR32. 
• A tabulation of the land area to be devoted to various uses has been provided 

within the narrative. 
• A project phasing plan has been provided, see applicant’s narrative and the 

specific timeframe for completion is between 1-7 years. Buildings in the Master 
Plan area have already been constructed. The applicant is and will be requesting 
Stage II Master Plan for all new development on the site concurrent with this 
application. See Request B. 

• Any necessary performance bonds will be required. 
• Site Design Review for the new development is requested with this application. 

See Request C. 
• A Waiver is requested for height. See Request D. 
• A Type B Tree Removal is requested for removal of two trees. See Request E. 

 
Section 4.023 Expiration of Development Approvals 
 
A9. Review Criterion: “Except for Specific Area Plans (SAP), land use and 

development permits and approvals, including both Stage I and Stage II Planned 
Development approvals, shall be valid for a maximum of two years, unless 
extended as provided in this Section.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

 
Page 18 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 15 of 36 
 

Details of Finding: It is understood the requested approval will expire after two (2) 
years unless extended. 

 
Standards Applying to Commercial Development in Any Zone 
 
Subsection 4.116 (.01)-(.10)  
 
A10. Review Criterion: “Commercial developments shall be planned in the form of 

centers or complexes as provided in the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  As noted in 
the Comprehensive Plan, Wilsonville’s focus on centers or complexes is intended 
to limit strip commercial development.”  
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The subject site is an established Family Fun Center. It does 
not result in strip commercial development. The applicant is proposing a series of 
modernization improvements to the Family Fun Center. The improvements will be 
phased over the next 1-7 years. They are all consistent with the overall 
entertainment function provided by the Fun Center. 

 
Subsection 4.131.05 (.01) Purpose of Planned Development Commercial-Town Center 
 
A11. Review Criterion: “The purpose of this zoning is to permit and encourage a Town 

Center, adhering to planned commercial and planned development concepts...” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The proposed uses are consistent with the purpose of the PDC-
TC zone as they include entertainment uses. The prior approvals allowed for 
outdoor activities as being consistent with the allowed entertainment function being 
provided. 

 
Subsection 4.131.05 (.03) Example of uses that are typically recommended in PDC-TC 
Zone 
 
A12. Review Criteria: Uses that are typically recommended: Listed A. through E. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The existing uses include the following listed in this 
subsection: Entertainment under A. 

 
Subsection 4.135 (.04) Block and Access Standards in PDC-TC Zone 
 
A13. Review Criterion: “The PDC-TC zone shall be subject to the same block and 

access standards as the PDC zone, Section 4.131(.02) and (.03).” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The previously approved block spacing and access is not being 
changed. The Stage I Master Plan area will continue to be in compliance with these 
standards including adequate connectivity.  

 

 
Page 19 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 16 of 36 
 

SUMMARY FINDINGS FOR DB12-0070 – Stage I Modification to a Final 
Development Plan: 

A14. The applicant’s response findings demonstrate that the proposed Stage I 
Modification to a Final Development Plan should be approved.   

 
 

REQUEST B 
DB12-0071: STAGE II  

CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS 
Planned Development Regulations 
 
Subsection 4.140 (.01) Purpose of Planned Development Regulations 
 
B1. Review Criterion: The proposed Stage II Final Plan shall be consistent with the 

Planned Development Regulations purpose statement. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: Based on the information provided by the applicant in their 
narrative, staff is of the professional opinion that the purpose of the planned 
development regulations is met by the proposed Stage II Final Plan. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.02) Lot Qualifications for Planned Developments 
 
B2. Review Criterion: “Planned Development may be established on lots which are 

suitable for and of a size to be planned and developed in a manner consistent with 
the purposes and objectives of Section 4.140.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The lot of the subject development site is of sufficient size to 
be developed in a manner consistent with the purposes and objectives of Section 
4.140. 

 
B3. Review Criteria: “Any site designated for development in the Comprehensive 

Plan may be developed as a Planned Development, provided that it is zoned ‘PD.’ 
All sites which are greater than two (2) acres in size, and designated in the 
Comprehensive Plan for commercial, residential, or industrial use shall be 
developed as Planned Developments, unless approved for other uses permitted by 
the Development Code.”   
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The development site is greater than 2 acres, is designated for 
commercial development in the Comprehensive Plan, and is zoned Planned 
Development Commercial-Town Center. The property will be developed as a 
component of a planned development in accordance with this subsection.  

 
 
 
 

 
Page 20 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 17 of 36 
 

Subsection 4.140 (.03) Ownership Requirements for Submitting Planned Development 
Application 
 
B4. Review Criterion: “The tract or tracts of land included in a proposed Planned 

Development must be in one (1) ownership or control or the subject of a joint 
application by the owners of all the property included.“ 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The land included in the proposed Stage II Final Plan is under 
the single ownership of Wilsonville Land Partnership, dba Wilsonville Family Fun 
Center, Darren Harmon, General Manager. The property owner, through signature 
on the development application, has given approval for submission of the 
application.   

 
Subsection 4.140 (.04) Professional Design Team Required for Planned Developments 
 
B5. Review Criteria: “The applicant for all proposed Planned Developments shall 

certify that the professional services of the appropriate professionals have been 
utilized in the planning process for development. One of the professional 
consultants chosen by the applicant shall be designated to be responsible for 
conferring with the planning staff with respect to the concept and details of the 
plan.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: As can be found in the applicant’s submitted materials, 
appropriate professionals have been involved in the planning and permitting 
process. Ben Altman of SFA Design Group has been designated the coordinator for 
the planning portion of the project. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.05) Planned Development Permit Process 
 
B6. Review Criteria: “All parcels of land exceeding two (2) acres in size that are to be 

used for residential, commercial or industrial development, shall, prior to the 
issuance of any building permit: 
1. Be zoned for planned development; 
2. Obtain a planned development permit; and 
3. Obtain Development Review Board, or, on appeal, City Council    
              approval.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The subject property is greater than 2 acres, is designated for 
commercial development in the Comprehensive Plan, and is zoned Planned 
Development Commercial-Town Center. The property has been and continues to be 
developed as a planned development in accordance with this subsection.  

 
 
 
 

 
Page 21 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 18 of 36 
 

Stage II Final Plan Submission Requirements and Process 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) A. Timing of Submission 

 
B7. Review Criterion: “Unless an extension has been granted by the Development 

Review Board, within two (2) years after the approval or modified approval of a 
preliminary development plan (Stage I), the applicant shall file with the City 
Planning Department a final plan for the entire development or when submission in 
stages has been authorized pursuant to Section 4.035 for the first unit of the 
development” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant is submitting a Stage II Master Plan for a portion 
of the proposed modifications, concurrently with a revised Stage I Master Plan.  

 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) B. Determination by Development Review Board 
 
B8. Review Criterion: “the Development Review Board shall determine whether the 

proposal conforms to the permit criteria set forth in this Code, and shall approve, 
conditionally approve, or disapprove the application”. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The Development Review Board is considering all applicable 
permit criteria set forth in the Planning and Land Development Code and staff is 
recommending the Development Review Board approve the application with 
conditions of approval. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) C. Conformance with Stage I and Additional Submission 
Requirements 
 
B9. Review Criteria: “The final plan shall conform in all major respects with the 

approved preliminary development plan, and shall include all information included 
in the preliminary plan plus the following:” listed 1. through 6. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant states, and staff concurs, that the Stage II plans 
substantially conform to the proposed revised Stage I Master plan. The applicant 
has provided the required drawings and other documents showing all the additional 
information required by this subsection. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) D. Stage II Final Plan Detail 
 
B10. Review Criterion: “The final plan shall be sufficiently detailed to indicate fully the 

ultimate operation and appearance of the development or phase of development.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant has provided sufficiently detailed information to 
indicate fully the ultimate operation and appearance of the development, including 
a detailed site plan, elevation drawings, and material information. 

 

 
Page 22 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 19 of 36 
 

 
 
 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) E. Submission of Legal Documents 
 
B11. Review Criterion: “Copies of legal documents required by the Development 

Review Board for dedication or reservation of public facilities, or for the creation 
of a non-profit homeowner’s association, shall also be submitted.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: No additional legal documentation is required for dedication or 
reservation of public facilities. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) I. and Section 4.023 Expiration of Stage II Approval 
 
B12. Review Criterion: This subsection and section identify the period for which Stage 

II approvals are valid. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The Stage II Approval, along with other associated 
applications, will expire two (2) years after approval, unless an extension is 
approved in accordance with these subsections. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) J. 1. Planned Development Permit Requirements: Conformance 
with Comprehensive Plan and other Applicable Plans and Ordinances 
 
B13. Review Criteria: “The location, design, size and uses, both separately and as a 

whole, are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, and with any other applicable 
plan, development map or Ordinance adopted by the City Council.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The property is part of the Wilsonville Town Center. The 
location, design, and size are typical of the commercial zone and the surrounding 
development within the Wilsonville Town Center. To staff’s knowledge, the 
location, design, size, and uses are consistent with other applicable plans, maps, 
and ordinances, or will be by specific conditions of approval. The applicant has 
applied for a Waiver to Height, see Request D. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) J. 2. Planned Development Permit Requirements: Traffic 
Concurrency 
 
B14. Review Criteria: “That the location, design, size and uses are such that traffic 

generated by the development at the most probable used intersection(s) can be 
accommodated safely and without congestion in excess of Level of Service D, as 
defined in the Highway Capacity Manual published by the National Highway 
Research Board, on existing or immediately planned arterial or collector streets and 
will, in the case of commercial or industrial developments, avoid traversing local 
streets.  Immediately planned arterial and collector streets are those listed in the 

 
Page 23 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 20 of 36 
 

City’s adopted Capital Improvement Program, for which funding has been 
approved or committed, and that are scheduled for completion within two years of 
occupancy of the development or four year if they are an associated crossing, 
interchange, or approach street  improvement to  Interstate 5.” Additional qualifiers 
and criteria listed a. through e. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: A traffic impact study waiver was submitted for the proposed 
development and was subsequently approved by the City of Wilsonville 
Engineering Division. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) J. 3. Planned Development Permit Requirements: Facilities and 
Services Concurrency 
 
B15. Review Criteria: “That the location, design, size and uses are such that the 

residents or establishments to be accommodated will be adequately served by 
existing or immediately planned facilities and services.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: Facilities and services, including utilities, are available and 
sufficient to serve the proposed development. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) L. Adherence to Approved Plan and Modification Thereof 
 
B16. Review Criteria: “The applicant shall agree in writing to be bound, for her/himself 

and her/his successors in interest, by the conditions prescribed for approval of a 
development.  The approved final plan and stage development schedule shall 
control the issuance of all building permits and shall restrict the nature, location 
and design of all uses.  Minor changes in an approved preliminary or final 
development plan may be approved by the Director of Planning if such changes are 
consistent with the purposes and general character of the development plan.   All 
other modifications, including extension or revision of the stage development 
schedule, shall be processed in the same manner as the original application and 
shall be subject to the same procedural requirements.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval 
PDB 1. 
Details of Finding: Condition of Approval PDB 1 ensures adherence to approved 
plans except for minor revisions by the Planning Director. 

 
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning: Planned Development Commercial 
B17. Review Criterion: This subsection lists a number of requirements for commercial 

development such as setback, lot size, lot coverage, and street frontage 
requirements.  

            Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The subject property contains one zoning district – PDC-TC. 
The Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property as Commercial. 

 

 
Page 24 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 21 of 36 
 

Subsection 4.118.03(B): Waivers  
B18. Review Criteria: “Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.140 to the contrary, 

the Development Review Board, in order to implement the purposes and objectives 
of Section 4.140, and based on findings of fact supported by the record may” waive 
a number of standards as listed in A. through E.  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant is seeking a height waiver to the Planned 
Development Regulations of 35 feet for a 74’ tower. See Request D. 

 
Subsection 4.118 (.03) E. Other Requirements or Restrictions 
 
B19. Review Criteria: “Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.140 to the contrary, 

the Development Review Board, in order to implement the purposes and objectives 
of Section 4.140, and based on findings of fact supported by the record may adopt 
other requirements or restrictions, inclusive of, but not limited to, the following:” 
Listed 1. through 12. 
Finding: These criteria will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 3. 
Details of Finding: Under 92PC05, Condition #30, staff finds that City Council 
made an additional condition of approval regarding the operation of the batting 
cage. Because of the noise sensitivity of the adjacent residential to the north the 
hours of operation were restricted. The previous condition prohibited operation of 
the batting cage between 10 p.m. and the regular opening time. Staff finds that the 
zip line amusement ride is a similar type-use related to noise and will be located 
much closer to the residential than the batting cage. Limiting the operation time 
will give assurance that this amusement ride will not be a nuisance to adjacent 
residents regarding noise. Therefore, staff finds that the operation of the zip line 
amusement ride shall be prohibited between the hours of 10 p.m. and the regular 
opening time. (See Condition of Approval PDB 3 and Exhibit A2) 

 
Subsection 4.118 (.04) Effect of Determination of Compliance and Conditions of 
Approval on Development Cost 
 
B20. Review Criteria: “The Planning Director and Development Review Board shall, in 

making their determination of compliance in attaching conditions, consider the 
effects of this action on availability and cost.  The provisions of this section shall 
not be used in such a manner that additional conditions, either singularly or 
cumulatively, have the effect of unnecessarily increasing the cost of development.  
However, consideration of these factors shall not prevent the Board from imposing 
conditions of approval necessary to meet the minimum requirements of the 
Comprehensive Plan and Code.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: It is staff’s professional opinion that the determination of 
compliance or attached conditions do not unnecessarily increase the cost of 
development, and no evidence has been submitted to the contrary. 

 

 
Page 25 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 22 of 36 
 

Parking and Loading 
 
Subsection 4.155 (.02) General Parking Provisions 
 
B21. Review Criteria: This subsection lists a number of general provisions for parking. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The parking lot and access drives already exist for the Family 
Fun Center.  
 

Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 8. Parking Minimum and Maximum 
 
B22. Review Criteria: “Tables 5, below, shall be used to determine the minimum and 

maximum parking standards for various land uses.  The minimum number of 
required parking spaces shown on Tables 5 shall be determined by rounding to the 
nearest whole parking space.”   
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant has submitted summary findings with regard to 
parking. The applicant notes that 275 off-street parking spaces presently exist on 
the site.  The applicant has proposed the reduction of two parking spaces. Based on 
the most recent approval, 03DB32, 222 parking spaces are required for the Family 
Fun Center. With the reduction of 2 spaces, the site will be providing 273 spaces. 
This standard is satisfied by the proposed off-street parking. 

 
Natural Features 
 
Section 4.171 Protection of Natural Features and Other Resources 

 
B23. Review Criteria: This section provides for the protection of a number of natural 

features and other resources including: general terrain preparation, hillsides, trees 
and wooded areas, high voltage powerline easements and rights of way and 
petroleum pipeline easements, earth movement hazard areas, soil hazard areas, 
historic resources, and cultural resources. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The site was developed as a Family Fun Center in 1994.  
Cultivated landscape materials have been installed, but no natural features remain, 
as a result. The majority of existing trees are being preserved as part of the 
development. See Arborists Report in Exhibit B1-Applicant’s Narrative.  

 
Public Safety and Crime Prevention 
 
Subsection 4.175 (.01) Design to Deter Crime and Ensure Public Safety 
 
B24. Review Criteria: “All developments shall be designed to deter crime and insure 

public safety.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

 
Page 26 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 23 of 36 
 

Details of Finding: According to the applicant the development has been designed 
to deter crime and insure public safety. The site has existing surveillance. No new 
lighting is proposed besides the FAA obstruction beacon at the top of the tower. 
See Exhibit B1.3 for details of the FAA obstruction beacon. 

 
Subsection 4.175 (.02) Addressing and Directional Signing 
 
B25. Review Criteria: “Addressing and directional signing shall be designed to assure 

identification of all buildings and structures by emergency response personnel, as 
well as the general public.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: All the buildings are clearly visible from the adjacent right-of-
way from which they can be accessed. The address signs are existing and are easy 
to identify. 

 
Subsection 4.175 (.03) Surveillance and Police Access 
 
B26. Review Criterion: “Areas vulnerable to crime shall be designed to allow 

surveillance.  Parking and loading areas shall be designed for access by police in 
the course of routine patrol duties.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The parking and loading areas are easily assessable and no 
areas of particular vulnerability to crime have been identified warranting additional 
surveillance.  

 
Subsection 4.175 (.04) Lighting to Discourage Crime 
 
B27. Review Criterion: “Exterior lighting shall be designed and oriented to discourage 

crime.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The lighting on the site is existing, the applicant does not 
propose any new lighting besides the FAA obstruction beacon at the top of the 
tower. See Exhibit B1.3. 

 
Landscaping Standards 
 
Subsection 4.176 (.01) Purpose of Landscape, Screening, and Buffering 
 
B28. Review Criteria: “This Section consists of landscaping and screening standards 

and regulations for use throughout the City.  The regulations address materials, 
placement, layout, and timing of installation.  The City recognizes the ecological 
and economic value of landscaping and requires the use of landscaping and other 
screening or buffering to:” Listed A. through K. 
Finding: These criteria will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDC 2. 

 
Page 27 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 24 of 36 
 

Details of Finding: In complying with the various landscape standards in Section 
4.176 the applicant does not propose any new landscaping. Adequate screening is 
proposed around the mechanical equipment of the tower. The applicant proposes a 
chain-link fence with green slats. See Exhibit B1.4-Colors & Materials. 

 
Section 4.177 Street Improvement Standards 
 
Subsection 4.177 (.01) (A)-(B) 
 
B29. Review Criteria: “Except as specifically approved by the Development Review 

Board, all street and access improvements shall conform to the Transportation 
Systems Plan and the Public Works Standards.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The site abuts SW Town Center Loop W. Street improvements 
currently exist along the frontage of the site. SW Town Center Loop W is classified 
by the City’s Transportation System Plan (TSP) as a Major Arterial.  

 
Subsection 4.177 (.01) E. Access Drives and Travel Lanes 
 
B30. Review Criteria: This subsection sets standards for access drives and travel lanes. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: Access points are existing to the development and include two 
(2) driveway approaches on SW Town Center Loop W.   

 
Subsection 4.177 (.01) F. Corner or Clear Visions Area 
 
B31. Review Criteria: “A clear vision area which meets the Public Works Standards 

shall be maintained on each corner of property at the intersection of any two streets, 
a street and a railroad or a street and a driveway.  However, the following items 
shall be exempt from meeting this requirement:” Listed a. through e. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: Clear vision areas and vertical clearance have been reviewed 
by the City Engineering Division to assure compliance with the Section 4.177. 

 
Sections 4.199.20 Outdoor Lighting 
 
B32. Review Criterion: This section states that the outdoor lighting ordinance is 

applicable to “Installation of new exterior lighting systems in public facility, 
commercial, industrial and multi-family housing projects with common areas” and 
“Major additions or modifications (as defined in this Section) to existing exterior 
lighting systems in public facility, commercial, industrial and multi-family housing 
projects with common areas.” In addition the exempt luminaires and lighting 
systems are listed. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

 
Page 28 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 25 of 36 
 

Details of Finding: The applicant is not proposing any new lighting besides the 
required FAA obstruction beacon at the top of the tower. Spec sheets are included 
as Exhibit B1.3 

 
Sections 4.300-4.320 Underground Installation of Utilities 
 
B33. Review Criteria: These sections list requirements regarding the underground 

installation of utilities. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: There are no existing overhead facilities that require 
undergrounding as part of this development. All new utilities associated with the 
development are proposed to be installed underground. 

 
 
SUMMARY FINDINGS FOR DB12-0071 – Stage II Final Development Plan: 

B34. The applicant’s response findings demonstrate that the proposed Stage II Final 
Development Plan should be approved.   

 
 

 
REQUEST C 

DB12-0072: SITE DESIGN REVIEW 
CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS 

 
The applicant is requesting approval of Site Design Plans to install a 74’ support tower 
for a Zip Line amusement ride for the Wilsonville Family Fun Center. The details of the 
proposal are found beginning on page 1 of the compliance narrative (Exhibit B1).   
 
Site Design Review 
 
Subsection 4.400 (.01) Excessive Uniformity, Inappropriateness of Design, Etc. 
 
C1. Review Criteria: “Excessive uniformity, inappropriateness or poor design of the 

exterior appearance of structures and signs and the lack of proper attention to site 
development and landscaping in the business, commercial, industrial and certain 
residential areas of the City hinders the harmonious development of the City, 
impairs the desirability of residence, investment or occupation in the City, limits 
the opportunity to attain the optimum use in value and improvements, adversely 
affects the stability and value of property, produces degeneration of property in 
such areas and with attendant deterioration of conditions affecting the peace, health 
and welfare, and destroys a proper relationship between the taxable value of 
property and the cost of municipal services therefor.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: It is staff’s professional opinion that the proposed development 
will not result in excessive uniformity, inappropriateness or poor design, and the 

 
Page 29 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 26 of 36 
 

proper attention has been paid to site development. The 74 foot tower will be 
painted a tan color with green slats in the fencing for screening of mechanical 
equipment on the ground to blend it with the backdrop of large conifer trees. 

 
Subsection 4.400 (.02) Purposes of Objectives of Site Design Review 
 
C2. Review Criterion: “The City Council declares that the purposes and objectives of 

site development requirements and the site design review procedure are to:” Listed 
A through J. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: It is staff’s professional opinion that the applicant has provided 
sufficient information demonstrating compliance with the purposes and objectives 
of site design review. Among the information provided is a written response to 
these purposes and objectives on pages 31 through 32 of the applicant’s compliance 
narrative. (Exhibit B1) 

 
Section 4.420 Site Design Review-Jurisdiction and Power of the Board 
 
C3. Review Criteria: The section states the jurisdiction and power of the Development 

Review Board in relation to site design review including the application of the 
section, that development is required in accord with plans, and variance 
information. 
Finding: These criteria will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDC 1. 
Details of Finding: A condition of approval has been included to ensure 
construction, site development, and landscaping are carried out in substantial 
accord with the Development Review Board approved plans, drawings, sketches, 
and other documents. No building permits will be granted prior to development 
review board approval. No variances are requested from site development 
requirements. 

 
Subsection 4.421 (.01) Site Design Review-Design Standards 
 
C4. Review Criteria: “The following standards shall be utilized by the Board in 

reviewing the plans, drawings, sketches and other documents required for Site 
Design Review.  These standards are intended to provide a frame of reference for 
the applicant in the development of site and building plans as well as a method of 
review for the Board.  These standards shall not be regarded as inflexible 
requirements.  They are not intended to discourage creativity, invention and 
innovation. The specifications of one or more particular architectural styles is not 
included in these standards.” Listed A through G.   
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant has provided sufficient information 
demonstrating compliance with the standards of this subsection. Among the 
information provided is a written response to these standards on page 33 of their 
compliance narrative. (Exhibit B1) 

 
Page 30 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 27 of 36 
 

 
Subsection 4.421 (.02) Applicability of Design Standards to Various Site Features 
 
C5. Review Criteria: “The standards of review outlined in Sections (a) through (g) 

above shall also apply to all accessory buildings, structures, exterior signs and other 
site features, however related to the major buildings or structures.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: Design standards have been applied to the proposed structure, 
and other site features.  

 
Subsection 4.421 (.03) Objectives of Section 4.400 Serve as Additional Criteria and 

Standards 
 
C6. Review Criteria: “The Board shall also be guided by the purpose of Section 4.400, 

and such objectives shall serve as additional criteria and standards.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The purposes and objectives in Section 4.400 are being used as 
additional criteria and standards. See Finding C2 above. 

 
Subsection 4.421 (.05) Site Design Review-Conditions of Approval 
 
C7. Review Criterion: “The Board may attach certain development or use conditions 

in granting an approval that are determined necessary to insure the proper and 
efficient functioning of the development, consistent with the intent of the 
Comprehensive Plan, allowed densities and the requirements of this Code.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: Under 92PC05, Condition #30, staff finds that City Council 
made an additional condition of approval that the operation of the batting cage was 
prohibited between the hours of 10 p.m. and the regular opening time. (See Finding 
B19 above, Condition of Approval PDB 3 and Exhibit A2)  

 
Subsection 4.421 (.06) Color or Materials Requirements 
 
C8. Review Criterion: “The Board or Planning Director may require that certain paints 

or colors of materials be used in approving applications.  Such requirements shall 
only be applied when site development or other land use applications are being 
reviewed by the City.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: It is the professional opinion of staff that the proposed coloring 
is appropriate for the proposed development and no additional requirements are 
necessary.  

 
 
 
 

 
Page 31 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 28 of 36 
 

 
Section 4.430 Design of Trash and Recycling Enclosures 
 
C9. Review Criteria: “The following locations, design and access standards for mixed 

solid waste and recycling storage areas shall be applicable to the requirements of 
Section 4.179 of the Wilsonville City Code.” Listed (.02) A. through (.04) C. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant is not proposing any new trash enclosures. The 
existing enclosures were reviewed with the previous applications listed above. 

 
Section 4.440 Site Design Review-Procedures 
 
C10. Review Criteria: “A prospective applicant for a building or other permit who is 

subject to site design review shall submit to the Planning Department, in addition to 
the requirements of Section 4.035, the following:” Listed A through F. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant has submitted the required additional materials, 
as applicable. 

 
Section 4.442 Time Limit on Approval 
 
C11. Review Criterion: “Site design review approval shall be void after two (2) years 

unless a building permit has been issued and substantial development pursuant 
thereto has taken place; or an extension is granted by motion of the Board. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant has indicated that they will pursue development 
within two (2) years and it is understood that the approval will expire after 2 years 
if a building permit hasn’t been issued unless an extension has been granted by the 
board. 

 
Subsection 4.450 (.01) Landscape Installation or Bonding 
 
C12. Review Criterion: “All landscaping required by this section and approved by the 

Board shall be installed prior to issuance of occupancy permits, unless security 
equal to one hundred and ten percent (110%) of the cost of the landscaping as 
determined by the Planning Director is filed with the City assuring such installation 
within six (6) months of occupancy.  "Security" is cash, certified check, time 
certificates of deposit, assignment of a savings account or such other assurance of 
completion as shall meet with the approval of the City Attorney.  In such cases the 
developer shall also provide written authorization, to the satisfaction of the City 
Attorney, for the City or its designees to enter the property and complete the 
landscaping as approved.  If the installation of the landscaping is not completed 
within the six-month period, or within an extension of time authorized by the 
Board, the security may be used by the City to complete the installation.  Upon 

 
Page 32 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 29 of 36 
 

completion of the installation, any portion of the remaining security deposited with 
the City shall be returned to the applicant.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant is not proposing any new landscaping with this 
application.  

 
Parking 
 
Subsection 4.155 (.02) Provision and Maintenance of Off-Street Parking 
 
C13. Review Criteria: This subsection lists general provisions for parking, A. through 

O. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant is proposing a minor modification to the existing 
parking area by removing two parking spaces for the proposed tower. 

 
Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 1.-3. Landscaping of Parking Areas 
 
C14. Review Criteria: “Parking and loading or delivery areas shall be landscaped to 

minimize the visual dominance of the parking or loading area, as follows:” Listed 
1. through 3. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant is not proposing any new landscaping with this 
proposal. 

 
Landscaping 
 
Subsection 4.176 (.02) B. Landscape Standards and Compliance with Code 
 
C15. Review Criterion: “All landscaping and screening required by this Code must 

comply with all of the provisions of this Section, unless specifically waived or 
granted a Variance as otherwise provided in the Code.  The landscaping standards 
are minimum requirements; higher standards can be substituted as long as fence 
and vegetation-height limitations are met.  Where the standards set a minimum 
based on square footage or linear footage, they shall be interpreted as applying to 
each complete or partial increment of area or length” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: No waivers or variances to landscape standards have been 
requested. Thus all screening must comply with standards of this section. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.03) Landscape Area and Locations 
 
C16. Review Criteria: “Not less than fifteen percent (15%) of the total lot area, shall be 

landscaped with vegetative plant materials.  The ten percent (10%) parking area 
landscaping required by section 4.155.03(B)(1) is included in the fifteen percent 

 
Page 33 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 30 of 36 
 

(15%) total lot landscaping requirement.  Landscaping shall be located in at least 
three separate and distinct areas of the lot, one of which must be in the contiguous 
frontage area.  Planting areas shall be encouraged adjacent to structures.  
Landscaping shall be used to define, soften or screen the appearance of buildings 
and off-street parking areas.  Materials to be installed shall achieve a balance 
between various plant forms, textures, and heights. The installation of native plant 
materials shall be used whenever practicable.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant is not proposing any new landscaping with this 
project, therefore all landscaping exists and has been reviewed by previous 
approvals. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.04) Buffering and Screening 
 
C17. Review Criteria: “Additional to the standards of this subsection, the requirements 

of the Section 4.137.5 (Screening and Buffering Overlay Zone) shall also be 
applied, where applicable. 
C. All exterior, roof and ground mounted, mechanical and utility equipment 
shall be screened from ground level off-site view from adjacent streets or 
properties. 
D. All outdoor storage areas shall be screened from public view, unless 
visible storage has been approved for the site by the Development Review Board or 
Planning Director acting on a development permit.  
E. In all cases other than for industrial uses in industrial zones, landscaping 
shall be designed to screen loading areas and docks, and truck parking. 
F. In any zone any fence over six (6) feet high measured from soil surface at 
the outside of fenceline shall require Development Review Board approval.” 
Finding: These criteria will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDC 2. 
Details of Finding: Consistent with the proposed Stage II Final Plan, adequate 
screening is proposed around the mechanical equipment of the tower. The applicant 
proposes a chain-link fence with green slats. (See also Finding B28 under Request 
B and Exhibit B1.4- Colors and Materials) 

 
Section 4.177 Street Improvement Standards 
 
C18. Review Criteria: This section establishes standards for sidewalks and pathways. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The design of access improvements and improvements within 
the street right-of-way were approved under previous applications.  

 
Section 4.178 Sidewalk and Pathway Standards 
 
C19. Review Criteria: This section establishes standards for sidewalks and pathways. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

 
Page 34 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 31 of 36 
 

Details of Finding: The sidewalks and pathways already exist on the site, the 
applicant is not proposing any new infrastructure. 

 
Section 4.179 Mixed Solid Waste and Recyclables Storage 
 
C20. Review Criterion: This section establishes standards for mixed solid waste and 

recyclables storage in new multi-family residential and non-residential buildings. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant does not propose any new mixed solid waste or 
recyclables storage. 

 
Outdoor Lighting 
 
Section 4.199.20 Applicability of Outdoor Lighting Standards 
 
C21. Review Criterion: This section states that the outdoor lighting ordinance is 

applicable to “Installation of new exterior lighting systems in public facility, 
commercial, industrial and multi-family housing projects with common areas” and 
“Major additions or modifications (as defined in this Section) to existing exterior 
lighting systems in public facility, commercial, industrial and multi-family housing 
projects with common areas.” In addition the exempt luminaires and lighting 
systems are listed. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant is not proposing any new lighting besides the 
required FAA obstruction beacon at the top of the tower. Spec sheets are included 
as Exhibit B1.3 

 
SUMMARY FINDINGS FOR DB12-0072 – Site Design Review: 
 
C22. The applicant has borne the burden of proof in demonstrating that the proposed  
            Site Design Review plans should be approved.   
 

REQUEST D 
DB12-0073: HEIGHT WAIVER 
CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS 

 
Subsection 4.118 (.03) A. Waiver of Typical Development Standards 
 
D1. Review Criteria: This subsection establishes that “notwithstanding the provisions 

of Section 4.140 to the contrary, the Development Review Board, in order to 
implement the purpose and objectives of Section 4.140, and based on findings of 
fact supported by the record” may waive a number of typical development 
standards including height requirements. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 

 
Page 35 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 32 of 36 
 

Details of Finding: This request includes a waiver to the 35 foot height limitation 
of the PDC-TC Zone. The applicant is proposing a 74 foot support tower for a Zip 
Line to maintain safe vertical clearance under the travel of the line. The proposed 
74 foot tower will have a similar visual impact to typical cell towers. (See Exhibit 
B2 for Surrounding Building Height Plan Sheet) However, this tower will have a 
backdrop of various tall trees, ranging from 10 to over 60 feet in height. The tower 
is setback 210 feet from Town Center Loop W and 130 feet from the adjacent 
apartments to the north. The tower is a support structure, with technical design 
requirements that determine its ultimate height of 74 feet. This is a mono-pole 
design, which minimizes its profile and visual image. It is consistent with the 
overall entertainment function of the Fun Center. Surrounding development 
includes 2-3 story buildings, including the apartments to the north, the theater to the 
south, has a tall architectural glass tower measuring 53 feet and the Capital Realty 
Building to the southeast measures 48 feet. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.01) B. Purpose and Objectives of Planned Development Regulations 
 
D2. Review Criteria: This subsection establishes the purpose of the Planned 

Development Regulations which are as follows: 
• To take advantage of advances in technology, architectural design, and 

functional land use design: 
• To recognize the problems of population density, distribution and 

circulation and to allow a deviation from rigid established patterns of land 
uses, but controlled by defined policies and objectives detailed in the 
comprehensive plan; 

• To produce a comprehensive development equal to or better than that 
resulting from traditional lot land use development. 

• To permit flexibility of design in the placement and uses of buildings and 
open spaces, circulation facilities and off-street parking areas, and to more 
efficiently utilize potentials of sites characterized by special features of 
geography, topography, size or shape or characterized by problems of flood 
hazard, severe soil limitations, or other hazards; 

• To permit flexibility in the height of buildings while maintaining a ratio of 
site area to dwelling units that is consistent with the densities established by 
the Comprehensive Plan and the intent of the Plan to provide open space, 
outdoor living area and buffering of low-density development. 

• To allow development only where necessary and adequate services and 
facilities are available or provisions have been made to provide these 
services and facilities. 

• To permit mixed uses where it can clearly be demonstrated to be of benefit 
to the users and can be shown to be consistent with the intent of the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Page 36 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 33 of 36 
 

• To allow flexibility and innovation in adapting to changes in the economic 
and technological climate. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Details of Finding: The applicant states the following on page 23 of the 
compliance narrative: 
 

“The Fun Center has already been determined to be a compatible and 
complimentary use within the Town Center. The color scheme (tan) is 
subtle so as to not draw undue attention to the tower and detract from the 
overall attractiveness of the Town Center. The applicant has decided the 
tower will not be lighted, except for the required FAA obstruction beacon.  
 
Similar to a cell tower, the Zip Line Tower’s height is a matter of 
functional requirements. We believe the tower is consistent with the 
overall recreational and entertainment purposes of the Fun Center and its 
height must be considered in this context.  
 
The Zip Line only adds to the overall recreation and entertainment 
functions provided at the Fun Center and thereby contributes to the stable 
environment within the Town Center. It is designed to minimize visual 
impact, while maintaining the functional requirements for the ride, which 
necessitates height to create the drop for the zip line. The vertical 
monopole design results in a smaller footprint with limited visual impact 
as compared to a bulkier commercial building of similar height. The result 
is maximum efficient use of limited commercial land. 
 
The applicant’s design team has carefully coordinated the design with the 
Deputy Fire Marshal and the City’s Building Department to ensure that 
adequate fire and emergency response capabilities support the proposed 74 
foot tower. It is anticipated that special training and practice rescue 
operations will be coordinated with the Fire District.” 

 
Staff concurs that these points show the proposed height waiver for the tower 
meets the purpose and objectives of the planned development regulations. 

 
 

REQUEST E TR13-0002: 
TYPE B TREE REMOVAL 

CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS 
 
Section 4.610.10 Guidelines and Limitations on Tree Removal 
 
E1. This section limits tree removal to, among other criteria, when tree removal is 

necessary for construction, when trees are diseased, become a nuisance, hazard, or 
interfere with the healthy growth of other trees. The two Callery pear trees that are 

 
Page 37 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 34 of 36 
 

proposed for removal are necessary for construction of the zip line tower. This 
reason falls within the limits set by this subsection. (See Exhibit B2-Arborist 
Report) 

 
Section 4.610.20 (.02) Type A Tree Removal Criteria 
 
E2. This subsection stipulates that if a request does not meet the criteria in Subsection 

4.610.20 (.01) to be reviewed as a Type A application, it may be submitted as a 
Type B application. The request involves the removal of trees planted and 
preserved as a condition of development and, therefore it does not meet the criteria 
to be reviewed as a Type A application. It is therefore being reviewed as a Type B 
application. This provision is satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.610.20 (.03) and Subsection 4.610.30 (.02) Submittal Requirements  
 
E3. As indicated in the table below the Applicant has either submitted the required 

documentation, or has been granted a waiver under Subsection 4.610.30 (02) H. 
The requirements of these subsections are thus satisfied. 
Requirement 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 

W
ai

ve
r 

G
ra

nt
ed

 

C
on

di
tio

n 
of

 A
pp

ro
va

l 

N
ot

 
A

pp
lic

ab
le

 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

fin
di

ng
s/n

ot
es

 

  

In
fo

 
A

lr
ea

dy
 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 
 

In
fo

 
N

ot
 

N
ec

es
sa

ry
 

fo
r 

 

   

Statement why 
removal is 
necessary 

      
 

Description of trees 
(common name, 
d.b.h.) 

     
 

Name of person 
removing (if 
known) 

     
 

Time of removal (if 
known)       

Map showing 
location of tree(s)       

Arborist’s Report 
(health and       

 
Page 38 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 35 of 36 
 

condition, species, 
common name, 
d.b.h.) 
Tree protection 
information       

Replacement tree 
description 
(species, size, 
number, cost) 

     

 

Copy of CC&R’s       
 
Additional findings: 
 
Subsection 4.610.30 (.03) Review Process for Type B Tree Permits  
 
E4. This subsection stipulates that Type B Permits shall be reviewed under the 

standards of Class II Administrative Review and the requirements of the Tree 
Preservation and Protection subchapter. This application has been reviewed 
according the standards and processes referenced in this subsection. This provision 
is satisfied.  

 
Section 4.620.00 Tree Relocation, Mitigation, or Replacement 
 
Subsection 4.620.00 (.01) Tree Replacement Required within One Year 
 
E5. This subsection requires a Type B Tree Removal Permit grantee to replace or 

relocate each removed tree having six inches (6”) or greater d.b.h. within one year 
of removal.  Two (2) trees are proposed for removal. The Applicant is proposing to 
replant one (1) tree in the grass area at the western entrance (shared with Les 
Schwab’s). The applicant states, “there is no other space available” for replanting 
and therefore will pay into the City’s tree fund for the other required mitigation 
tree. A condition of approval ensures the requirements of this subsection are met. 

 
Subsection 4.620.00 (.02) Basis for Determining Replacement  
 
E6. This subsection requires that removed trees be replaced on a basis of one (1) tree 

replanted for each tree removed. It also requires all replacement trees measure two 
inches (2”) caliper. One (1) tree is being replaced onsite and will be two inch (2”) 
caliper. The applicant will be paying into the City’s tree fund for the other tree. The 
provisions of this subsection are satisfied. 

 
Subsection 4.620.00 (.03) A. Replacement Tree Requirements-Comparable 
Characteristics 
 

 
Page 39 of 52



Development Review Board AMENDED and ADOPTED Staff Report February 4, 2013 
DB12-0070 et seq (Family Fun Center)  Page 36 of 36 
 

E7. This subsection identifies the requirements for replacement trees including: having 
characteristics similar to removed trees; being appropriately chosen for the site 
from an approved tree species list provided by the City, and being of state 
Department of Agriculture Nursery Grade No. 1 or better. The applicant does not 
state what type of tree they will use as a replacement tree. Staff recommends the 
applicant plant a Callery Pear to be consistent with the plantings that are already on 
the site. A condition of approval ensures the requirements of this subsection are 
met. 

 
Subsections 4.620.00 (.03) B. and C. Replacement Tree Requirements-Tree Care and 
Guarantee 
 
E8. These subsections require replacement trees be staked, fertilized and mulched, and 

be guaranteed by the permit grantee or the grantee’s successors-in-interest for two 
(2) years after the planting date. A “guaranteed” tree that dies or becomes diseased 
during the two (2) year period is required to be replaced. A condition of approval 
ensures the requirements of these subsections are met. 

 
Subsection 4.620.00 (.3) D. Replacement Tree Requirements- Encouragement of 
Diversity of Species 
 
E9. This subsection encourages a diversity of tree species to be planted. Two of the 

same variety are being removed. The applicant has not stated what type of tree they 
are proposing for replacement, however staff has recommended the same variety 
which will maintain substantially similar diversity of species on the property. This 
provision would be satisfied by a conditional of approval. 

 
Subsection 4.620.00 (.04) Additional Requirements for Replacement Trees 
 
E10. This subsection requires replacement trees consist of nursery stock that meets 

requirements of the American Association of Nurserymen (AAN) American 
Standards for Nursery Stock (ANSI Z60.1) for top grade. A condition of approval 
ensures the requirements of these subsections are met. 

 
Subsection 4.620.00 (.05) Replacement Tree Location- Review Required 
 
E11. This subsection requires the City to review tree replacement plans in order to 

provide optimum enhancement, preservation and protection of wooded areas. It 
requires that to the extent feasible and desirable, trees be replaced on site and 
within the same general area as the removed trees. Two trees are proposed to be 
removed. The landscape island is not large enough to accommodate replacement 
trees after the construction of the zip line tower and therefore the applicant has 
proposed the replacement tree in a different area of the site and to pay into the 
City’s tree fund. The requirement of this subsection is met. 

 
Page 40 of 52



 
Page 41 of 52



 
Page 42 of 52



 
Page 43 of 52



 
Page 44 of 52



 
Page 45 of 52



 
Page 46 of 52



 
Page 47 of 52



 
Page 48 of 52



 
Page 49 of 52



 
Page 50 of 52



 
Page 51 of 52



 
Page 52 of 52



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VII.  Public Hearing:     

B. Resolution 248. Old Town Single Family:  Mark 
and Darla Britcliffe – owner/ applicant.  The 
applicant is requesting approval of a Site Design 
Review for two (2) single-family dwellings with 
attached accessory dwellings and a Type A Tree 
Removal Permit for two trees.  The subject parcels 
are located at 9115 and 9185 SW 4th Street on Tax 
Lots 500 and 501, Section 23AC; T3S-R1W; 
Clackamas County; Wilsonville, Oregon.   Staff:  
Amanda Hoffman 

 
Case Files:    DB13-0002 – Site Design Review 
           TR13-0006 – Type A Tree Removal Permit 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO. 248  Page 1 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 248 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS APPROVING A SITE DESIGN 
REVIEW FOR TWO (2) SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLINGS WITH ATTACHED ACCESSORY 
DWELLINGS IN THE OLD TOWN OVERLAY DISTRICT. THE SUBJECT PARCELS ARE 
LOCATED ON TAX LOTS 500 AND 501, SECTION 23AC, T3S-R1W, CLACKAMAS COUNTY, 
OREGON, 9155 AND 9185 SW 4TH STREET. MARK AND DARLA BRITCLIFFE – 
OWNER/APPLICANT. 
 
 WHEREAS, an application, together with planning exhibits for the above-captioned 
development, has been submitted in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 4.008 of the 
Wilsonville Code, and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Staff has prepared a staff report on the above-captioned subject dated 
March 4, 2013, and 
 
 WHEREAS, said planning exhibits and staff report were duly considered by the Development 
Review Board Panel A at a regularly scheduled meeting conducted on March 11, 2013, at which time 
exhibits, together with findings and public testimony were entered into the public record, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Development Review Board considered the subject applications and the 
recommendations contained in the staff report, and 
 
 WHEREAS, interested parties, if any, have had an opportunity to be heard on the subject. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Development Review Board of the City of 
Wilsonville does hereby adopt the staff report dated March 4, 2013, as amended, attached hereto as 
Exhibit A1, with findings and recommendations contained therein, and authorizes the Planning Director 
to issue permits consistent with said recommendations for:  
 
DB13-0002 Site Design Review for (2) two single-family homes with attached accessory dwellings in the 
Old Town Overlay District.  
 

ADOPTED by the Development Review Board of the City of Wilsonville at a regular meeting 
thereof this 11th day of March 2013 and filed with the Planning Administrative Assistant 
on _______________.  This resolution is final on the l5th calendar day after the postmarked date of the 
written notice of decision per WC Sec 4.022(.09) unless appealed per WC Sec 4.022(.02) or called up for 
review by the council in accordance with WC Sec 4.022(.03). 

 
 
              

   Mary Fierros Bower, Chair - Panel A 
   Wilsonville Development Review Board 

 
Attest: 
 
       
Shelley White, Planning Administrative Assistant 
 



Development Review Board Staff Report  March 4, 2013 
DB13-0002  Page 1 of 12 
 

Exhibit A1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION 

4th St. Single-Family Dwellings 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL ‘A’ 

QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 
HEARING DATE: March 11, 2013 
DATE OF REPORT: March 4, 2013  
 
 
APPLICATION NO.: DB13-0002: Site Design Review  
  
APPLICANT: Mark and Darla Britcliffe   
 
OWNER: Mark and Darla Britcliffe 
 
REQUEST: The proposal includes Site Design Review for Tax 

Lots 500 and 501 in Section 23AC; T3S R1W; 
Clackamas County, Oregon.  The applicant 
proposes to develop two single-family dwellings 
with attached accessory dwellings in the Old Town 
Overlay District. 

 
LOCATION: 9155 & 9158 SW 4th Street, north of the 

unimproved spur of 4th Street (See Vicinity Map on 
Page 2).  

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Tax Lots 500 & 501 Township 3 South, Range 1 

West, Section 23AC, Clackamas County, Oregon. 

LAND USE DESIGNATIONS: Wilsonville Comprehensive Plan Map  
 Designation: Residential 
 
ZONING DESIGNATIONS: Wilsonville Zone Map Classification: Planned 

Development Residential-4 (PDR-4).  
 
STAFF REVIEWER: Amanda Hoffman, Assistant Planner   
 
REQUESTED ACTIONS:  
The Development Review Board is being asked to review: 

 
DB13-0002: Site Design Review for 2 single-family dwellings with attached 

accessory dwellings in the Old Town Overlay District. 

Page 1 of 25



Development Review Board Staff Report  March 4, 2013 
DB13-0002  Page 2 of 12 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Site Design Review Plans, with 
recommended conditions of approval. 
 
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 
APPLICABLE CRITERIA:  
 
Planning and Land Development Ordinance: Planning and Land Development 
Ordinance:  Sections 4.001 (7); 4.008 – 4.015; 4.113; 4.118; 4.124.4; 4.138; 4.140; 
4.155; 4.320; 4.400-4.450. Other: Boones Ferry Architectural Pattern Book 
 
  

Subject Properties 

Page 2 of 25



Development Review Board Staff Report  March 4, 2013 
DB13-0002  Page 3 of 12 
 

SUMMARY:  
 
• Class 3 Site Design Review (DB13-0002): 

As demonstrated in findings 1 through 25, the proposed Site Design Review Plan 
(architecture and landscaping) with proposed conditions referenced therein meets 
the City criteria in Sections 4.400 – 4.450. 

 
 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  

Staff has reviewed the applicant’s analysis of compliance with the applicable criteria.  Staff finds 
that the analysis satisfactorily demonstrates compliance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan and 
the Planning and Land Development Ordinance. The Staff report adopts the applicant’s responses 
as Findings of Fact, except as noted in the Conclusionary Findings, and modified by proposed 
Conditions of Approval.  Based on the Findings of Fact and information included in this Staff 
Report, and information received from a duly advertised public hearing, Staff recommends that 
the Development Review Board approve the proposed application (DB13-0002), together with 
the following conditions:  

Page 3 of 25



Development Review Board Staff Report  March 4, 2013 
DB13-0002  Page 4 of 12 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:  
 
The application and supporting documents are hereby adopted for approval with the 
following conditions:  
 
PD  = 

 
Planning Division 
Conditions 
 

A.  DB13-0002: Site Design Review  
 

 
 

Planning Division Conditions: 

DB13-0002:  Class 3 Site Design Review 

PDA 1.    The applicant/owner shall develop the houses in substantial compliance with 
the site design plans approved by the DRB, unless altered with Board approval, or minor 
revisions are approved by the Planning Director under a Class I administrative review 
process.  
PDA 2.  The applicant/owner shall provide the general contractor for the proposed 
project with a copy of the approved plans and conditions of approval adopted by the City.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 25



Development Review Board Staff Report  March 4, 2013 
DB13-0002  Page 5 of 12 
 

MASTER EXHIBITS LIST: 
 
The following exhibits are hereby entered into the public record by the Development 
Review Board as confirmation of its consideration of the application as submitted. This is 
the master exhibits list that includes exhibits for Planning Case Files DB13-0002. 
 
A. Staff’s Written and Graphic Materials: 
 A1.  Staff Report: 
 Findings of Fact  
 Proposed Conditions of Approval  
 Conclusionary Findings  
 
B. Applicant’s Written and Graphic Materials: 
 B1. Application Form; dated 1/23/2013 
 B2. Applicant’s Narrative; dated 1/23/2013   
 B3. Plan Set (Reduced size and full size): 

Page No. Sheet Title 
1 Site Plan 
2 Elevations-9185 SW 4th St 
3 Elevations-9185 SW 4th St 
4 Tree Removal Plan 
5 Elevations-9155 SW 4th St 
6 Elevations-9155 SW 4th St 

 
 B4. Color & Materials Board – To be made available at Public Hearing  
 B5. Statutory Bargain and Sale Deed; dated 1/16/13 
 
D. General Correspondence: 
 D1.  Letters (neither For nor Against): None submitted 

D2.  Letters (In Favor): None submitted 
D3.  Letters (Opposed): None submitted 

Page 5 of 25



Development Review Board Staff Report  March 4, 2013 
DB13-0002  Page 6 of 12 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
1. Statutory Timeline: 

The statutory 120-day time limit applies to this application. The application was 
received on January 24, 2013.  On January 30, 2013, staff conducted a completeness 
review within the statutorily allowed 30-day review period.  On January 31, 2013, 
the application was deemed complete.  The City must render a final decision for the 
request, including any appeals, by May 31, 2013. 
 

2. Adjacent land uses: 

 
3. Comprehensive Plan and Zone Maps: The site has a Comprehensive Plan 

designation of Residential and is zoned Planned Development Residential (PDR-4).  
 
4. Natural Characteristics: The subject premises has gently sloping terrain.  

Vegetation is limited to landscape and 2 large trees within the two single-family lots.    
 
5. Streets: The subject property is located at the east of SW Fir Street and 4th Street.  

Access to the site is from an unimproved portion of 4th Street.   
 
6. Review Procedures: The required public notices have been sent and all proper 

notification procedures have been satisfied.  
 
7. Previous land use approvals: The subject property is part of the original Fir Street 

Development approval, however this approval has expired. DB06-0051-56, DB07-
0020 Fir Street Development:  Zone Map Amendment, Stage I Preliminary Plan, 
Tentative Partition Plat, Stage II Final Plan, Site Design Review Type C Tree Plan 
and Density Waiver.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Compass 
Direction 

Zone: Existing Use: 

North:  PDR-4 Vacant 
East:  PDR-4 Single-Family home 
South:  RAH-R Single-Family homes 
West:  RAH-P ODOT  

Page 6 of 25



Development Review Board Staff Report  March 4, 2013 
DB13-0002  Page 7 of 12 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
 

Section 4.008. Application Procedures - In General. 
 
The applicant is requesting the necessary site development permit applications to develop 
Tax Lots 500 & 501 of Section 23AC; T3S R1W; Clackamas County, Oregon.  The 
applicant proposes to develop two single-family homes on two lots in Old Town.   
 
Section 4.009. Who May Initiate Applications. 
 
The application has been submitted by Mark and Darla Britcliffe, the owners of the 
subject properties.  This provision is met.  
 
Section 4.034. Application Requirements.   
 
Following is documentation, including the standards and procedures appropriate to Site 
Development Review.   
  

Page 7 of 25



Development Review Board Staff Report  March 4, 2013 
DB13-0002  Page 8 of 12 
 

REQUEST DB13-0006: SITE DESIGN REVIEW 
CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS 

 
The applicant is requesting approval of Site Design Review for two single-family 
dwellings on two lots with two accessory dwellings in the Old Town Overlay Zone.  
 
Section 4.124 PDR (Planned Development Residential) Zone 

 (.01)  Examples of principal uses that are typically permitted:  
B. Single-Family Dwelling Units. 

       (.02)    Permitted accessory uses to single family dwellings: 
  C. Accessory Dwelling Units 
A1. The proposal is for two-single family dwellings with attached accessory dwellings 

on two lots, as permitted by the provisions of this section.   

(.03) Parking.  
A2. Per the requirements of Sections 4.155. beginning on page 11 of this report. 

 

Section 4.113 Standards Applying to Residential Developments in Any Zone. 
(.11) Accessory Dwelling Units 
A3. The applicant is proposing 600 square foot accessory dwelling units (ADU’s) in 

order to be mindful of the wishes of the Old Town residents, although the code 
requirement states 800 square foot maximum. The ADU’s are proposed to be 
attached to each of the two main dwelling units and are proposed to meet all zone 
standards. The Accessory dwellings are subject to the Building Code 
requirements and will be reviewed as such with a building permit. The units are 
proposed to be integrated within the design of the proposed single-family 
dwellings with the same color, siding, windows, doors and roofing materials. The 
applicant is proposing an excess of one parking space per dwelling unit and 
therefore exceeds the requirement of one space per unit. Each ADU will be 
complete with separate living, sleeping, eating, cooking and bathing purposes and 
is proposed to have a secure separate entrance. They are both accessible by 4th 
Street via a driveway. Based on this finding, staff finds this criterion will be met. 

 
Section 4.138: Old Town (O) Overlay 
 
(.01)  Purpose 
 
The Old Town Overlay is intended to capture the spirit of Wilsonville's past, and reflect 
it in new development or redevelopment. Period architecture, quality design, and 
relationship to surrounding uses is required by this overlay. 
 

Page 8 of 25



Development Review Board Staff Report  March 4, 2013 
DB13-0002  Page 9 of 12 
 

The applicant's proposal has achieved all of these purposes, using details from the 
early 1900's, and thoughtful consideration of the site's resources, and provided ample 
links to the surrounding neighborhood. 
 
(.02) Applicable to new development, redevelopment 
 
A4. The applicant has applied the provisions of this overlay to the proposed two 

single-family dwellings with attached accessory dwellings. 
 

(.03) Development standards 
 
A5. The applicant proposes to be in compliance with the required setbacks, 

landscaping and building height requirements of the Old Town Overlay Zone. The 
applicant proposes a 15 foot rear setback, 5 foot side setbacks and a 20 foot front 
yard setback for 9185 and a 17 foot rear setback 10’ side setbacks and a 43’ front 
yard setback for 9155. The landscaping is proposed at over 20% for both 
properties and the building heights are proposed single-story at approximately 18 
feet. 

 
(.04)  Pedestrian environment 
 
A6. The applicant proposes the two single-family dwelling entrances to face 4th Street 

to give special attention to the primary building entrances, assuring that they are 
both attractive and functional. Staff finds the proposal to be in compliance with 
this requirement. 

 
(.05) Building compatibility 
 
A7. The proposal includes two-single family dwellings with attached accessory 

dwellings. The design of the residential dwellings are intended to reflect the size 
and shape of traditional dwellings from the period from 1880 to 1930 and both 
single-story. The applicant is proposing one Ranch-style home and one 
Craftsman-style home. The applicant has also proposed the entrance to the 
accessory dwellings on the side of the homes so that it gives the appearance of 
two smaller dwellings. The applicant has incorporated many of the Residential 
Design Standards suggested within the Boones Ferry Historic District 
Architectural Pattern Book. Therefore, staff finds that the building compatibility 
has been met. 

 
(.06) Building materials 
 
A8. The proposed house located at 9155 is a ranch style with a long and narrow 

efficient design, the applicant is proposing the use of 2 foot overhangs featuring a 
shed-style front porch. The proposed house will be clad with fiber cement 
horizontal plank with wood grain. 

Page 9 of 25



Development Review Board Staff Report  March 4, 2013 
DB13-0002  Page 10 of 12 
 

A9. The proposed house located at 9185 is a Craftsman style home with tapered 
pillars and wide slat pickets on the front porch. This house will also be clad with 
Hardiplank siding. The roof has multiple prominent corbels on the peak. Staff 
finds the proposal to be in compliance with this requirement. 

 
(.07) Roof materials, design 
 
A10. The applicant is proposing for the Ranch-style home, a 4/12 pitch with asphalt 

shingles CertainTeed Landmark color Heather Blend (shown on the materials 
board exhibit B4). The applicant is proposing for the Craftsman-style home a 5/12 
pitch with asphalt shingles CertainTeed Landmark color Driftwood. Staff finds 
the proposal to be in compliance with this requirement. 

 
(.09) Building facades 
 
A11. The applicant has proposed covered porches for both single-family dwellings. 

9185 has a gabled front porch supports and shake accents above the porches. 9155 
has a shed roof and 2-foot eaves. Each entrance to the Accessory dwellings also 
have small porch overhangs. Staff finds the proposal to be in compliance with this 
requirement. 

 
(.11) Landscapes and streetscapes 
 
A12. The applicant proposes over 20% landscaping for each property.  
 
 (.12) Lighting 

 
A13. The applicant is proposing to install a new street light to replace the existing pole 

that is now located in the middle of 4th Street directly in front of 9185. The 
applicant, as well as the neighbors believe that the new street light would enhance 
the livability and safety at the end of 4th Street. The new pole would be placed on 
the SW corner of 9185 and would have one 150 watt bulb and would be fitted 
with a flat lens to reduce glare.  Other proposed lighting is limited to building 
lighting.  Staff finds that the applicant’s proposal complies with the provisions of 
Section 4.199.  

 
(.14) Storage of trash and recyclables 
 
A14. The trash and recyclables will be stored within the three-car garages. 
 
Subsection 4.140 Planned Development Regulations 
 
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning: Planned Development Residential 

Page 10 of 25



Development Review Board Staff Report  March 4, 2013 
DB13-0002  Page 11 of 12 
 

 
A15. The subject property contains one zoning district – PDR-4. The Comprehensive 

Plan identifies the subject property as Residential. 
 
Section 4.155 General Regulations – Parking, Loading and Bicycle Parking 
 
(.03) Minimum and Maximum Off-Street Parking Requirements:  
 

A. Access and Maneuvering  
 
A16. The subject properties have a limited frontage on SW 4th Street. However, the 

applicant proposes two driveways to access the proposed single-family dwellings. 
There is no proposed on-street parking, staff finds the applicant has proposed 
ample off-street parking.  

 
 B.6. Off-street Parking for Multi-family 
A17. The proposal includes a 3-car garage in addition to ample off-street parking. 

Therefore there are sufficient areas established to provide for parking and storage 
of motorcycles, mopeds and bicycles.  

 
  B.8. Parking Standards. 

 
 

A18. Based upon the table above, the applicant is required to provide 4 parking spaces, 
one for each single-family dwelling and one for each accessory dwelling unit.  
The applicant is proposing 3 garage spaces and 3 off-street parking spaces for 
9185. The applicant is proposing 3 garage spaces and 5 off-street parking spaces 
for 9155. The applicant states that because of the lack of on-street parking the 
proposal includes twice the recommendation for parking. Staff finds the proposal 
to be in compliance with this requirement. 

 
Section 4.320 Underground Utilities 

 
A19. The applicant is proposing all utilities to be installed underground. 
 
Section 4.421. Criteria and Application of Design Standards.   
 

Page 11 of 25



Development Review Board Staff Report  March 4, 2013 
DB13-0002  Page 12 of 12 
 

(.01)  The following standards shall be utilized by the Board in reviewing the 
plans, drawings, sketches and other documents required for Site Design 
Review.  These standards are intended to provide a frame of reference for 
the applicant in the development of site and building plans as well as a 
method of review for the Board.  These standards shall not be regarded as 
inflexible requirements.  They are not intended to discourage creativity, 
invention and innovation.  The specifications of one or more particular 
architectural styles is not included in these standards.  (Even in the Boones 
Ferry Overlay Zone, a range of architectural styles will be encouraged.) 

 
A. Preservation of Landscape.   

 
A20. A landscape plan was provided as part of the applicant’s submitted materials. The 

applicant does propose to remove two trees under a Type A Tree Removal permit 
in order to build the home located at 9185 SW 4th Street.  This permit will be 
processed prior to building permit approval. This criterion is satisfied. 

 
B. Relation of Proposed Buildings to Environment.   
 

A21. Staff finds that the subject property does not contain steep slopes, is not within a 
Significant Resource Overlay Zone (SROZ), and has very little vegetation.  This 
criterion is satisfied.   

 
C. Drives, Parking and Circulation.   
 

A22. Section 4.155, on page 10 above, provides a detailed discussion regarding drives, 
parking and circulation.  

 
D. Surface Water Drainage.   
 

A23. Surface water drainage will be reviewed and enforced with the building permit. 
 

E. Utility Service.   
 

A24. The applicant proposes to install all utilities underground. 
 
 
SUMMARY FINDINGS FOR DB13-0002 – Site Design Review: 
 
A25. The applicant has borne the burden of proof in demonstrating that the proposed 

Site Design Review plans should be approved.   
 
 

Page 12 of 25



Page 13 of 25

swhite
Stamp



Page 14 of 25

swhite
Stamp



Page 15 of 25



Page 16 of 25

swhite
Stamp



Page 17 of 25



Page 18 of 25



Page 19 of 25



Page 20 of 25



Page 21 of 25



\f) 
~ 

\ 

1.{\ 
~ 
r
\.0 
0 
U\ 
t....\ -
~ 
r 
-:t 

.~ 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 

Chicago Title Company of Oregon 
10135 SE Sunnyside Road Suite 130 
Clackamas, OR 97015 

GRANTOR: 
Bernadine H. Becker 

GRANTEE: 
Mark Britcliffe and Darla Britcliffe, husband and 
wife 
27485 SW Xanthus Ct. 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

SEND TAX STATEMENTS TO: 
Mark Britcliffe and Darla Britcliffe 
27485 SW Xanthus Ct. 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

Clackamas County Official Records 
Sherry Hall, County Clerk 2013-003402 

01/16/2013 08:41:16AM 
D-D Cnt=1 Stn=5 CONNIEBRO . 
$15.00$16.00$10.00$17.00 $58.00 

g AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

Mark Britcliffe and Darla Britcliffe 
27485 SW Xanthus Ct. 

I 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

· Escrow No: 472512505765TW-CT45 

9185 & 9155SW 4th St. 
Wilsonville, OR 97070 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

WARRANTY DEED- STATUTORY FORM 
(INDIVIDUAL or CORPORATION) 

Bernadine H. Becker 

Grantor, conveys and warrants to 

Mark Britcliffe and Darla Britcliffe, husband and wife 

Grantee, the following described real property free of encumbrances except as specifically set forth 
herein: 

SEE LEGAL DESCRIPTION A IT ACHED HERETO 

The true consideration for this conveyance is $109,000.00. 

ENCUMBRANCES: None 

. BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON TRANSFERRING FEE TITLE 
SHOULD INQUIRE ABOUT THE PERSON'S RIGHTS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 
195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 
TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2 TO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON 
LAWS 2010. THIS INSTRUMENT DOES NOT ALLOW USE OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS 
INSTRUMENT IN VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE LAND USE LAWS AND REGULATIONS. BEFORE 
SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON ACQUIRING FEE TITLE TO THE 
PROPERTY SHOULD CHECK WITH THE APPROPRIATE CITY OR COUNTY PLANNING 
DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY THAT THE UNIT OF LAND BEING TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFULLY 
ESTABLISHED LOT OR PARCEL, AS DEFINED IN ORS 92.010 OR 215.010, TO VERIFY THE 
APPROVED USES OF THE LOT OR PARCEL, TO DETERMINE ANY LIMITS ON LAWSUITS 
AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST PRACTICES, AS DEFINED IN ORS 30.930, AND TO INQUIRE 
ABOUT THE RIGHTS OF NEIGHBORING PROPERTY OWNERS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 
195.301 AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS 2007, 
SECTIONS 2TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2 TO 7, 
4 7251250576STW-CT 45 
·Deed (Warranty- Statutory (Individual or Corporation)) 

Page 22 of 25



\j) 
':}-

\ 

L0 
~ 
\ 
l.0 
0 
U" 
N 

~ 
r -r 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 

Chicago Title Company of Oregon 
10135 SE Sunnyside Road Suite 130 
Clackamas, OR 97015 

GRANTOR: 
Bernadine H. Becker 

GRANTEE: 
Mark Britcliffe and Darla Britcliffe, husband and 
wife 
27485 SW Xanthus Ct. 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

SEND TAX STATEMENTS TO: 
Mark Britcliffe and Darla Britcliffe 
27 485 SW Xanthus Ct. 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

~ 
AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 

Mark Britcliffe and Darla Britcliffe 
27 485 SW Xanthus Ct. 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

Escrow No: 472512505765TW-CT45 

9185 & 9155 SW 4th St. 

Wilsonville, OR 97070 
SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

WARRANTY DEED- STATUTORY FORM 
(INDIVIDUAL or CORPORATION) 

Bernadine H. Becker 

Grantor, conveys and warrants to 

Mark Britcliffe and Darla Britcliffe, husband and wife 

Grantee, the following described real property free of encumbrances except as specifically set forth 
herein: 

SEE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ATTACHED HERETO 

The true consideration for this conveyance is $109,000.00. 

ENCUMBRANCES: None 

BEFORE SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON TRANSFERRING FEE TITLE 
SHOULD INQUIRE ABOUT THE PERSON'S RIGHTS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 195.301 AND 
195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS 2007, SECTIONS 2 
TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2 TO 7, CHAPTER 8, OREGON 
LAWS 2010. THIS INSTRUMENT DOES NOT ALLOW USE OF THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THIS 
INSTRUMENT IN VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE LAND USE LAWS AND REGULATIONS. BEFORE 
SIGNING OR ACCEPTING THIS INSTRUMENT, THE PERSON ACQUIRING FEE TITLE TO THE 
PROPERTY SHOULD CHECK WITH THE APPROPRIATE CITY OR COUNTY PLANNING 
DEPARTMENT TO VERIFY THAT THE UNIT OF LAND BEING TRANSFERRED IS A LAWFULLY 
ESTABLISHED LOT OR PARCEL, AS DEFINED IN ORS 92.010 OR 215.010, TO VERIFY THE 
APPROVED USES OF THE LOT OR PARCEL, TO DETERMINE ANY LIMITS ON LAWSUITS 
AGAINST FARMING OR FOREST PRACTICES, AS DEFINED IN ORS 30.930, AND TO INQUIRE 
ABOUT THE RIGHTS OF NEIGHBORING PROPERTY OWNERS, IF ANY, UNDER ORS 195.300, 
195.301 AND 195.305 TO 195.336 AND SECTIONS 5 TO 11, CHAPTER 424, OREGON LAWS 2007, 
SECTIONS 2 TO 9 AND 17, CHAPTER 855, OREGON LAWS 2009, AND SECTIONS 2TO 7, 

472512505765TVV-CT45 
Deed (Warranty- Statutory (Individual or Corporation)) 

Page 23 of 25



CHAPTER 8, OREGON LAWS 2010. 

Dated January~, 2013; if a corporate grantor, it has caused its name to be signed by order of its board of 
directors. 

STATE OF OREG06 I 
County of (ta "7 , ( 

:.··) . ... }~ u 
/~---'JJ!J?../1"- a c.~..L-t '-"- , • ~~-JZC' 

Bernadine H. Becker 

:::l~niMiedged before me on 01f..lL_/13 by Bernadine H. Becker. 

My Commission Expires: 

(SEAL) 

472512505765TVV-CT45 

OFFICIAL SEAL 
JOHN M LUDLOW 

NOTARY PUBLIC-OREGON 
COMMISSION NO. 464524 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES JANUARY 25, 20'1 o ------...:;a• :;wm'IW!I< ..uD~IJilli.~t'f111 

Deed (Warranty- Statutory (Individual or Corporation)) 

Page 24 of 25



LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Parcell: 

A tract of land in the Thomas Bailey Donation Land Claim, and in Section 23, Township 3 South, Range 1 
West, of the Willamette Meridian, in the City of Wilsonville, County of Clackamas and State of Oregon, 
described as follows: 

Beginning at the Southwesterly corner of that tract of land conveyed to Arthur L. Pack, et ux, by deed 
recorded June 12, 1968, under Recorder's Fee No. 68-10973, which beginning point bears South r42' 
West, 15 feet and South 82°18' East, 191 feet from the intersection of the center line of Fir Avenue, with 
the South line of 4th Street, in the PLAT OF THE TOWN OF WILSONVILLE; thence South 82°8' East 
along the Southerly line of said Pack tract, 50 feet; thence North r42' East, 100 feet to the Northerly line 
of said Pack tract; thence North 82°18' West along the Northerly line of said Pack tract, 50 feet to the 
Northwesterly corner thereof; thence South r 42' West along the Westerly line of said Pack tract, 100 feet 
to the point of beginning. 

Parcell I: 

A tract of land in the Thomas Bailey Donation Land Claim, and in Section 23, Township 3 South, Range 1 
West, of the Willamette Meridian, in the City of Wilsonville, County of Clackamas and State of Oregon, 
described as follows: 

Beginning at a point which is 15 feet South 7 degrees 42' West, and 241 feet South 82 degrees 18' East 
of the intersection of the center line of Fir Avenue, and the South side of 4th Street, of the platted TOWN 
OF WILSONVILLE, Clackamas County, Oregon, in the Thomas Bailey Donation Land Claim, in Section 
23, Township 3 South, Range 1 West, of the Willamette Meridian; thence 97.67 feet South 82 degrees 18' 
East to an iron rod; thence 101.4 feet North 0 degrees 45' West to an iron rod; thence 82.66 feet North 82 
degrees 18' West; thence 1 00 feet South 7 degrees 42' West and the point of beginning. 

472512505765TVV-CT45 
Deed (VVarranty- Statutory (Individual or Corporation)) 

Page 25 of 25



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VII.  Public Hearing:   
C.  Resolution No. 249.   Boones Ferry Pointe - Carl’s 

Jr Restaurant and Multi-Tenant Commercial 
Building:    Ben Altman, SFA Design Group and 
CB Anderson Architects – Representatives for 
Josh Veentjer, Wilsonville Devco LLC - 
Applicant/Owner and Garry LaPoint, LaPoint 
Business Group - Owner.  The applicant is 
requesting approval of a Stage II Final Plan, Site 
Design Review and Master Sign Plan for 
development of a new 2,867 square foot drive-thru 
fast food restaurant and 3,150 square foot multi-
tenant commercial building.  The site is located on 
Tax Lots 300 and 302, Section 02DB; T3S-R1W; 
Washington County; Wilsonville, Oregon.  Staff:  
Daniel Pauly 

 
Case Files:   DB12-0074 – Stage II Final Plan   

   DB12-0075 – Site Design Review 
   DB12-0076 – Master Sign Plan  
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO.  249 PAGE 1 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 249 

 
A RESOLUTION ADOPTING FINDINGS AND CONDITIONS APPROVING A STAGE II FINAL 
PLAN, SITE DESIGN REVIEW, AND MASTER SIGN PLAN FOR DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW 
2,867 SQUARE FOOT DRIVE-THRU FAST FOOD RESTAURANT AND 3,150 SQUARE FOOT 
MULTI-TENANT COMMERCIAL BUILDING.  THE SITE IS LOCATED ON TAX LOTS 300 
AND 302, SECTION 02DB; T3S-R1W; WASHINGTON COUNTY; WILSONVILLE, OREGON.  
BEN ALTMAN, SFA DESIGN GROUP AND CRAIG ANDERSON, CB ANDERSON 
ARCHITECTS– REPRESENTATIVES FOR JOSH VEENTJER, WILSONVILLE DEVCO LLC  - 
APPLICANT/OWNER AND GARRY LAPOINT, LAPOINT BUSINESS GROUP–OWNER. 
 
 WHEREAS, an application, together with planning exhibits for the above-captioned 
development, has been submitted in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 4.008 of 
the Wilsonville Code, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Staff has prepared staff report on the above-captioned subject 
dated March 4, 2013, and 
 
 WHEREAS, said planning exhibits and staff report were duly considered by the 
Development Review Board Panel A at a scheduled meeting conducted on March 11, 2013, at 
which time exhibits, together with findings and public testimony were entered into the public 
record, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Development Review Board considered the subject and the 
recommendations contained in the staff report, and 
 
 WHEREAS, interested parties, if any, have had an opportunity to be heard on the subject. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Development Review Board of the 
City of Wilsonville does hereby adopt the staff report dated March 4, 2013, attached hereto as 
Exhibit A1, with findings and recommendations contained therein, and authorizes the Planning 
Director to issue permits consistent with said recommendations for:  
 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076 Class 3 Stage II Final Plan, Site Design Review, and Master 
Sign Plan for Fast Food Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building. 
 

ADOPTED by the Development Review Board of the City of Wilsonville at a regular 
meeting thereof this 11th day of March, 2013 and filed with the Planning Administrative Assistant 
on _______________.  This resolution is final on the l5th calendar day after the postmarked date 
of the written notice of decision per WC Sec 4.022(.09) unless appealed per WC Sec 4.022(.02) or 
called up for review by the council in accordance with WC Sec 4.022(.03). 
 
       
          ______,  
      Mary Fierros Bower Chair, Panel A 
      Wilsonville Development Review Board 
 
Attest: 
 
       
Shelley White, Planning Administrative Assistant 



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 1 of 60 

Exhibit A1 
STAFF REPORT 

WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION 
 

Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL ‘A’ 
QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING 

STAFF REPORT 
HEARING DATE March 11, 2013 
DATE OF REPORT: March 4, 2013 
 
APPLICATION NOS.: DB12-0074 Stage II Final Plan 
 DB12-0075 Site Design Review 
 DB12-0076 Master Sign Plan for Boones Ferry Pointe 
 
REQUEST/SUMMARY: The Development Review Board is being asked to review a Stage II 
Final Plan, Site Design Review, and Master Sign Plan for the development of a new 2,867 square 
drive-thru foot fast food restaurant and 3,150 square foot multi-tenant commercial building at the 
corner of 95th Avenue and Boones Ferry Road in North Wilsonville.  
 
LOCATION: The proposed restaurant and commercial building are on the southeast corner of 
the 95th Avenue/ Boones Ferry Road intersection near the Elligsen Road/I-5 Interchange. The 
property is specifically known as Tax Lots 0300 and 0302, Section 2DB, Township 3 South, 
Range 1 West, Willamette Meridian, City of Wilsonville, Washington County, Oregon. 
 
OWNERS: Josh Veentjer 
 Wilsonville Devco LLC 
 (TL 302) 
 
 Garry LaPoint 
 LaPoint Business Group 
 (TL 300) 
 
APPLICANT: Josh Veentjer 
 Wilsonville Devco LLC 
 
APPLICANT’S REPS.: Ben Altman 

SFA Design Group 
 
Craig Anderson 
CB Anderson Architects 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP DESIGNATION: Commercial 
 
ZONE MAP CLASSIFICATION:  PDC (Planned Development Commercial) 
 

Page 1 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 2 of 60 

STAFF REVIEWERS: Daniel Pauly AICP, Associate Planner 
 Mike Ward PE, Civil Engineer 
 Kerry Rappold, Natural Resource Program Manager 
 Don Walters, Building Plans Examiner 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve with conditions the requested State II Final Plan, 
Site Design Review request, and Master Sign Plan. 
 
APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA 
 
Section 4.008 Application Procedures-In General 
Section 4.009 Who May Initiate Application 
Section 4.010 How to Apply 
Section 4.011 How Applications are Processed 
Section 4.014 Burden of Proof 
Section 4.031 Authority of the Development Review Board 
Subsection 4.035 (.04) Site Development Permit Application 
Subsection 4.035 (.05) Complete Submittal Requirement 
Section 4.110 Zones 
Section 4.116 Standards Applying to Commercial Development 

in All Zones 
Section 4.118 Standards Applying to Planned Development 

Zones 
Section 4.131 Planned Development Commercial Zone (PDC) 
Section 4.140 Planned Development Regulations 
Section 4.155 Parking, Loading, and Bicycle Parking 
Sections 4.156.01 through 4.156.11 Sign Regulations 
Section 4.167 Access, Ingress, and Egress 
Section 4.171 Protection of Natural Features and Other 

Resources 
Section 4.175 Public Safety and Crime Prevention 
Section 4.176 Landscaping, Screening, and Buffering 
Section 4.177 Street Improvement Standards 
Section 4.178 Sidewalk and Pathway Standards 
Section 4.179 Mixed Solid Waste and Recyclables Storage 
Sections 4.199.20 through 4.199.60 Outdoor Lighting 
Sections 4.300 through 4.320 Underground Utilities 
Sections 4.400 through 4.450 as 
applicable 

Site Design Review 

 
  

Page 2 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 3 of 60 

Vicinity Map 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
 
Approved Stage I Master Plan/Site History 
 
The subject property is part of the Edwards Business Center Industrial Master Plan. This master 
plan envisioned a variety of industrial and commercial uses. The Master Plan designated the 
currently vacant site as commercial, but did not specify the type of commercial use. Previously 
the City received an application for an office building on the site, which was never built. The 
current application to construct a fast-food restaurant and a multi-tenant commercial building is 
consistent with the designation of the property in the Master Plan. 
 
Stage II Final Plan (DB12-0074) 
 
The Stage II Final Plan looks at the function and overall aesthetics of the proposed development, 
including traffic, parking, and circulation. 
 
The development includes two buildings, a 2,867 square foot drive-thru fast food restaurant and 
a 3,150 square foot multi-tenant commercial building, and associated site improvements 
including parking and circulation. Buildings are planned to be built in a single phase. The 
restaurant building sits towards the southeast area of the site along SW 95th Avenue while the 
multi-tenant building is at the north end of the site. The restaurant building has a flat roof with a 
parapet to screen view of mechanical equipment. Each side of the building has a wide tower with 

Page 3 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 4 of 60 

a brick façade. The multi-tenant building has a gabled roof over the center tenant space. The end 
tenant spaces have flat roofs with parapets to screen mechanical equipment, similar to the fast 
food restaurant. A drive through lane wraps around the east and south side of the restaurant 
building. Parking is to the north and west. North of the multi-tenant building is a plaza that 
includes a pedestrian path, benches, flag pole, and a monument sign identifying the development.  
 
Vehicle Access to the site is via an existing shared driveway with Holiday Inn and Chevron 
proposed to be improved as part of the development of this site. 
 
The Stage II Final Plan proposes 16,139 square feet of landscaping, 48 parking spaces (42 
required), maneuvering and circulations areas, and mixed solid waste and recyclables storage. 
The total gross area of the development site is 55,605 square feet or 1.28 acres. 
 
Site Design Review (DB12-0075) 
 
Architectural Design 
 
The applicant provides a thorough explanation of the architectural design of the buildings on 
pages 57-58 of their compliance narrative in their submitted notebook, Exhibit B1. The narrative 
explains how the design goal was to identify with the general environment of commercial 
development at Argyle Square and along Wilsonville Road while also adding a unique 
personality to the development and proper identity to the planned tenants. The two smaller scale 
wood-frame structures use traditional exterior materials reinforcing their location in 
Wilsonville’s small town setting. The buildings feature brick, horizontal lap siding, and board 
and batten materials. They are designed to complement one another, but to have separate unique 
identities. 
 

Carl’s Jr. Building Rendering 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 5 of 60 

Multi-Tenant Building Rendering 

 
 
Landscape and Hardscape Design 
 
The applicant has designed a planter and plaza at the north of the site to acknowledge the 
gateway at a prominent intersection on the northern edge of the City. The remainder of the 
landscaping is typical of parking lots and commercial areas in Wilsonville. As part of the 
landscaping a six (6) foot tall evergreen hedge is proposed along a portion of 95th Avenue to 
screen the drive-thru signs from off-site view.  
 

Proposed Landscape Plan (sheet L2.0 in applicant’s plan set, Exhibit B2) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Carl’s Jr. 
Multi- 
Tenant 
Bldg. 

Screening Hedge 

Stormwater 
Planter 

Gateway 
Plaza 

Page 5 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 6 of 60 

Master Sign Plan (DB12-0076) 
 
Freestanding Signs 
 
Due to the having significant street frontage on two (2) streets the lot with the proposed Carl’s Jr. 
and multi-tenant building development is allowed two (2) freestanding signs. Each freestanding 
sign is allowed to be fifty-nine (59) square feet, based on the size of the buildings on the site and 
the number of tenants. A new twenty (20) foot tall sign is proposed along SW Boones Ferry 
Road north of the multi-tenant building. The sign features a brick treatment at the base of the 
support poles to match the buildings and otherwise has a minimal amount of visible support 
emphasizing the different sign panels. 
 
A thirty-six (36) square foot sign panel is being collocated on an existing Chevron pylon sign at 
the driveway along SW 95th Avenue. The collocation will reduce clutter and provide for efficient 
placement of signs for multiple developments using a shared driveway.   
 
 

Proposed Freestanding Signs 

   

Boones 
Ferry 

95th

Existing 
Chevron 

Sign 

Collocated 
Carl’s Jr. 

Sign 

Page 6 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 7 of 60 

 
Monument Sign 
 
Thirteen (13) square feet of the unused allowance for a second freestanding sign is being used for 
a planned development sign on the north end of the site in the plaza area, as allowed in 
Subsection 4.156 (.03) B. The monument is a wall incorporated into the plaza with the name of 
development in individual non- illuminated letters. 
 

Proposed Monument Sign 

 
 

Building Signs 
 
All four facades of both the restaurant and multi-tenant building are eligible for building signs, 
with the allowed area based on the length of the different facades. The building signs will be wall 
mounted internally illuminated logo cabinets, like Carl’s Jr., or individual internally illuminated 
channel letters. The signs will be appropriately placed on the buildings either centered in 
architectural features or centered above doors or windows. The sign design and placement is 
similar to other commercial retail developments in Wilsonville including Argyle Square and Old 
Town Square. 
 

Examples of Proposed Building Signs 

  
Logo Cabinet     Individual Channel Letters 
 
DISCUSSION TOPICS: 
 
Shared Driveway and Development Agreement 
 
Prior to submittal of the subject applications, the applicant worked with the City and the owners 
of the Chevron Station and Holiday Inn to refine access, egress, and site circulation centered on 
the shared driveway from SW 95th Avenue. The driveway is the only public street access for 
Chevron and the proposed development, and a primary access point for Holiday Inn. A copy of 
the Development Agreement is included in the applicant’s notebook, Exhibit B1. 
 

Page 7 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 8 of 60 

The Development Agreement provides for a new driveway configuration, which will provide 
two inbound lanes, with a fifty (50) foot north bound curb radius to accommodate trucks. The 
Development Agreement also provides for relocation of the existing freestanding Chevron Sign, 
required to be moved due to the new driveway configuration. The Development Agreement also 
allows for the collocation of a Carl’s Jr. sign panel on the existing sign pylon as requested as part 
of the Master Sign Plan. 
 
Freestanding Sign Placement along Boones Ferry Road 
 
A number of easements exist on the northern portion of the site at the intersection of Boones 
Ferry Road and 95th Avenue, including in the area where the new freestanding sign is proposed. 
Though they have yet to, the applicant hopes to execute an agreement with relevant easement 
holders to place the sign within the easements subject to easement holder not being liable for the 
costs if the sign must be taken down or otherwise impacted for work in the easement. Condition 
of Approval PDC 6 makes approval of the sign contingent on approval of the easement holder. If 
agreement cannot be reached with a relevant easement holder or holders and no alternative 
location north of the multi-tenant building meeting code requirements can be found then the sign 
cannot be installed. 
 
Cover for Mixed Solid Waste and Recycling Enclosure for Chevron 
 
In addition to the mixed solid waste and recycling enclosures proposed on the site for the 
restaurant building and the multi-tenant commercial building, a third is proposed to serve the 
Chevron fuel station and convenience store. Exhibit B5 expresses concerns from the Chevron 
owner and Allied Waste about the cover required for the Chevron waste enclosure due to 
handling issues related to the type of large collection containers Chevron uses. The cover is 
required by Condition of Approval NR 8 pursuant to Subsection 8.210 (9) Wilsonville Code to 
help prevent contaminants from entering the public storm sewer system. The requirement is also 
mentioned in comments from the City’s Public Works Department, Exhibit C5. The ability to 
waive or grant a variance from the requirement to cover the enclosure or remove/modify 
Condition of Approval NR 8 is not under the authority of the Development Review Board (see 
preface to Engineering, Building, Natural Resources, and TVF&R Conditions of Approval on 
Pages 11 and 12 of 60 of this report). Staff understands Chevron is pursuing an exemption or 
other relief from the requirement through the appropriate channels. For this reason staff 
recommends the Development Review Board approve both a covered and uncovered design for 
the Chevron enclosure so the either can be built depending on the final resolution of the 
applicant’s request to not comply with the requirement. 
  

Page 8 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 9 of 60 

CONCLUSION AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 
Staff has reviewed the applicant’s analysis of compliance with the applicable criteria.  The Staff 
report adopts the applicant’s responses as Findings of Fact except as noted in the Findings. Based 
on the Findings of Fact and information included in this Staff Report, and information received 
from a duly advertised public hearing, staff recommends that the Development Review Board 
approve the proposed application (DB12-0074 through DB12-0076) with the following 
conditions: 
 
REQUEST A: DB12-0074 STAGE II FINAL PLAN 

Planning Division Conditions:  

PDA 1. All travel lanes shall be constructed to be capable of carrying a twenty-three (23) 
ton load. See Finding A47. 

PDA 2. The approved final plan schedule shall control the issuance of all building permits 
and shall restrict the nature, location and design of all uses.  Minor changes to the 
approved final development plan may be approved by the Planning Director 
through administrative review pursuant to Section 4.030 if such changes are 
consistent with the purposes and general character of the plan. All other 
modifications shall be processed in the same manner as the original application and 
shall be subject to the same procedural requirements. 

REQUEST B: DB12-0075 SITE DESIGN REVIEW 

Planning Division Conditions:  

PDB 1. Construction, site development, and landscaping shall be carried out in substantial 
accord with the Development Review Board approved plans, drawings, sketches, 
and other documents. Minor revisions may be approved by the Planning Director 
through administrative review pursuant to Section 4.030. See Findings B3. and 
A49.  

PDB 2. The paint color for the mixed solid waste and recycling enclosures shall be of the 
same or complementary color palette as the restaurant and multi-tenant buildings. 
This includes the walls, gates, and other structural and trim elements. Support 
beams, covers, and roofing material for the enclosures shall be the same or 
complementary to the materials used on restaurant and multi-tenant buildings. It is 
understood a cover may not be required for the enclosure serving the Chevron 
property. Final color choice for the enclosure and along with cover and roofing 
material, shall be approved by the Planning Division through the Class I 
Administrative Review process prior to construction. See Finding B6. 

PDB 3. All landscaping required and approved by the Board shall be installed prior to 
issuance of occupancy permits, unless security equal to one hundred and ten 
percent (110%) of the cost of the landscaping as determined by the Planning 
Director is filed with the City assuring such installation within six (6) months of 
occupancy.  "Security" is cash, certified check, time certificates of deposit, 
assignment of a savings account or such other assurance of completion as shall 
meet with the approval of the City Attorney.  In such cases the developer shall also 
provide written authorization, to the satisfaction of the City Attorney, for the City 

Page 9 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 10 of 60 

or its designees to enter the property and complete the landscaping as approved.  If 
the installation of the landscaping is not completed within the six-month period, or 
within an extension of time authorized by the Board, the security may be used by 
the City to complete the installation.  Upon completion of the installation, any 
portion of the remaining security deposited with the City will be returned to the 
applicant. See Finding B9. 

PDB 4. The approved landscape plan is binding upon the applicant/owner.  Substitution of 
plant materials, irrigation systems, or other aspects of an approved landscape plan 
shall not be made without official action of the Planning Director or Development 
Review Board, pursuant to the applicable sections of Wilsonville’s Development 
Code. See Finding B10. 

PDB 5. All landscaping shall be continually maintained, including necessary watering, 
weeding, pruning, and replacing, in a substantially similar manner as originally 
approved by the Board, unless altered as allowed by Wilsonville’s Development 
Code. See Findings B11 and B12. 

PDB 6. Occupancy shall not be granted for the Carl’s Jr. restaurant building until the 
required screening planting along 95th Avenue is in place and approved by the City.  
A temporary occupancy permit may be issued upon a posting of a bond or other 
security equal to one hundred ten percent (110%) of the cost of such planting and 
its installation. See Findings B20 and B23.  

PDB 7. The following requirements for planting of shrubs and ground cover shall be met: 
• Non-horticultural plastic sheeting or other impermeable surface shall not be 

placed under landscaping mulch. 
• Native topsoil shall be preserved and reused to the extent feasible. 
• Surface mulch or bark dust shall be fully raked into soil of appropriate depth, 

sufficient to control erosion, and shall be confined to areas around plantings.   
• All shrubs shall be well branched and typical of their type as described in 

current AAN Standards and shall be equal to or better than 2-gallon containers 
and 10” to 12” spread.  

• Shrubs shall reach their designed size for screening within three (3) years of 
planting. 

• Ground cover shall be equal to or better than the following depending on the 
type of plant materials used:  gallon containers  spaced at 4 feet on center 
minimum, 4" pot spaced 2 feet on center minimum, 2-1/4" pots spaced at 18 
inch on center minimum. 

• No bare root planting shall be permitted. 
• Ground cover shall be sufficient to cover at least 80% of the bare soil in required 

landscape areas within three (3) years of planting.   
• Appropriate plant materials shall be installed beneath the canopies of trees and 

large shrubs to avoid the appearance of bare ground in those locations. 
• Compost-amended topsoil shall be integrated in all areas to be landscaped, 

including lawns. 
See Finding B24. 

PDB 8. Plant materials shall be installed to current industry standards and be properly 
staked to ensure survival. Plants that die shall be replaced in kind, within one 

Page 10 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 11 of 60 

growing season, unless appropriate substitute species are approved by the City. See 
Finding B29. 

PDB 9. Outdoor lighting associated with the multi-tenant commercial building shall be 
dimmed at 10:00 p.m. by an automatic system. See Finding B41. 

PDB 10. Luminaire U, as shown in the applicant’s lighting plans, and all other luminaires 
shall be limited to down lighting. Luminaires, except luminaire DD, shall be 
mounted and aimed consistent with their fully shielded classification. See Finding 
B38 and B40. 

REQUEST C DB12-0076 MASTER SIGN PLAN FOR BOONES FERRY POINTE 
PDC 1. Non-exempt signs, including the building and freestanding signs, shall be issued a 

Class I Sign Permit through the Planning Division prior to installation to ensure 
compliance with the approved Master Sign Plan. 

PDC 2. Non turf grass landscaping consistent with what is found around the foundation of 
other structures on the site, including shrubs and groundcover, meeting applicable 
Sections of Wilsonville Code shall be provided around the foundation of the 
freestanding sign along Boones Ferry Road, if such sign is installed. The 
landscaping shall be approved by the Planning Division as part of the Class I Sign 
Permit for the sign. See Finding C7. 

PDC 3. All wall mounted signs on the multi-tenant commercial building shall be similarly 
mounted. The applicant/owner shall indicate prior to or with the first sign permit 
for such signs whether exposed raceways are allowed, and such decision shall 
apply to all wall mounted signs for the building. If exposed raceways are allowed 
they shall be painted to match the building fascia on which they are mounted. See 
Finding C8. 

PDC 4. All wall mounted signs shall have the same color of returns. See Finding C8. 
PDC 5. The freestanding sign along Boones Ferry Road north of the multi-tenant retail 

building, if built, shall be no further than fifteen (15) feet from the property line and 
no closer than two (2) feet from a the public sidewalk or other hard surface in the 
public right-of-way. See Finding C22. 

PDC 6. No sign permit or building permit shall be issued for any sign without proof of 
placement approval by easement holders for easements on which it encroaches. 

PDC 7. The illuminated directional signs at internal circulation drive intersections shall be 
limited in height to four (4) feet. See Finding C31. 

PDC 8. The flags on the flag pole located in the plaza north of the multi-tenant commercial 
building shall be limited to thirty (30) feet in height. No more than two (2) flags 
can be displayed. See Finding C14. 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FROM THE ENGINEERING DIVISION, NATURAL 
RESOURCES DIVISION, BUILDING DIVISION, AND TUALATIN VALLEY FIRE 
AND RESCUE FOR ALL REQUESTS  
 
The following Conditions of Approval are provided by the Engineering, Natural Resources, or 
Building Divisions of the City’s Community Development Department or Tualatin Valley Fire 
and Rescue, all of which have authority over development approval. A number of these 
Conditions of Approval are not related to land use regulations under the authority of the 
Development Review Board or Planning Director. Only those Conditions of Approval related to 

Page 11 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 12 of 60 

criteria in Chapter 4 of Wilsonville Code and the Comprehensive Plan, including but not limited 
to those related to traffic level of service, site vision clearance, recording of plats, and 
concurrency, are subject to the Land Use review and appeal process defined in Wilsonville Code 
and Oregon Revised Statutes and Administrative Rules. Other Conditions of Approval are based 
on City Code chapters other than Chapter 4, state law, federal law, or other agency rules and 
regulations. Questions or requests about the applicability, appeal, exemption or non-compliance 
related to these other Conditions of Approval should be directed to the City Department, 
Division, or non-City agency with authority over the relevant portion of the development 
approval.  
 
Engineering Division Conditions: 
Standard Comments: 
PF 1. All construction or improvements to public works facilities shall be in conformance 

to the City of Wilsonville Public Works Standards. 
PF 2. Applicant shall submit insurance requirements to the City of Wilsonville in the 

following amounts: 
General Aggregate      $2,000,000 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate   $2,000,000 
Each Occurrence                 $2,000,000 
Automobile Insurance                                         $1,000,000 
Fire Damage (any one fire)     $    50,000 
Medical Expense (any one person)    $    10,000 

PF 3. No construction of, or connection to, any existing or proposed public 
utility/improvements will be permitted until all plans are approved by Staff, all fees 
have been paid, all necessary permits, right-of-way and easements have been 
obtained and Staff is notified a minimum of 24 hours in advance. 

PF 4. All public utility/improvement plans submitted for review shall be based upon a 
22”x 34” format and shall be prepared in accordance with the City of Wilsonville 
Public Work’s Standards. 

PF 5. Plans submitted for review shall meet the following general criteria: 
 

a. Utility improvements that shall be maintained by the public and are not 
contained within a public right-of-way shall be provided a maintenance access 
acceptable to the City. The public utility improvements shall be centered in a 
minimum 15-ft. wide public easement for single utilities and a minimum 20-ft 
wide public easement for two parallel utilities and shall be conveyed to the City 
on its dedication forms. 

b. Design of any public utility improvements shall be approved at the time of the 
issuance of a Public Works Permit.  Private utility improvements are subject to 
review and approval by the City Building Department. 

c. In the plan set for the PW Permit, existing utilities and features, and proposed 
new private utilities shall be shown in a lighter, grey print.  Proposed public 
improvements shall be shown in bolder, black print. 

d. All elevations on design plans and record drawings shall be based on NAVD 88 
Datum.   

e. All proposed on and off-site public/private utility improvements shall comply 

Page 12 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 13 of 60 

with the State of Oregon and the City of Wilsonville requirements and any 
other applicable codes. 

f. Design plans shall identify locations for street lighting, gas service, power lines, 
telephone poles, cable television, mailboxes and any other public or private 
utility within the general construction area. 

g. As per City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 615, all new gas, telephone, cable, 
fiber-optic and electric improvements etc. shall be installed underground.  
Existing overhead utilities shall be undergrounded wherever reasonably 
possible. 

h. Any final site landscaping and signing shall not impede any proposed or 
existing driveway or interior maneuvering sight distance. 

i. Erosion Control Plan that conforms to City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 482. 
j. Existing/proposed right-of-way, easements and adjacent driveways shall be 

identified. 
k. All engineering plans shall be stamped by a Professional Engineer registered in 

the State of Oregon.  
PF 6. Submit plans in the following general format and order for all public works 

construction to be maintained by the City: 
 

a. Cover sheet 
b. City of Wilsonville construction note sheet 
c. General construction note sheet 
d. Existing conditions plan. 
e. Erosion control and tree protection plan. 
f. Site plan.  Include property line boundaries, water quality pond boundaries, 

sidewalk improvements, right-of-way (existing/proposed), easements 
(existing/proposed), and sidewalk and road connections to adjoining properties. 

g. Grading plan, with 1-foot contours. 
h. Composite utility plan; identify storm, sanitary, and water lines; identify storm 

and sanitary manholes. 
i. Detailed plans; show plan view and either profile view or provide i.e.’s at all 

utility crossings; include laterals in profile view or provide table with i.e.’s at 
crossings; vertical scale 1”= 5’, horizontal scale 1”= 20’ or 1”= 30’. 

j. Street plans. 
k. Storm sewer/drainage plans; number all lines, manholes, catch basins, and 

cleanouts for easier reference 
l. Water and sanitary sewer plans; plan; number all lines, manholes, and cleanouts 

for easier reference. 
m. Detailed plan for storm water detention facility (both plan and profile views), 

including water quality orifice diameter and manhole rim elevations.  Provide 
detail of inlet structure and energy dissipation device. Provide details of drain 
inlets, structures, and piping for outfall structure.  Note that although storm 
water detention facilities are typically privately maintained they will be 
inspected by engineering, and the plans must be part of the Public Works 
Permit set. 

n. Detailed plan for water quality facility (both plan and profile views).  Note that 

Page 13 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 14 of 60 

although storm water quality facilities are typically privately maintained they 
will be inspected by Natural Resources, and the plans must be part of the Public 
Works Permit set. 

o. Composite franchise utility plan. 
p. City of Wilsonville detail drawings. 
q. Illumination plan. 
r. Striping and signage plan. 
s. Landscape plan. 

PF 7. Prior to manhole and sewer line testing, design engineer shall coordinate with the 
City and update the sanitary and stormwater sewer systems to reflect the City’s 
numbering system.  Video testing and sanitary manhole testing will refer to the 
updated numbering system.  Design engineer shall also show the updated 
numbering system on As-Built drawings submitted to the City. 

PF 8. The applicant shall install, operate and maintain adequate erosion control measures 
in conformance with the standards adopted by the City of Wilsonville Ordinance 
No. 482 during the construction of any public/private utility and building 
improvements until such time as approved permanent vegetative materials have 
been installed. 

PF 9. Applicant shall work with City’s Natural Resources office before disturbing any 
soil on the respective site.  If 5 or more acres of the site will be disturbed applicant 
shall obtain a 1200-C permit from the Oregon Department of Environmental 
Quality.  If 1 to less than 5 acres of the site will be disturbed a 1200-CN permit 
from the City of Wilsonville is required. 

PF 10. To lessen the impact of the proposed project on the downstream storm drain 
system, and adjacent properties, project run-off from the site shall be detained and 
limited to the difference between a developed 25-year storm and an undeveloped 
25-year storm. The detention and outfall facilities shall be designed and constructed 
in conformance with the Public Works Standards. 

PF 11. A storm water analysis prepared by a Professional Engineer registered in the State 
of Oregon shall be submitted for review and approval by the City to address 
appropriate pipe and detention facility sizing. 

PF 12. The applicant shall be in conformance with all water quality requirements for the 
proposed development per the Public Works Standards.  If a mechanical water 
quality system is used, prior to City acceptance of the project the applicant shall 
provide a letter from the system manufacturer stating that the system was installed 
per specifications and is functioning as designed. 

PF 13. Storm water quality facilities shall have approved landscape planted and/or some 
other erosion control method installed and approved by the City of Wilsonville 
prior to streets and/or alleys being paved. 

PF 14. The applicant shall provide the City with a Stormwater Maintenance and Access 
Easement (on City approved forms) for City inspection of those portions of the 
storm system to be privately maintained.  Applicant shall maintain all LID storm 
water components and private conventional storm water facilities located within 
medians and from the back of curb onto and including the project site. 

PF 15. Fire hydrants shall be located in compliance with TVF&R fire prevention 
ordinance and approval of TVF&R. 

Page 14 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 15 of 60 

PF 16. All survey monuments on the subject site, or that may be subject to disturbance 
within the construction area, or the construction of any off-site improvements shall 
be adequately referenced and protected prior to commencement of any construction 
activity.  If the survey monuments are disturbed, moved, relocated or destroyed as a 
result of any construction, the project shall, at its cost, retain the services of a 
registered professional land surveyor in the State of Oregon to restore the 
monument to its original condition and file the necessary surveys as required by 
Oregon State law.  A copy of any recorded survey shall be submitted to Staff. 

PF 17. Sidewalks, crosswalks and pedestrian linkages in the public right-of-way shall be in 
compliance with the requirements of the U.S. Access Board. 

PF 18. No surcharging of sanitary or storm water manholes is allowed. 
PF 19. The project shall connect to an existing manhole or install a manhole at each 

connection point to the public storm system and sanitary sewer system.  
PF 20. A City approved energy dissipation device shall be installed at all proposed storm 

system outfalls.  Storm outfall facilities shall be designed and constructed in 
conformance with the Public Works Standards. 

PF 21. All required pavement markings, in conformance with the Transportation Systems 
Plan and the Bike and Pedestrian Master Plan, shall be completed in conjunction 
with any conditioned street improvements. 

PF 22. Street and traffic signs shall have a hi-intensity prismatic finish meeting ASTM 
4956 Spec Type 4 standards. 

PF 23. The applicant shall provide adequate sight distance at all project driveways by 
driveway placement or vegetation control. Specific designs to be submitted and 
approved by the City Engineer. Coordinate and align proposed driveways with 
driveways on the opposite side of the proposed project site. 

PF 24. Access requirements, including sight distance, shall conform to the City's 
Transportation Systems Plan (TSP) or as approved by the City Engineer. 
Landscaping plantings shall be low enough to provide adequate sight distance at all 
street intersections and alley/street intersections. 

PF 25. Applicant shall prepare an Ownership and Maintenance agreement between the 
City and the Owner.  Stormwater or rainwater facilities may be located within the 
public right-of-way upon approval of the City Engineer.  The Ownership and 
Maintenance agreement shall specify that the rainwater and stormwater facilities 
shall be privately maintained by the Applicant; maintenance shall transfer to the 
respective homeowners association when it is formed. 

PF 26. All water lines that are to be temporary dead-end lines due to the phasing of 
construction shall have a valved tee with fire-hydrant assembly installed at the end 
of the line. 

PF 27. Applicant shall provide a minimum 6-foot Public Utility Easement on lot frontages 
to all public right-of-ways. An 8-foot PUE shall be provided along Minor and 
Major Collectors. A 10-ft PUE shall be provided along Minor and Major Arterials. 

PF 28. Mylar Record Drawings:  
At the completion of the installation of any required public improvements, and 
before a 'punch list' inspection is scheduled, the Engineer shall perform a record 
survey. Said survey shall be the basis for the preparation of 'record drawings' which 

Page 15 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 16 of 60 

will serve as the physical record of those changes made to the plans and/or 
specifications, originally approved by Staff, that occurred during construction. 
Using the record survey as a guide, the appropriate changes will be made to the 
construction plans and/or specifications and a complete revised 'set' shall be 
submitted. The 'set' shall consist of drawings on 3 mil. Mylar, an electronic copy in 
AutoCAD, current version, and a digitally signed PDF. 

Specific Comments:  
PF 29. At the request of Staff, DKS Associates completed a Trip Generation and Access 

Analysis dated March 20, 2012.  The project is hereby limited to no more than the 
following impacts. 

 
Estimated New PM Peak Hour Trips 60 

PF 30. The applicant shall pay the City for required ROW and easements ($250 per tax 
lot) for future MP street and signal improvements, in addition to the legal 
descriptions and exhibits.  If quitclaim and reconveyed, applicant shall pay an 
additional $500 per tax lot for recording fees and insurance. 

PF 31. This development is conditioned on the execution of work agreed to by the 
applicant in the Development Agreement filed with Washington County on August 
17, 2012.   

PF 32. The existing 24 inch storm pipe shall be either be removed or abandoned in place 
and filled with compact density fill (CDF), in accordance with the Public Works 
Standards.   

PF 33. All work performed on property belonging to the Oregon Department of 
Transportation shall have the appropriate approval from ODOT prior to work 
taking place.    

PF 34. The proposed 24 inch storm line shall be a public utility and constructed in 
accordance with the Public Works Standards.   

 
Natural Resources Division Conditions: 
This memorandum includes staff conditions of approval. The conditions of approval are based 
on the submitted Stage II Final Plan and Site Design Review. The conditions of approval apply 
to the applicant’s submittal of construction documents (i.e. engineering drawings).  
The following conditions of approval are based on the material submitted by the applicant. 
Any subsequent revisions to the submitted plans may require conditions of approval to be 
modified by staff.  
Stormwater Management: 
NR 1. Pursuant to the policies and implementation measures of the 2012 Stormwater 

Master Plan, the applicant shall prioritize the use of Low Impact Development in 
the design and implementation of the stormwater management system. Low Impact 
Development entails managing rainfall at the source, using decentralized, small 
scale controls that provide infiltration, filtration, vegetative uptake, and the creation 
of extended flow paths. 

NR 2. Submit a final drainage report and drainage plans. The report and plans shall 
demonstrate proposed stormwater facilities satisfy the policies and standards of the 
City of Wilsonville’s Stormwater Master Plan and Public Works Standards. 

NR 3. Provide profiles, plan views and specifications for proposed stormwater facilities 

Page 16 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 17 of 60 

consistent with the requirements of the Public Works Standards. 
NR 4. Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, the applicant shall submit a maintenance 

plan (including the City’s stormwater maintenance and access easement) for 
proposed stormwater facilities prior to approval for occupancy of the associated 
development. 

NR 5. Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, access shall be provided to all areas of 
proposed stormwater facilities. At a minimum, at least one access shall be provided 
for maintenance and inspection. 

Other: 
NR 6. Pursuant to the City of Wilsonville’s Ordinance No. 482, the applicant shall submit 

an erosion and sedimentation control plan. The following techniques and methods 
shall be incorporated, where necessary:  

 
a. Gravel construction entrance; 
b. Stockpiles and plastic sheeting; 
c. Sediment fence; 
d. Inlet protection (Silt sacks are recommended); 
e. Dust control;  
f. Temporary/permanent seeding or wet weather measures (e.g. mulch);  
g. Limits of construction; and 
h. Other appropriate erosion and sedimentation control methods. 

NR 7. The applicant shall comply with all applicable state and federal requirements for 
the proposed construction activities and proposed facilities (e.g. DEQ NPDES 
#1200–C permit). 

NR 8. Pursuant to the Wilsonville City Code, the applicant is required to provide covered 
waste and recycling enclosures. A drain is not allowed within the enclosure, and the 
floor in the enclosure shall be raised to prevent stormwater runoff from entering. 
The enclosure shall contain adequate area for proper use of all receptacles. These 
measures minimize the risk of pollutants entering the public stormwater system. 

 
Building Division Conditions: 
BD 1.    ACCESSIBLE PARKING cannot be fully reviewed at this time.  Accessible 

parking will be fully reviewed as part of the plan review of the building permit.  
The additional information available at plan review may require changes to the 
number and location of accessible parking spaces shown on these preliminary 
plans. 

BD 2.     A GREASE INTERCEPTOR will be required for Carl’s Junior.  If there is a 
possibility that a business requiring a grease interceptor will occupy the new retail 
building, a sewer line shall be run from the retail building to the grease interceptor.  
The grease interceptor shall be sized as directed in the Plumbing Code. 

BD 3.    TRASH ENCLOSURE.  If a drain is installed in the covered trash enclosure it shall 
be plumbed to the grease interceptor. 

 
TVF&R Conditions: 
FD 1. SURFACE AND LOAD CAPACITIES:  Fire apparatus access roads shall be of 

an all-weather surface that is easily distinguishable from the surrounding area and 

Page 17 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 18 of 60 

is capable of supporting not less than 12,500 pounds point load (wheel load) and 
60,000 pounds live load (gross vehicle weight). You may need to provide 
documentation from a registered engineer that the design will be capable of 
supporting such loading. (OFC D102.1)  Applicable to the parking lot. 

FD 2. PAINTED CURBS:  Where required, fire apparatus access roadway curbs shall be 
painted red and marked “NO PARKING FIRE LANE” at approved intervals.  
Lettering shall have a stroke of not less than one inch wide by six inches high.  
Lettering shall be white on red background. (OFC 503.3) Provide curb lane 
striping along the face of the curb at the landscape island housing the new fire 
hydrant. 

FD 3. COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS - REQUIRED FIRE FLOW:  The required fire 
flow for the building shall not exceed 3,000 gallons per minute (GPM) or the 
available GPM in the water delivery system at 20 psi, whichever is less as 
calculated using IFC, Appendix B.  A worksheet for calculating the required fire 
flow is available from the Fire Marshal’s Office. (OFC B105.3)  Please provide a 
current fire flow test of the nearest fire hydrant demonstrating available flow at 
20 psi residual pressure as well as fire flow calculation worksheets.  Please 
forward copies to both TVF&R as well as local building department.  Fire flow 
calculation worksheets as well as instructions are available on our web site at 
www.tvfr.com.   

FD 4. FIRE HYDRANTS – COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS:  Where a portion of the 
building is more than 400 feet from a hydrant on a fire apparatus access road, as 
measured in an approved route around the exterior of the building, on-site fire 
hydrants and mains shall be provided.   This distance may be increased to 600 feet 
for buildings equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system. 
(OFC 507.5.1)  The proposed fire hydrant is obstructed by passenger vehicle 
parking stalls.  Please relocate the new fire hydrant from its proposed location to 
the landscape island to the south.  

FD 5. REFLECTIVE HYDRANT MARKERS:  Fire hydrant locations shall be 
identified by the installation of reflective markers.  The markers shall be blue.  
They shall be located adjacent and to the side of the centerline of the access road 
way that the fire hydrant is located on.  In case that there is no center line, then 
assume a centerline, and place the reflectors accordingly. (OFC 510.1)  

FD 6. PHYSICAL PROTECTION:  Where fire hydrants are subject to impact by a 
motor vehicle, guard posts, bollards or other approved means of protection shall be 
provided. (OFC 507.5.6) Please provide bollards at the new fire hydrant. 

FD 7. CLEAR SPACE AROUND FIRE HYDRANTS:  A 3 foot clear space shall be 
provided around the circumference of fire hydrants. (OFC 507.5.5) 

FD 8. ACCESS AND FIRE FIGHTING WATER SUPPLY DURING 
CONSTRUCTION:  Approved fire apparatus access roadways and fire fighting 
water supplies shall be installed and operational prior to any combustible 
construction or storage of combustible materials on the site. (OFC 1410.1 & 
1412.1) 

FD 9. KNOX BOX:  A Knox Box for building access is required for this building.  
Please contact the Fire Marshal’s Office for an order form and instructions 
regarding installation and placement. (OFC 506.1) Provide a Knox box at each 

Page 18 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 19 of 60 

new building. 
FD 10. PREMISES IDENTIFICATION:  Buildings shall have approved address 

numbers, building numbers or approved building identification placed in a position 
that is plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting the property.  
These numbers shall contrast with their background.  Address numbers shall be 
Arabic numerals or alphabet numbers.  Numbers shall be a minimum of 4 inches 
high with a ½ inch stroke. (OFC 505.1) Please provide a physical address for each 
new building visible from the approaching roadway. 

FD 11. FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS TO EQUIPMENT:  Fire protection equipment 
shall be identified in an approved manner.  Rooms containing controls for HVAC, 
fire sprinklers risers and valves or other fire detection, suppression or control 
features shall be identified with approved signs. (OFC 509.1) 

 
MASTER EXHIBIT LIST: 
 
The following exhibits are hereby entered into the public record by the Development Review 
Board as confirmation of its consideration of the application as submitted. This is the exhibit list 
that includes exhibits for Planning Case File DB12-0074 through DB12-0076. 
 
A1. Staff report and findings (this document) 
A2. Staff’s public hearing presentation slides (not available until public hearing) 
B1.  Applicant’s Notebook (under separate cover): 
 Response to Second Request for Additional Information and Revisions 
 Response to Incomplete Application 
 Outdoor Lighting Photometric Plan 
 Title Report 
 Application 
 Compliance Narrative 
 Prior Approvals 
 Development Agreement Recorded August 17, 2012 
 Earnest Agreement Including Note about Future Application Fees 
 Traffic Impact Report 
 Storm Drainage Report 
 Appendix A: Vicinity Map/Existing Conditions Plan 
 Appendix B: Soil Maps & Classification/Runoff Curve Number Designation 
 Appendix C: Prelim. Storm Design and Prelim. Plans 
 Appendix D: On-site Basin Maps 
 Appendix E: Geotechnical Report 
 Notice Mailing labels provided by applicant 
 Tax Map 
 Reduced Plans (smaller version of Exhibit B2) 
B2.  Plan Sets and Architectural Drawings (under separate cover): 
 Color Perspectives of Carl’s Jr. Building 
 Color Perspectives of Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
 A1.0 Architectural Site Plan 
 A3.1 Plywood Backing Plan (Carl’s Jr. Building) 

Page 19 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 20 of 60 

 A3.0 Floor Plan & Details (Carl’s Jr. Building) 
 A4.0 Exterior Elevations and Details (Carl’s Jr. Building) 
 A5.0 Exterior Elevations (Carl’s Jr. Building) 
 A10.2 Trash Enclosure 
 A13.0 Fixture, Materials, Finishes Schedule 
 T2.0 Occupancy & Exiting Diagram (Carl’s Jr. Building) 
 AC1.0 Floor Plan (Multi-tenant Commercial Building) 
 AC2.0 Elevations (North and South) (Multi-tenant Commercial Building) 
 AC2.1 Retail Building: Elevations (East and West) (Multi-tenant Commercial Building) 
 DD1 Existing Conditions Plan 
 DD2 Preliminary Utility Plan 
 DD3 Preliminary Grading Plan 
 DD4 Shared Driveway Plan and Profile and Holiday Inn Parking Improvements 
 DD5 Proposed Truck Turning Movements 
 L 1.0 Landscape Irrigation Plan 
 L 2.0 Landscape Planting Plan 
 L 3.0 Specifications: Irrigation and Planting Plans 
 SE1.0 Photometric Site Plan 
 SE1.1 Site Lighting Specifications 
 SE1.2 Site Lighting Specifications 
B3.  Materials Boards (available at public hearing or for inspection at Planning office) 
B4. Updated Photometric Plan SE1.4 (under separate cover) 
B5. Correspondence and Related Drawings Received by the City February 25, 2013 

Regarding Concerns about Trash Enclosure Design 
C1. Natural Resource Division Comments and Conditions 
C2. Engineering Division Comments and Conditions 
C3. Building Division Comments and Conditions 
C4. Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue Comments and Conditions 
C5. Comments from Wilsonville Public Works Department 
C6. Comments from Portland General Electric 
 
FINDINGS OF FACT: 
 
1. The statutory 120-day time limit applies to this application. The application was received on 

November 30, 2012.  On December 12, 2012, staff conducted a completeness review within 
the statutorily allowed 30-day review period, and, on January 22, 2013, the Applicant 
submitted new materials. Additional materials were submitted on February 7, 2013. On 
February 8, 2013 the application was deemed complete. The City must render a final decision 
for the request, including any appeals, by June 8, 2013. 
 

2. Surrounding land uses are as follows: 
 

Compass Direction Zone: Existing Use: 
North:  PDI 95th/Boones Ferry Intersection/ Riverwood 

Industrial Campus 

Page 20 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 21 of 60 

East:  PDC Chevron/Boones Ferry Rd. 
South:  PDC Holiday Inn 
West:  PDC 95th Avenue/AGC Center 

 
3. Prior land use actions include: 
 

Edwards Business Center Industrial Park Plat-Stage I 
97DB28 Stage II, Site Design Review, LaPoint Center 
DB06-0041, DB06-0043, DB06-0057, DB06-0042 Stage II Final Plan, Site Design Review, 
Waiver to Building Height, Master Sign Plan for Brice Office Building (Expired) 

 
4. The applicant has complied with Sections 4.013-4.031 of the Wilsonville Code, said sections 

pertaining to review procedures and submittal requirements. The required public notices have 
been sent and all proper notification procedures have been satisfied. 

 
CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS:  
 
NOTE: Pursuant to Section 4.014 the burden of proving that the necessary findings of fact can be 
made for approval of any land use or development application rests with the applicant in the 
case. 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Section 4.008 Application Procedures-In General 
 
Review Criteria: This section lists general application procedures applicable to a number of types of 
land use applications and also lists unique features of Wilsonville’s development review process. 
Finding: These criteria are met.  
Explanation of Finding: The application is being processed in accordance with the applicable 
general procedures of this Section. 
 
Section 4.009 and Subsection 4.140 (.03) Who May Initiate Application and Ownership 
 
Review Criterion: “Except for a Specific Area Plan (SAP), applications involving specific sites may be 
filed only by the owner of the subject property, by a unit of government that is in the process of acquiring 
the property, or by an agent who has been authorized by the owner, in writing, to apply.” “The tract or 
tracts of land included in a proposed Planned Development must be in one (1) ownership or control or the 
subject of a joint application by the owners of all the property included.“ 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The application has been submitted on behalf of the property owner, 
Wilsonville Devco LLC. The application form is signed by Josh Veentjer, Managing Member. A 
small portion of the landscape island improvement are on property owned by LaPoint Business 
Group LLC. Mr. Garry LaPoint has signed an application to include the property in the 
application. 
 
Subsection 4.010 (.02) Pre-Application Conference 
 

Page 21 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 22 of 60 

Review Criteria: This section lists the pre-application process 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: A pre-application conference was held on February 16, 2012 in 
accordance with this subsection. 
 
Subsection 4.011 (.02) B. Lien Payment before Application Approval 
 
Review Criterion: “City Council Resolution No. 796 precludes the approval of any development 
application without the prior payment of all applicable City liens for the subject property. Applicants shall 
be encouraged to contact the City Finance Department to verify that there are no outstanding liens. If the 
Planning Director is advised of outstanding liens while an application is under consideration, the Director 
shall advise the applicant that payments must be made current or the existence of liens will necessitate 
denial of the application.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: No applicable liens exist for the subject property. The application can 
thus move forward. 
 
Subsection 4.035 (.04) A. General Site Development Permit Submission Requirements 
 
Review Criteria: “An application for a Site Development Permit shall consist of the materials specified 
as follows, plus any other materials required by this Code.” Listed 1. through 6. j. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant has provided all of the applicable general submission 
requirements contained in this subsection. 
 
Section 4.110 Zoning-Generally 
 
Review Criteria: “The use of any building or premises or the construction of any development shall be 
in conformity with the regulations set forth in this Code for each Zoning District in which it is located, 
except as provided in Sections 4.189 through 4.192.” “The General Regulations listed in Sections 4.150 
through 4.199 shall apply to all zones unless the text indicates otherwise.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: This proposed development is in conformity with the applicable 
zoning district and general development regulations listed in Sections 4.150 through 4.199 have 
been applied in accordance with this Section. 
  

Page 22 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 23 of 60 

REQUEST A: DB12-0074 STAGE II FINAL PLAN 
 
Planned Development Regulations 
 
Subsection 4.140 (.01) Purpose of Planned Development Regulations 
 
A1. Review Criterion: The proposed Stage II Final Plan shall be consistent with the Planned 

Development Regulations purpose statement. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Based on the information provided by the applicant in their 
narrative, staff is of the professional opinion that the purpose of the planned development 
regulations is met by the proposed Stage II Final Plan. 

 
Subsections 4.140 (.02) and (.05) Planned Development Lot Size and Permit Process 
 
A2. Review Criteria: “Planned Development may be established on lots which are suitable for and of 

a size to be planned and developed in a manner consistent with the purposes and objectives of 
Section 4.140.” “Any site designated for development in the Comprehensive Plan may be 
developed as a Planned Development, provided that it is zoned ‘PD.’  All sites which are greater 
than two (2) acres in size, and designated in the Comprehensive Plan for commercial, residential, 
or industrial use shall be developed as Planned Developments, unless approved for other uses 
permitted by the Development Code.”   
 
 “All parcels of land exceeding two (2) acres in size that are to be used for residential, commercial 
or industrial development, shall, prior to the issuance of any building permit: 
1. Be zoned for planned development; 
2. Obtain a planned development permit; and 
3. Obtain Development Review Board, or, on appeal, City Council approval.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The development site is less than two (2) acres. However, it is 
previously been zoned for Planned Development. The property is designated for 
commercial development in the Comprehensive Plan, and is zoned Planned Development 
Commercial. The property is of sufficient size and will be developed as a planned 
development in accordance with this subsection. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.04) Professional Design Team Required for Planned Developments 
 
A3. Review Criteria: “The applicant for all proposed Planned Developments shall certify that the 

professional services of the appropriate professionals have been utilized in the planning process for 
development. One of the professional consultants chosen by the applicant shall be designated to be 
responsible for conferring with the planning staff with respect to the concept and Explanation of 
the plan.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant’s compliance narrative lists the appropriate 
professionals involved in the planning and permitting process. Ben Altman of SFA Design 
Group has been designated the coordinator for the planning portion of the project.  

 
 
 

Page 23 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 24 of 60 

Stage II Final Plan Submission Requirements and Process 
 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) A. Timing of Submission 
 
A4. Review Criterion: “Unless an extension has been granted by the Development Review Board, 

within two (2) years after the approval or modified approval of a preliminary development plan 
(Stage I), the applicant shall file with the City Planning Department a final plan for the entire 
development or when submission in stages has been authorized pursuant to Section 4.035 for the 
first unit of the development” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: A previous Stage I approval identified the subject property as a 
future commercial stage. A Stage II Final Plan is now being submitted consistent with the 
previous Stage I Master Plan. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) C. Conformance with Stage I and Additional Submission Requirements 
 
A5. Review Criteria: “The final plan shall conform in all major respects with the approved 

preliminary development plan, and shall include all information included in the preliminary plan 
plus the following:” listed 1. through 6. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant states, and staff concurs, that the Stage II plans 
substantially conforms to the proposed revised Stage I Master plan. The applicant has 
provided the required drawings and other documents showing all the additional 
information required by this subsection. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) D. Stage II Final Plan Detail 
 
A6. Review Criterion: “The final plan shall be sufficiently detailed to indicate fully the ultimate 

operation and appearance of the development or phase of development.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant has provided sufficiently detailed information to 
indicate fully the ultimate operation and appearance of the development, including a 
detailed site plan, landscape plans, floor plans, elevation drawings, and material 
information. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) E. Submission of Legal Documents 
 
A7. Review Criterion: “Copies of legal documents required by the Development Review Board for 

dedication or reservation of public facilities, or for the creation of a non-profit homeowner’s 
association, shall also be submitted.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: No additional legal documentation is required for dedication or 
reservation of public facilities. 

 
Subsection 4.140 (.09) J. Planned Development Permit Requirements 
 
A8. Review Criteria: “A planned development permit may be granted by the Development Review 

Board only if it is found that the development conforms to all the following criteria, as well as to 

Page 24 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 25 of 60 

the Planned Development Regulations in Section 4.140:” listed J. 1. through 3. Includes traffic 
level of service requirements. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The proposal is a commercial use in an area designated for 
commercial in the Comprehensive Plan. The proposed uses are at a corner and clustered 
with commercial uses similarly serving the travelling public, thus being part of a 
commercial center rather than strip commercial development. As demonstrated in the 
Traffic Impact Report in the applicant’s notebook, Exhibit B1, specifically Table 2 on page 
4 of the report, the required traffic level of service is being maintained. All utilities and 
services are available to serve the development. 

 
Commercial Development in Any Zone 
 
Subsection 4.116 (.01) Commercial Development to be in Centers and Complexes 
 
A9. Review Criterion: “Commercial developments shall be planned in the form of centers or 

complexes as provided in the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  As noted in the Comprehensive Plan, 
Wilsonville’s focus on centers or complexes is intended to limit strip commercial development.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The proposed commercial development is in the form of a center 
at clustered at an intersection with other commercial development. 

 
Subsection 4.116 (.05) All Commercial Activity to be Completely Enclosed 
 
A10. Review Criteria: “All businesses, service or processing, shall be conducted wholly within a 

completely enclosed building; except for:” Listed A. through G. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: All commercial activity other than exempt activities will be 
within in the proposed buildings. The only exceptions from the list given noted by the 
applicant are off-street parking for customers and employees. Staff notes, there is the 
possibility of outdoor seating, as well as temporary outside sales. 

 
Subsection 4.116 (.07) Uses Limited to those Meeting Industrial Performance Standards 
 
A11. Review Criteria: “Uses shall be limited to those which will meet the performance standards 

specified in Section 4.135(.05), with the exception of 4.135(.05)(M.)(3.).” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The proposed development facilitates commercial uses meeting 
these performance standards. It is understood that all uses will need to continue to meet 
these standards over time. 

 
Subsection 4.116 (.08) Vision Clearance Standards for Corner Lots 
 
A12. Review Criteria: “Corner lots shall conform to the vision clearance standards set forth in Section 

4.177.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Vision clearance has been reviewed by the City’s Engineering 
Division and the City’s Public Works standards for vision clearance are met. 

Page 25 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 26 of 60 

 
Subsection 4.116 (.10) Commercial Development Generally 
 
A13. Review Criteria: This subsection lists a number of requirements for commercial development 

such as setback, lot size, lot coverage, and street frontage requirements. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: All the applicable standards listed in this subsection are met. 

 
Subsection 4.116 (.14) B. Prohibited Uses 
 
A14. Review Criteria: “Any use that violates the performance standards of Section 4.135(.05), other 

than 4.135(.05)(M.)(3.) is prohibited within commercial developments.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: No uses prohibited by this subsection are proposed. 

 
Standards Applying in All Planned Development Zones 
 
Subsection 4.118 (.01) Additional Height Guidelines 
 
A15. Review Criterion: “In cases that are subject to review by the Development Review Board, the 

Board may further regulate heights as follows:  
A. Restrict or regulate the height or building design consistent with adequate provision of 
fire protection and fire-fighting apparatus height limitations. 
B. To provide buffering of low density developments by requiring the placement of three or 
more story buildings away from the property lines abutting a low density zone. 
C. To regulate building height or design to protect scenic vistas of Mt. Hood or the 
Willamette River.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Staff does not recommend the Development Review Board 
require a height less than the applicant proposes as the proposed height provides for fire 
protection access, does not abut a low density zone, and does not impact scenic views of 
Mt. Hood or the Willamette River. 

 
Subsection 4.118 (.03) Waivers 
 
A16. Review Criteria: “Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.140 to the contrary, the 

Development Review Board, in order to implement the purposes and objectives of Section 4.140, 
and based on findings of fact supported by the record may” waive a number of standards as listed 
in A. through E.  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: No planned development waivers have been requested by the 
applicant or are necessary to approve the application as proposed. 

 
Subsection 4.118 (.03) E. Other Requirements or Restrictions 
 
A17. Review Criteria: “Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 4.140 to the contrary, the 

Development Review Board, in order to implement the purposes and objectives of Section 4.140, 
and based on findings of fact supported by the record may adopt other requirements or restrictions, 
inclusive of, but not limited to, the following:” Listed 1. through 12. 

Page 26 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 27 of 60 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: No additional requirements or restrictions are recommended 
pursuant to this subsection. 

 
Subsection 4.118 (.04) Effect of Determination of Compliance and Conditions of Approval on 
Development Cost 
 
A18. Review Criteria: “The Planning Director and Development Review Board shall, in making their 

determination of compliance in attaching conditions, consider the effects of this action on 
availability and cost.  The provisions of this section shall not be used in such a manner that 
additional conditions, either singularly or cumulatively, have the effect of unnecessarily increasing 
the cost of development.  However, consideration of these factors shall not prevent the Board from 
imposing conditions of approval necessary to meet the minimum requirements of the 
Comprehensive Plan and Code.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: It is staff’s professional opinion that the determination of 
compliance or attached conditions do not unnecessarily increase the cost of development, 
and no evidence has been submitted to the contrary. 

 
Subsection 4.118 (.05) Requirements to Set Aside Tracts for Certain Purposes 
 
A19. Review Criteria: “The Planning Director, Development Review Board, or on appeal, the City 

Council, may as a condition of approval for any development for which an application is submitted, 
require that portions of the tract or tracts under consideration be set aside, improved, conveyed or 
dedicated for the following uses:” Recreational Facilities, Open Space Area, Easements.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: No additional tracts are being required for the purposes given. 

 
Subsection 4.118 (.09) Habitat Friendly Development Practices 
 
A20. Review Criteria: “To the extent practicable, development and construction activities of any lot 

shall consider the use of habitat-friendly development practices, which include:  
A. Minimizing grading, removal of native vegetation, disturbance and removal of native 
soils, and impervious area; 
B. Minimizing adverse hydrological impacts on water resources, such as using the practices 
described in Part (a) of Table NR-2 in Section 4.139.03, unless their use is prohibited by an 
applicable and required state or federal permit, such as a permit required under the federal Clean 
Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et seq., or the federal Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. §§300f et 
seq., and including conditions or plans required by such permit; 
C. Minimizing impacts on wildlife corridors and fish passage, such as by using the practices 
described in Part (b) of Table NR-2 in Section 4.139.03; and  
D. Using the practices described in Part (c) of Table NR-2 in Section 4.139.03.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: As stated by the applicant, “The site has previously been rough 
graded and there is no significant native vegetation. The site does not contain any SROZ 
and no fish or wildlife habitats are associated with this property. The site has been 
designed consistent with the Habitat-Friendly practices. The storm system design provides 
for on-site water quality and volume control which protects the downstream wetland area 
south of the AGC building.” 

Page 27 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 28 of 60 

 
Planned Development Commercial Zone 
 
Subsection 4.131 (.01) A. 1. Uses Typically Permitted 
 
A21. Review Criteria: This subsection lists the uses that are typically permitted in the PDC Zone. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The proposed uses include a fast food restaurant (service 
establishment) and a commercial building for tenants yet to be determined. The remaining 
tenants can be a variety of commercial uses listed in this subsection as long as parking and 
other requirements continue to be met.  

 
Subsection 4.131 (.02) Prohibited Uses 
 
A22. Review Criteria: This subsection lists the prohibited uses in the PDC Zone. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant has not proposed any prohibited uses for the site. 

 
Subsection 4.131 (.03) 1. Block and Access Standards: Connectivity for Different Modes 
 
A23. Review Criteria: “The Development Review Board shall determine appropriate conditions of 

approval to assure that adequate connectivity results for pedestrians, bicyclists, and motor vehicle 
drivers.  Consideration shall be given to the use of public transit as a means of meeting access 
needs.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: No new blocks are proposed, and the proposed development 
proposes to use the existing shared private driveway on 95th Avenue partially on the 
subject property. A development agreement has been agreed upon between the owner of 
the subject property, neighboring properties, and the City ensuring appropriate access from 
the shared driveway. 

 
Parking and Loading 
 
Subsection 4.155 (.02) General Parking Provisions 
 
A24. Review Criteria: This subsection lists a number of general provisions for parking. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant has provided sufficient information demonstrating 
compliance with the provisions in this subsection applicable to State II Final Plan review. 
Among the information provided parking calculations on sheet A1.0. of Exhibit B2. Staff 
specifically points out the following: 
• In relation to provision B. all parking areas are accessible and usable for parking 
• In relation to provisions D. the provided parking exceeds to the sum of the minimum 

parking for the fast food restaurant and the multi-tenant commercial building.  
• In relation to provision J. a note on sheet A1.0 of Exhibit B2 states this requirement 

will be met. 
• In relation to provision K. the parking area is paved and provided with adequate 

drainage.  

Page 28 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 29 of 60 

• In relation to provision L. the parking lot lighting is fully shielded as to not shine into 
adjoining structures or the eyes of passerby’s. 

• In relation to provision N. 12 compact parking spaces are proposed, which is less than 
forty (40) percent of the proposed parking spaces. They are shown appropriately 
marked on Sheet A1.0 of Exhibit B2. 

 
Subsection 4.155 (.03) A. Functional Design of Parking, Loading, and Delivery Areas  
 
A25. Review Criteria: “Parking and loading or delivery areas shall be designed with access and 

maneuvering area adequate to serve the functional needs of the site and shall: 
1. Separate loading and delivery areas and circulation from customer and/or employee 
parking and pedestrian areas.  Circulation patterns shall be clearly marked. 
2. To the greatest extent possible, separate vehicle and pedestrian traffic.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Sheet DD5 “Proposed Truck Turning Movements” of Exhibit B2 
demonstrates sufficient access and maneuvering areas for delivery trucks, both for the 
Chevron fuel and Carl’s Jr. and the other commercial tenants. Staff notes fuel off-loading, 
and restaurant other commercial delivery parking are in the same area of the site separating 
these operations from the general employee and customer parking and pedestrian areas.  
The access and maneuvering areas for passenger vehicle parking areas appears sufficient 
providing adequate space for two-way travel. The applicant states on page 33 of the 
compliance narrative in their notebook, Exhibit B1, that “care has been given to the extent 
practicable to separate vehicle and pedestrian traffic.” Staff has reviewed the site plan and 
found no code supported site changes to further separate pedestrian and vehicle traffic. 

 
Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 1.-3. Parking Area Landscaping 
 
A26. Review Criteria: “Parking and loading or delivery areas shall be landscaped to minimize the 

visual dominance of the parking or loading area, as follows:” Listed 1. through 3. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: As shown in the planting plans (applicant’s sheet L1.0), the 
required amount of landscaping and trees are provided.  

 
Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 4. Parking and Loading Areas-Safe and Convenient Access 
 
A27. Review Criterion: “Be designed for safe and convenient access that meets ADA and ODOT 

standards.  All parking areas which contain ten (10) or more parking spaces, shall for every fifty 
(50) standard spaces., provide one ADA-accessible parking space that is constructed to building 
code standards, Wilsonville Code 9.000.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Two ADA parking spaces are proposed. 

 
Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 5.Parking Connectivity and Efficient On-site Circulation  
 
A28. Review Criteria: “Where possible, parking areas shall be designed to connect with parking areas 

on adjacent sites so as to eliminate the necessity of utilizing the public street for multiple accesses 
or cross movements.  In addition, on-site parking shall be designed for efficient on-site circulation 
and parking.” 

Page 29 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 30 of 60 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The proposed development adds to an existing commercial 
center that includes a fuel station, convenience market, sit down restaurant, convention 
center, and hotel. The proposed uses as well as the existing Chevron and Holiday Inn share 
a common driveway off 95th Avenue and their access and parking areas are interconnected. 
Joint use of many the access and maneuvering areas is covered in the Development 
Agreement, a copy of which is in the applicant’s notebook, Exhibit B1. No specific 
standards are listed in the code to determine efficiency of on-site circulation and parking. 
Two factors commonly considered to determine such efficiency include proximity of 
parking to likely destinations, and direct vehicle and pedestrian paths between destinations 
with limited choke points. Parking is provided close to both the Carl’s Jr restaurant and 
multi-tenant building allowing for short, efficient pedestrian trips after parking. Multiple 
pedestrian accesses from the public sidewalk are provided, including ones providing the 
most direct path from the sidewalk to business entrances. All vehicles enter the site 
through a shared driveway with Holiday Inn and Chevron. While this could become a 
choke point, care has been taken to design the driveway for optimal performance to 
minimize traffic delays, as reflected in the Development Agreement. Straight drive aisles 
and multiple access points allow for direct vehicle travel within the site. In addition, the 
drive-thru lane is designed to allow for quick and efficient exiting use of the site.  

 
Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 8. Parking Minimum and Maximum 
 
A29. Review Criteria: “Tables 5, below, shall be used to determine the minimum and maximum 

parking standards for various land uses.  The minimum number of required parking spaces shown 
on Tables 5 shall be determined by rounding to the nearest whole parking space.”   
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: As shown in the table below, the proposed parking is consistent 
with Table 5: Parking Standards. 

 

Use 
Floor 
Area Min Max Min Max Provided 

Fast food (with drive-thru) 2,867 9.9 per 1,000 
SF 

14.9 per 1000 
SF 28 43  

Retail 3150 4.1 per 1,000 
SF 

6.2 per 1000 
SF 13 20  

Standard Spaces      34 

Compact Spaces (40% Max)    -- 18 12 

Total Non-ADA Spaces    41 60 46 

ADA Spaces 
      

 1  -- 2 

   
Total Parking Spaces 48 

 
Subsection 4.155 (.04) A. Required Number of Loading Berths 
 

Page 30 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 31 of 60 

A30. Review Criteria: This subsection defines the requirements for loading berths including when 
loading berths are required and size requirements. 
Finding: These criteria are not applicable. 
Explanation of Finding: No loading berths are required for commercial uses of the 
proposed floor area. 

 
Section 4.167 Access, Ingress, and Egress 
 
A31. Review Criterion: “Each access onto streets or private drives shall be at defined points as 

approved by the City and shall be consistent with the public's health, safety and general welfare.  
Such defined points of access shall be approved at the time of issuance of a building permit if not 
previously determined in the development permit.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The access points for the development site are existing and 
approved by the City. No change in access is proposed. 

 
Natural Features 
 
Section 4.171 Protection of Natural Features and Other Resources 
 
A32. Review Criteria: This section provides for the protection of a number of natural features and 

other resources including: general terrain preparation, hillsides, trees and wooded areas, high 
voltage powerline easements and rights of way and petroleum pipeline easements, earth movement 
hazard areas, soil hazard areas, historic resources, and cultural resources. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: None of the resources listed in this section exist on the site or 
will be foreseeably negatively impacted by the development. 

 
Public Safety and Crime Prevention 
 
Subsection 4.175 (.01) Design to Deter Crime and Ensure Public Safety 
 
A33. Review Criterion: “All developments shall be designed to deter crime and insure public safety.” 

Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant asserts, and staff concurs, that attention has been 
given to site design to deter crime and allow natural surveillance. Staff has no evidence 
that the proposed development would otherwise negatively impact public safety. 

 
Subsection 4.175 (.02) Addressing and Directional Signing 
 
A34. Review Criteria: “Addressing and directional signing shall be designed to assure identification 

of all buildings and structures by emergency response personnel, as well as the general public.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The design of the site provides for appropriate addressing and 
directional signage to assure easy identification. Addressing is on freestanding sign and 
buildings. 

 
Subsection 4.175 (.03) Surveillance and Police Access 
 

Page 31 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 32 of 60 

A35. Review Criterion: “Areas vulnerable to crime shall be designed to allow surveillance.  Parking 
and loading areas shall be designed for access by police in the course of routine patrol duties.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The parking and loading areas are easily assessable to law 
enforcement. 

 
Subsection 4.175 (.04) Lighting to Discourage Crime 
 
A36. Review Criterion: “Exterior lighting shall be designed and oriented to discourage crime.” 

Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: While exterior lighting has been minimized that applicant states 
that it has been designed and oriented to discourage crime. 

 
Landscaping Standards 
 
Subsection 4.176 (.01) Purpose of Landscape, Screening, and Buffering 
 
A37. Review Criteria: “This Section consists of landscaping and screening standards and regulations 

for use throughout the City.  The regulations address materials, placement, layout, and timing of 
installation.  The City recognizes the ecological and economic value of landscaping and requires 
the use of landscaping and other screening or buffering to:” Listed A. through K. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: In complying with the various landscape standards in Section 
4.176 the applicant has demonstrated the proposed Stage II Final Plan is in compliance 
with the landscape purpose statement. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.02) B. Landscaping Standards and Code Compliance 
 
A38. Review Criteria: “All landscaping and screening required by this Code must comply with all of 

the provisions of this Section, unless specifically waived or granted a Variance as otherwise 
provided in the Code.  The landscaping standards are minimum requirements; higher standards can 
be substituted as long as fence and vegetation-height limitations are met.  Where the standards set a 
minimum based on square footage or linear footage, they shall be interpreted as applying to each 
complete or partial increment of area or length” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: No waivers or variances to landscape standards have been 
requested. Thus all landscaping and screening must comply with standards of this section.  

 
Subsection 4.176 (.02) C. 1. General Landscape Standards-Intent 
 
A39. Review Criteria: “The General Landscaping Standard is a landscape treatment for areas that are 

generally open.  It is intended to be applied in situations where distance is used as the principal 
means of separating uses or developments and landscaping is required to enhance the intervening 
space. Landscaping may include a mixture of ground cover, evergreen and deciduous shrubs, and 
coniferous and deciduous trees.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant’s submitted landscape plans (applicant’s sheets L 
1.0 through L3.0) show a variety of plant materials and placement consistent with the 

Page 32 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 33 of 60 

general landscape standard, specifically along the frontage with SW 95th Avenue and SW 
Boones Ferry Road. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.02) C. 2. General Landscape Standards-Required Materials 
 
A40. Review Criteria: “Shrubs and trees, other than street trees, may be grouped.  Ground cover 

plants must fully cover the remainder of the landscaped area (see Figure 21:  General 
Landscaping).  The General Landscaping Standard has two different requirements for trees and 
shrubs: 
a. Where the landscaped area is less than 30 feet deep, one tree is required for every 30 
linear feet. 
b. Where the landscaped area is 30 feet deep or greater, one tree is required for every 800 
square feet and two high shrubs or three low shrubs are required for every 400 square feet.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The planting plan (applicant’s sheet L2.0) shows landscaping 
meeting the functional requirements of this subsection.  

 
Subsection 4.176 (.02) E. 1. High Screen Landscape Standard-Intent 
 
A41. Review Criterion: “The High Screen Landscaping Standard is a landscape treatment that relies 

primarily on screening to separate uses or developments.  It is intended to be applied in situations 
where visual separation is required.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant’s submitted landscape plans, sheet L2.0 of Exhibit 
B2, shows plantings consistent with high screen landscape standard to provide visual 
screening of the drive-thru signage so as to make the signage not visible from off-site. 
consistent with the requirements of Subsection 4.176 (.04) C.  

 
Subsection 4.176 (.02) E. 2. High Screen Landscape Standard-Required Materials 
 
A42. Review Criteria: “The High Screen Landscaping Standard requires sufficient high shrubs to 

form a continuous screen at least six (6) feet high and 95% opaque, year-round.  In addition, one 
tree is required for every 30 linear feet of landscaped area, or as otherwise required to provide a 
tree canopy over the landscaped area.  Ground cover plants must fully cover the remainder of the 
landscaped area.  A six (6) foot high masonry wall or a berm may be substituted for the shrubs, but 
the trees and ground cover plants are still required.  When applied along street lot lines, the screen 
or wall is to be placed along the interior side of the landscaped area.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The high screen standard is being used to block off-site visibility 
of the drive-thru signage so as to allow the signs to be exempt from sign permit 
requirements pursuant to Subsection 4.156.05 (.02) E. The proposed landscape material is 
sufficient to provide a six (6) foot high screen, 95% opaque year around, for a sufficient 
length to block off-site view of the drive-thru signs. Details of plant materials are reviewed 
as part of Request B, Site Design Review. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.03) Landscape Area and Locations 
 
A43. Review Criteria: “Not less than fifteen percent (15%) of the total lot area, shall be landscaped 

with vegetative plant materials.  The ten percent (10%) parking area landscaping required by 

Page 33 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 34 of 60 

section 4.155.03(B)(1) is included in the fifteen percent (15%) total lot landscaping requirement.  
Landscaping shall be located in at least three separate and distinct areas of the lot, one of which 
must be in the contiguous frontage area.  Planting areas shall be encouraged adjacent to structures.  
Landscaping shall be used to define, soften or screen the appearance of buildings and off-street 
parking areas.  Materials to be installed shall achieve a balance between various plant forms, 
textures, and heights. The installation of native plant materials shall be used whenever practicable.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: According to the applicant’s sheet L 2.0 16,139 square feet of 
the 55,605 square foot site, or twenty-nine percent (29%), is proposed to be in landscaping. 
This will be reduced by twenty-four (24) square feet to 16,115 square feet to allow a wider 
trash enclosure for Chevron as described in Exhibit B5. The landscaping is in a variety of 
areas throughout the site, including the street frontage areas. Landscaping is placed along 
the streets to soften the look of off-street parking areas. As shown on the applicant’s sheet 
L 2.0 a variety of landscape materials are being used. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.04) Buffering and Screening 
 
A44. Review Criteria: “Additional to the standards of this subsection, the requirements of the Section 

4.137.5 (Screening and Buffering Overlay Zone) shall also be applied, where applicable. 
C. All exterior, roof and ground mounted, mechanical and utility equipment shall be 
screened from ground level off-site view from adjacent streets or properties. 
D. All outdoor storage areas shall be screened from public view, unless visible storage has 
been approved for the site by the Development Review Board or Planning Director acting on a 
development permit. 
E. In all cases other than for industrial uses in industrial zones, landscaping shall be 
designed to screen loading areas and docks, and truck parking. 
F. In any zone any fence over six (6) feet high measured from soil surface at the outside of 
fenceline shall require Development Review Board approval.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The buildings are designed so architectural parapets screen roof 
mounted equipment. Mixed-solid waste and recycling storage areas are within screening 
enclosures. No additional outdoor storage areas are proposed. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.09) Landscape Plans 
 
A45. Review Criteria: “Landscape plans shall be submitted showing all existing and proposed 

landscape areas.  Plans must be drawn to scale and show the type, installation size, number and 
placement of materials.  Plans shall include a plant material list. Plants are to be identified by both 
their scientific and common names. The condition of any existing plants and the proposed method 
of irrigation are also to be indicated.”   
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Applicant’s sheets L 1.0, L 2.0, L 3.0 provide the required 
information. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.12) Mitigation Standards 
 
A46. Review Criterion: “A mitigation plan is to be approved by the City’s Development Review 

Board before the destruction, damage, or removal of any existing native plants.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 

Page 34 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 35 of 60 

Explanation of Finding: No existing native plans are being removed requiring a 
mitigation plan pursuant to this subsection. 

 
Other Standards 
 
Section 4.177 Street Improvement Standards 
 
A47. Review Criteria: This section establishes improvement standards for public streets, along with 

private access drives and travel lanes. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDA 1. 
Explanation of Finding:  
• Access is provided to the proposed development clear of any obstructions. 
• The travel lanes are proposed to be asphalt. The condition of approval will ensure the 

travel lane is constructed so as to be capable of carrying a 23-ton load. 
• All access lanes are a minimum of 12 feet. 
• The development will comply with requirements of the Fire District. 
• No construction is proposed in the public right-of-way 

 
Section 4.178 Sidewalk and Pathway Standards 
 
A48. Review Criteria: This section establishes standards for sidewalks and pathways. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: No new sidewalks, as defined by Wilsonville Code 4.001, or 
bicycle paths are required or proposed in relation to the proposed development. The 
pedestrian pathways provided on the site provide reasonably direct connections between 
likely destinations. See also Finding A28. 

 
Section 4.179 Mixed Solid Waste and Recyclables Storage 
 
A49. Review Criteria: This section establishes standards for mixed solid waste and recyclables 

storage in new multi-family residential and non-residential buildings. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding:  

• As shown on page 51 of the compliance report in the applicant’s notebook, Exhibit 
B1, the minimum square footage of mixed solid waste and recyclables storage is 
well exceeded. 

• Allied Waste, the City’s franchise waste hauler, has approved the waste enclosures. 
See letter following page 15 of Response to Incomplete Application in the 
applicant’s notebook, Exhibit B1. However, in Exhibit B5, Allied Waste expresses 
concern about the cover for the Chevron enclosure based on additional information 
on the type of containers being used. However, this concern is not under the 
authority of the DRB to review. With or without a cover, the enclosure will meet 
requirements of this Section.  

• The proposed increase of the Chevron enclosure by approximately 2’ 2”, as 
requested by Exhibit B5, and mentioned as necessary in Allied Waste’s letter in 
Exhibit B5, continues to meet the requirements of this Section and is being 
approved as part of this request. 

Page 35 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 36 of 60 

 
Sections 4.199.20 Outdoor Lighting 
 
A50. Review Criteria: This section states that the outdoor lighting ordinance is applicable to 

“Installation of new exterior lighting systems in public facility, commercial, industrial and multi-
family housing projects with common areas” and “Major additions or modifications (as defined in 
this Section) to existing exterior lighting systems in public facility, commercial, industrial and 
multi-family housing projects with common areas.” In addition the exempt luminaires and lighting 
systems are listed. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: All the outdoor lighting for the new development on the site is 
being required to comply with the outdoor lighting ordinance. A photometric site plan has 
been provided, sheet SE1.4 (Exhibit B4), showing the functional effect of the proposed 
lighting on the site. Detailed requirements for site lighting are being reviewed as a 
component of Request B, Site Design Review, of this application. See Findings B35 
through B40. 

 
Sections 4.300-4.320 and Subsection 4.118 (.02) Underground Installation of Utilities 
 
A51. Review Criteria: These sections list requirements regarding the underground installation of 

utilities. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: There are no existing overhead facilities that require 
undergrounding as part of this development. All new utilities associated with the 
development are proposed to be installed underground. 

  

Page 36 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 37 of 60 

REQUEST B: DB12-0075 SITE DESIGN REVIEW 
 
Site Design Review 
 
Subsection 4.400 (.01) and Subsection 4.421 (.03) Excessive Uniformity, Inappropriateness of 
Design, Etc. 
 
B1. Review Criteria: “The Board shall also be guided by the purpose of Section 4.400, and such 

objectives shall serve as additional criteria and standards.” “Excessive uniformity, 
inappropriateness or poor design of the exterior appearance of structures and signs and the lack of 
proper attention to site development and landscaping in the business, commercial, industrial and 
certain residential areas of the City hinders the harmonious development of the City, impairs the 
desirability of residence, investment or occupation in the City, limits the opportunity to attain the 
optimum use in value and improvements, adversely affects the stability and value of property, 
produces degeneration of property in such areas and with attendant deterioration of conditions 
affecting the peace, health and welfare, and destroys a proper relationship between the taxable 
value of property and the cost of municipal services therefor.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant provides a response to this subsection on pages 
57-59 of the compliance narrative in their notebook, Exhibit B1. Staff summarizes the 
compliance with this subjection as follows: 
Excessive Uniformity: The design of the buildings are different from each other, including 
different roof types, and have an architectural character unique from the surrounding 
development preventing uniformity. 
Inappropriate or Poor Design of the Exterior Appearance of Structures: Besides signs, 
structures on the site include the two buildings and solid waste and recycling enclosures. 
The buildings have been professionally designed with a unique historic “small-town” 
theme indicative of other commercial development in Wilsonville including Old Town 
Square (Fred Meyer development). The result is a professional design appropriate for 
Wilsonville. The waste and recycling enclosures are of a construction and design typical 
for their intended use.  
Inappropriate or Poor Design of Signs: Signs are typical of the type of development 
proposed and meet applicable City standards. See Request C, Master Sign Plan. 
Lack of Proper Attention to Site Development: The appropriate professional services have 
been used to design the site incorporating unique features of the site including site size and 
shape and available access, demonstrating appropriate attention being given to site 
development. 
Lack of Proper Attention to Landscaping: Landscaping is provided exceeding the area 
requirements, has been professionally designed by a landscape architect, and includes a 
variety of plant materials, all demonstrating appropriate attention being given to 
landscaping.  

 
Subsection 4.400 (.02) and Subsection 4.421 (.03) Purposes of Objectives of Site Design 
Review 
 
B2. Review Criteria: “The Board shall also be guided by the purpose of Section 4.400, and such 

objectives shall serve as additional criteria and standards.” “The City Council declares that the 

Page 37 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 38 of 60 

purposes and objectives of site development requirements and the site design review procedure are 
to:” Listed A through J. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant provides a response to this subsection on pages 
57-59 of the compliance narrative in their notebook, Exhibit B1, demonstrating compliance 
with the listed purposes and objectives. In short, the proposal provides a high quality 
design appropriate for the site and its location in Wilsonville. 

 
Section 4.420 Development in Accordance with Plans 
 
B3. Review Criteria: The section states that development is required in accord with plans approved 

by the Development Review Board. 
Finding: These criteria will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 1. 
Explanation of Finding: A condition of approval has been included to ensure 
construction, site development, and landscaping are carried out in substantial accord with 
the Development Review Board approved plans, drawings, sketches, and other documents. 
No building permits will be granted prior to development review board approval.  

 
Subsection 4.421 (.01) and (.02) Site Design Review-Design Standards 
 
B4. Review Criteria: This subsection lists the design standards for Site Design Review. Listed A 

through G.  Pursuant to subsection (.02) ““The standards of review outlined in Sections (a) through 
(g) above shall also apply to all accessory buildings, structures, exterior signs and other site 
features, however related to the major buildings or structures.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant has provided sufficient information demonstrating 
compliance with the standards of this subsection. Among the information provided is a 
written response to these standards on page 61 of the compliance narrative in the 
applicant’s notebook, Exhibit B1.  

 
Subsection 4.421 (.05) Site Design Review-Conditions of Approval 
 
B5. Review Criterion: “The Board may attach certain development or use conditions in granting an 

approval that are determined necessary to insure the proper and efficient functioning of the 
development, consistent with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, allowed densities and the 
requirements of this Code.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: No additional conditions of approval are recommended to ensure 
the proper and efficient functioning of the development. 

 
Subsection 4.421 (.06) Color or Materials Requirements 
 
B6. Review Criterion: “The Board or Planning Director may require that certain paints or colors of 

materials be used in approving applications.  Such requirements shall only be applied when site 
development or other land use applications are being reviewed by the City.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied will be satisfied by a Condition of Approval PDB 2. 
Explanation of Finding: It is not clear what paint colors and roofing material, if a cover is 
constructed, is being used for the trash enclosures. The condition of approval requires the 

Page 38 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 39 of 60 

colors of any roof of trash enclosures mirror the color themes and roofing materials used 
on the buildings. 

 
Section 4.430 Design of Trash and Recycling Enclosures 
 
B7. Review Criteria: “The following locations, design and access standards for mixed solid waste 

and recycling storage areas shall be applicable to the requirements of Section 4.179 of the 
Wilsonville City Code.” Listed (.02) A. through (.04) C. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant has provided sufficient information demonstrating 
the planned mixed solid waste and recyclables enclosure and other waste management 
features on the site comply with the standards of this section. Among the information 
provided is a written response to the standards of this section on pages 63 of the 
compliance narrative and pages 13-14 of the Response to Incomplete Application, both in 
the applicant’s notebook, Exhibit B1 and additional information in Exhibit B5. 

 
Section 4.440 Site Design Review-Submittal Requirements 
 
B8. Review Criteria: This section lists additional submittal requirements for Site Design Review in 

addition to those listed in Section 4.035. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant has submitted the required additional materials, as 
applicable. 

 
Subsection 4.450 (.01) Landscape Installation or Bonding 
 
B9. Review Criterion: “All landscaping required by this section and approved by the Board shall be 

installed prior to issuance of occupancy permits, unless security equal to one hundred and ten 
percent (110%) of the cost of the landscaping as determined by the Planning Director is filed with 
the City assuring such installation within six (6) months of occupancy.  "Security" is cash, certified 
check, time certificates of deposit, assignment of a savings account or such other assurance of 
completion as shall meet with the approval of the City Attorney.  In such cases the developer shall 
also provide written authorization, to the satisfaction of the City Attorney, for the City or its 
designees to enter the property and complete the landscaping as approved.  If the installation of the 
landscaping is not completed within the six-month period, or within an extension of time 
authorized by the Board, the security may be used by the City to complete the installation.  Upon 
completion of the installation, any portion of the remaining security deposited with the City shall 
be returned to the applicant.” 
Finding: This criterion will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 3. 
Explanation of Finding: The condition of approval will assure installation or appropriate 
security at the time occupancy is requested. 

 
Subsection 4.450 (.02) Approved Landscape Plan Binding 
 
B10. Review Criterion: “Action by the City approving a proposed landscape plan shall be binding 

upon the applicant.  Substitution of plant materials, irrigation systems, or other aspects of an 
approved landscape plan shall not be made without official action of the Planning Director or 
Development Review Board, as specified in this Code.” 
Finding: This criterion will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 4. 

Page 39 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 40 of 60 

Explanation of Finding: The condition of approval shall provide ongoing assurance this 
criterion is met. 

 
Subsection 4.450 (.03) Landscape Maintenance and Watering 
 
B11. Review Criterion: “All landscaping shall be continually maintained, including necessary 

watering, weeding, pruning, and replacing, in a substantially similar manner as originally approved 
by the Board, unless altered with Board approval.” 
Finding: This criterion will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 5. 
Explanation of Finding: The condition of approval will ensure landscaping is continually 
maintained in accordance with this subsection. 

 
Subsection 4.450 (.04) Addition and Modifications of Landscaping 
 
B12. Review Criterion: “If a property owner wishes to add landscaping for an existing development, 

in an effort to beautify the property, the Landscape Standards set forth in Section 4.176 shall not 
apply and no Plan approval or permit shall be required.  If the owner wishes to modify or remove 
landscaping that has been accepted or approved through the City’s development review process, 
that removal or modification must first be approved through the procedures of Section 4.010.” 
Finding: This criterion will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 5. 
Explanation of Finding: The condition of approval shall provide ongoing assurance that 
this criterion is met by preventing modification or removal without the appropriate City 
review. The landscape plan approval in this DRB action includes the slight reduction in 
landscaping, including groundcover and one (1) Otto Luyken Laurel, necessary to facilitate 
the 2’ 2’ widening of the Chevron solid waste and recycling enclosure. 

 
Parking 
 
Subsection 4.155 (.02) Provision and Maintenance of Off-Street Parking 
 
B13. Review Criteria: This subsection lists general provisions for parking, A. through O. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The design of the parking described and illustrated in the 
applicant’s submitted narrative and plans in relation to these provisions are consistent with 
the purpose of site design review and the proposed Stage II Final Plan for the site. See 
Finding A24 under Request A. 

 
Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 1.-3. Landscaping of Parking Areas 
 
B14. Review Criteria: “Parking and loading or delivery areas shall be landscaped to minimize the 

visual dominance of the parking or loading area, as follows:” Listed 1. through 3. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: As shown in the planting plans, sheet L2.0 of Exhibit B2, 
landscape screening is provided between the proposed parking and the public right-of-way. 
Trees are provided for the twenty-four (24) proposed parking spaces as required by this 
subsection. Tree planting areas meet the minimum size requirements. 

 
 

Page 40 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 41 of 60 

Section 4.171 Protection of Natural Features and Other Resources 
 
B15. Review Criterion: This section provides for the protection of a number of natural features and 

other resources including: general terrain preparation, hillsides, trees and wooded areas, high 
voltage powerline easements and rights of way and petroleum pipeline easements, earth movement 
hazard areas, soil hazard areas, historic resources, and cultural resources. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The proposed design of the site provides for protection of natural 
features and other resources consistent with the proposed Stage II Final Plan for the site. 
See Finding A32 under Request A of this application. 

 
Landscaping 
 
Subsection 4.176 (.02) B. Landscape Standards and Compliance with Code 
 
B16. Review Criterion: “All landscaping and screening required by this Code must comply with all of 

the provisions of this Section, unless specifically waived or granted a Variance as otherwise 
provided in the Code.  The landscaping standards are minimum requirements; higher standards can 
be substituted as long as fence and vegetation-height limitations are met.  Where the standards set a 
minimum based on square footage or linear footage, they shall be interpreted as applying to each 
complete or partial increment of area or length” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: No waivers or variances to landscape standards have been 
requested. Thus all landscaping and screening must comply with standards of this section. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.02) C. 1. General Landscape Standards-Intent 
 
B17. Review Criteria: “The General Landscaping Standard is a landscape treatment for areas that are 

generally open.  It is intended to be applied in situations where distance is used as the principal 
means of separating uses or developments and landscaping is required to enhance the intervening 
space. Landscaping may include a mixture of ground cover, evergreen and deciduous shrubs, and 
coniferous and deciduous trees.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant’s sheet L2.0 of Exhibit B2 shows a variety of plant 
materials and placement consistent with the general landscape standard. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.02) C. 2. General Landscape Standards-Required Materials 
 
B18. Review Criteria: “Shrubs and trees, other than street trees, may be grouped.  Ground cover 

plants must fully cover the remainder of the landscaped area (see Figure 21:  General 
Landscaping).  The General Landscaping Standard has two different requirements for trees and 
shrubs: 
a. Where the landscaped area is less than 30 feet deep, one tree is required for every 30 
linear feet. 
b. Where the landscaped area is 30 feet deep or greater, one tree is required for every 800 
square feet and two high shrubs or three low shrubs are required for every 400 square feet.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The planting plan, sheet L2.0 of Exhibit B2, shows landscaping 
meeting the requirements of this subsection.  

Page 41 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 42 of 60 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.02) E. 1. High Screen Standard-Intent 
 
B19. Review Criterion: “The High Screen Landscaping Standard is a landscape treatment that relies 

primarily on screening to separate uses or developments.  It is intended to be applied in situations 
where visual separation is required.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant’s submitted landscape plans, sheet L2.0 of Exhibit 
B2, shows plantings consistent with high screen landscape standard to provide visual 
screening of the drive-thru signage so as to make the signage not visible from off-site. 
consistent with the requirements of Subsection 4.176 (.04) C. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.02) E. 2. High Screen Standard-Required Materials 
 
B20. Review Criterion: “The High Screen Landscaping Standard requires sufficient high shrubs to 

form a continuous screen at least six (6) feet high and 95% opaque, year-round.  In addition, one 
tree is required for every 30 linear feet of landscaped area, or as otherwise required to provide a 
tree canopy over the landscaped area.  Ground cover plants must fully cover the remainder of the 
landscaped area.  A six (6) foot high masonry wall or a berm may be substituted for the shrubs, but 
the trees and ground cover plants are still required.  When applied along street lot lines, the screen 
or wall is to be placed along the interior side of the landscaped area.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant’s submitted landscape plans, sheet L2.0 of Exhibit 
B2, shows plantings consistent with high screen landscape standard to provide visual 
screening of the drive-thru signage so as to make the signage not visible from off-site. 
consistent with the requirements of Subsection 4.176 (.04) C. The planting plans show a 
line of twenty-six (26) Emerald Green Arborvitae, six feet (6’) tall spaced three feet (3’) on 
center. This will provide the required screening. Along this high screen area Bowhall 
Maple trees are planted between the arborvitae screen and sidewalk twenty-eight feet (28’) 
on center. Ground cover is shown covering the remainder of the landscape area along this 
high screen area. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.03) Landscape Area and Locations 
 
B21. Review Criteria: “Not less than fifteen percent (15%) of the total lot area, shall be landscaped 

with vegetative plant materials.  The ten percent (10%) parking area landscaping required by 
section 4.155.03(B)(1) is included in the fifteen percent (15%) total lot landscaping requirement.  
Landscaping shall be located in at least three separate and distinct areas of the lot, one of which 
must be in the contiguous frontage area.  Planting areas shall be encouraged adjacent to structures.  
Landscaping shall be used to define, soften or screen the appearance of buildings and off-street 
parking areas.  Materials to be installed shall achieve a balance between various plant forms, 
textures, and heights. The installation of native plant materials shall be used whenever practicable.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Consistent with the proposed Stage II Final Plan for the site, the 
proposed design of the site provides for more than the required amount of landscaping and 
landscaping in at least three separate and distinct areas, including the area along SW 95th 
Avenue and SW Boones Ferry Road. See Finding A43 of Request A. The planting plans, 

Page 42 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 43 of 60 

sheet L2.0 of Exhibit B2, show landscape placed in areas that will define, soften, and 
screen the appearance of buildings and off-street parking areas.  

 
Subsection 4.176 (.04) Buffering and Screening 
 
B22. Review Criteria: “Additional to the standards of this subsection, the requirements of the Section 

4.137.5 (Screening and Buffering Overlay Zone) shall also be applied, where applicable. 
C. All exterior, roof and ground mounted, mechanical and utility equipment shall be 
screened from ground level off-site view from adjacent streets or properties. 
D. All outdoor storage areas shall be screened from public view, unless visible storage has 
been approved for the site by the Development Review Board or Planning Director acting on a 
development permit.  
E. In all cases other than for industrial uses in industrial zones, landscaping shall be 
designed to screen loading areas and docks, and truck parking. 
F. In any zone any fence over six (6) feet high measured from soil surface at the outside of 
fenceline shall require Development Review Board approval.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The buildings are designed so architectural parapets screen roof 
mounted equipment. Mixed-solid waste and recycling storage areas are within screening 
enclosures. No additional outdoor storage areas are proposed. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.05) Site Obscuring Fence or Planting 
 
B23. Review Criterion: “The use for which a sight-obscuring fence or planting is required shall not 

begin operation until the fence or planting is erected or in place and approved by the City.  A 
temporary occupancy permit may be issued upon a posting of a bond or other security equal to one 
hundred ten percent (110%) of the cost of such fence or planting and its installation.” 
Finding: This criterion will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 6. 
Explanation of Finding: The condition of approval will assure installation or that 
appropriate security is posted. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.06) A. Plant Materials-Shrubs and Groundcover 
 
B24. Review Criteria: This subsection establishes plant material and planting requirements for shrubs 

and ground cover. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 7. 
Explanation of Finding: The condition of approval requires that the detailed requirements 
of this subsection are met.  

 
Subsection 4.176 (.06) B. Plant Materials-Trees 
 
B25. Review Criteria: This subsection establishes plant material requirements for trees. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The plants material requirements for trees will be met as follows: 
• The applicant’s planting plan, sheet L2.0 of Exhibit B2, shows all trees as B&B (Balled 

and Burlapped) 
• Sheet L3.0 of Exhibit B2 requires landscape materials to meet ANSI standards. 
• The applicant’s planting plan lists tree sizes required by code. 

Page 43 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 44 of 60 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.06) D. Plant Materials-Street Trees 
 
B26. Review Criteria: This subsection establishes plant material requirements for street trees. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: As shown in their planting plan, sheet L2.0 of Exhibit B2, the 
applicant proposes Bowhall Maple street trees (Acer rubrum “Bowhall”). The proposed 
trees are a cultivar of Acer rubrum, which is listed as a satisfactory street tree in this 
subsection. The trees are proposed to be planted at 3” caliper, the required size for arterial 
streets. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.06) E. Types of Plant Species 
 
B27. Review Criteria: This subsection discusses use of existing landscaping or native vegetation, 

selection of plant materials, and prohibited plant materials. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant has provided sufficient information showing the 
proposed landscape design meets the standards of this subsection. See sheet L2.0 of 
Exhibit B2. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.06) G. Exceeding Plant Material Standards 
 
B28. Review Criterion: “Landscape materials that exceed the minimum standards of this Section are 

encouraged, provided that height and vision clearance requirements are met.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The selected landscape materials do not violate any height or 
visions clearance requirements. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.07) Installation and Maintenance of Landscaping 
 
B29. Review Criteria: This subsection establishes installation and maintenance standards for 

landscaping. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 8. 
Explanation of Finding: The installation and maintenance standards are or will be met as 
follows: 
• Plant materials are required to be installed to current industry standards and be properly 

staked to ensure survival 
• Plants that die are required to be replaced in kind, within one growing season, unless 

appropriate substitute species are approved by the City. 
• Sheet L1.0 of Exhibit B2 shows a permanent built-in irrigation system with an 

automatic controller satisfying the related standards of this subsection. 
 
Subsection 4.176 (.09) Landscape Plans 
 
B30. Review Criterion: “Landscape plans shall be submitted showing all existing and proposed 

landscape areas.  Plans must be drawn to scale and show the type, installation size, number and 
placement of materials.  Plans shall include a plant material list. Plants are to be identified by both 

Page 44 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 45 of 60 

their scientific and common names.  The condition of any existing plants and the proposed method 
of irrigation are also to be indicated.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Sheets L1.0, L2.0, and L3.0 of Exhibit B2 provide the required 
information. 

 
Subsection 4.176 (.10) Completion of Landscaping 
 
B31. Review Criterion: “The installation of plant materials may be deferred for a period of time 

specified by the Board or Planning Director acting on an application, in order to avoid hot summer 
or cold winter periods, or in response to water shortages.  In these cases, a temporary permit shall 
be issued, following the same procedures specified in subsection (.07)(C)(3), above, regarding 
temporary irrigation systems.  No final Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until an adequate 
bond or other security is posted for the completion of the landscaping, and the City is given written 
authorization to enter the property and install the required landscaping, in the event that the 
required landscaping has not been installed. The form of such written authorization shall be 
submitted to the City Attorney for review.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant has not requested to defer installation of plant 
materials.  

 
Subsection 4.176 (.12) Mitigation and Restoration Plantings 
 
B32. Review Criterion: “A mitigation plan is to be approved by the City’s Development Review 

Board before the destruction, damage, or removal of any existing native plants.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Consistent with the proposed Stage II Final Plan, the proposed 
landscape design involves no removal of existing native plans requiring a mitigation plan 
pursuant to this subsection. 

 
Other Standards 
 
Section 4.178 Sidewalk and Pathway Standards 
 
B33. Review Criterion: This section establishes standards for sidewalks and pathways. 

Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The proposed design of the site provides for pedestrian pathways 
consistent with the proposed Stage II Final Plan and purpose of site design review. See 
Findings A28 and B2. The proposed landscape design includes trees that will grow or can 
be pruned to provide the necessary overhead clearance. 

 
Section 4.179 Mixed Solid Waste and Recyclables Storage 
 
B34. Review Criterion: This section establishes standards for mixed solid waste and recyclables 

storage in new multi-family residential and non-residential buildings. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The design of the proposed solid waste and recyclables 
enclosures are consistent with the proposed Stage II Final Plan in relation to this section 

Page 45 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 46 of 60 

and the location, design, and access standards for mixed solid waste and recycling areas. 
See Findings A49 and B7.  

 
Outdoor Lighting 
 
Section 4.199.20 Applicability of Outdoor Lighting Standards 
 
B35. Review Criterion: This section states that the outdoor lighting ordinance is applicable to 

“Installation of new exterior lighting systems in public facility, commercial, industrial and multi-
family housing projects with common areas” and “Major additions or modifications (as defined in 
this Section) to existing exterior lighting systems in public facility, commercial, industrial and 
multi-family housing projects with common areas.” In addition the exempt luminaires and lighting 
systems are listed. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Non-exempt new outdoor lighting proposed for the development 
site is being required to comply with the outdoor lighting ordinance.  

 
Section 4.199.30 Outdoor Lighting Zones 
 
B36. Review Criterion: “The designated Lighting Zone as indicated on the Lighting Overlay Zone 

Map for a commercial, industrial, multi-family or public facility parcel or project shall determine 
the limitations for lighting systems and fixtures as specified in this Ordinance.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The development site is within LZ 2 and the proposed outdoor 
lighting systems are being reviewed under the standards of this lighting zone. 

 
Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) A. Alternative Methods of Outdoor Lighting Compliance 
 
B37. Review Criterion: “All outdoor lighting shall comply with either the Prescriptive Option or the 

Performance Option below.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant has submitted information to comply with the 
performance option. 

 
Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) C. Performance Option for Outdoor Lighting Compliance 
 
“If the lighting is to comply with the Performance Option, the proposed lighting design shall 
be submitted by the applicant for approval by the City meeting all of the following:” Listed 1. 
through 3. 
 
Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) C. 1. Weighted Average of Direct Uplight Lumens Standard 
 
B38. Review Criteria: “The weighted average percentage of direct uplight lumens shall be less than 

the allowed amount per Table 9.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 10. 
Explanation of Finding: As shown in the revised sheet SE1.0 provided with the 
applicants Response to Second Request for Additional Information and Revisions in the 
applicant’s notebook, Exhibit B1, the only luminaires that are not fully shielded are the 
landscape bollards. The luminaires are such that the weighted average percentage of direct 

Page 46 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 47 of 60 

uplight lumens will be less than five percent (5%). Staff notes that Fixture U can be 
configured to emit both up and down lighting. A condition of approval limits these fixtures 
to down lighting. 

 
Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) C. 2. Maximum Light Level at Property Lines 
 
B39. Review Criteria: “The maximum light level at any property line shall be less than the 

values in  Table 9, as evidenced by a complete photometric analysis including horizontal 
illuminance of the site and vertical illuminance on the plane facing the site up to the 
mounting height of the luminaire mounted highest above grade.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant’s sheet SE1.4 in Exhibit B4 show the information 
required by this subsection demonstrating compliance with Table 9. Compliance was 
checked across 95th Avenue and Boones Ferry Road as allowed by Exception 1 of this 
subsection. 

 
Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) C. 2. Maximum Light Level at Property Lines 
 
B40. Review Criteria: “Luminaires shall not be mounted so as to permit aiming or use in any 

way other than the manner maintaining the shielding classification required herein:” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The mountings will be in a downward position. Condition of 
Approval PDB 10 helps ensure this 

 
Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) D. Outdoor Lighting Curfew 
 
B41. Review Criterion: “All prescriptive or performance based exterior lighting systems shall be 

controlled by automatic device(s) or system(s) that:” Listed 1. through 3. 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDB 9. 
Explanation of Finding: As stated on page 53 of the applicant’s compliance narrative in 
their notebook, Exhibit B1, Carl’s Jr. is exempt from lighting curfew as a 24/7 operation. 
However, the other retail has not been identified for 24/7 operation or eligible for another 
exemption. A condition of approval requires lighting associated with this building and 
supporting parking shall be dimmed at 10:00 p.m. pursuant to Table 10. 

 
Subsection 4.199.50 Submittal Requirements 
 
B42. Review Criteria: “Applicants shall submit the following information as part of DRB review or 

administrative review of new commercial, industrial, multi-family or public facility projects:” 
Listed A. through F. “In addition to the above submittal requirements, Applicants using the 
Prescriptive Method shall submit the following information as part of the permit set plan review:  
A. A site lighting plan (items 1 A - F, above) which indicates for each luminaire the 3 
mounting height line to demonstrate compliance with the setback requirements. For luminaires 
mounted within 3 mounting heights of the property line the compliance exception or special 
shielding requirements shall be clearly indicated.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant has submitted sufficient information to review the 
application. 

Page 47 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 48 of 60 

 
REQUEST C: DB12-0076 MASTER SIGN PLAN FOR BOONES FERRY POINTE 

 
Subsection 4.031 (.01) M. and Subsection 4.156.02 (.03) Review Process 
 
C1. Review Criteria: These subsections establish that Master Sign Plans are reviewed by the 

Development Review Board. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The application qualifies as a Master Sign Plan and is being 
reviewed by the Development Review Board. 

 
Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) Master Sign Plans Generally 
 
C2. Review Criteria: “A Master Sign Plan is required for non-residential developments with three 

(3) or more tenants. In creating a Master Sign Plan thought should be given to needs of initial 
tenants as well as the potential needs of future tenants.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The proposal involves potentially three (3) or more tenants and 
therefore a Master Sign Plan is required. As demonstrated in the Finding C10. needs of 
initial tenants as well as the potential needs of future tenants have been considered. 

 
Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) A. Master Sign Plan Submission Requirements 
 
C3. Review Criteria: This subsection identifies submission requirements for Master Sign Plans, 

which includes the submission requirements for Class II and Class III sign permits plus additional 
requirements specific to Master Sign Plans. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: As indicated in the table below the Applicant has either satisfied 
the submission requirements, or has been granted a waiver under Subsection 4.156.02 
(.10). 

 
Requirement 

Su
bm

itt
ed

 

W
ai

ve
r 

G
ra

nt
ed

 

C
on

di
tio

n 
of

 
A

pp
ro

va
l 

N
ot

 
A

pp
lic

ab
le

 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 

fin
di

ng
s/

no
te

s 

  

In
fo

 
A

lr
ea

dy
 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 C
ity

 

In
fo

 N
ot

 N
ec

es
sa

ry
 

fo
r 

R
ev

ie
w

 

   

Completed Application 
Form        

Sign Drawings or 
Descriptions       

Documentation of       

Page 48 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 49 of 60 

Building/Tenant Space 
Lengths 
Drawings of Sign 
Placement of Building 
Facades 

     
 

Project Narrative       
Information on Any 
Requested Waivers or 
Variances 

     
 

Written Explanation of 
the Flexibility of the 
Master Sign Plan for 
Different Potential 
Tenant Space 
Configurations 

     

 

Written Explanation of 
the Extent to which 
Different Sign Designs 
are Allowed 

     

 

Written Explanation of 
How Sign Plan 
Provides for Consistent 
and Compatible Sign 
Design Throughout the 
Development 

     

 

 
Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) B. Master Sign Plan Review Criteria 
 
Subsections 4.156.02 (.07) B. and (.05) E.- Class II Sign Permit Review Criteria also 
Applicable to Master Sign Plans 
 
Subsection 4.156.02 (.05) E. Class II Sign Permit Review Criteria: Generally and Site Design 
Review 
 
C4. Review Criteria: “Class II Sign Permits shall satisfy the sign regulations for the applicable 

zoning district and the Site Design Review Criteria in Sections 4.400 through 4.421,” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: As indicated in Findings C20 through C44 these criteria are met. 

 
Subsection 4.156.02 (.05) E. 1. Class II Sign Permit Review Criteria: Compatibility with Zone  
 
C5. Review Criteria: “The proposed signage is compatible with developments or uses permitted in 

the zone in terms of design, materials used, color schemes, proportionality, and location, so that it 
does not interfere with or detract from the visual appearance of surrounding development;” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The proposed signage is typical of and compatible with 
development within the PDC zones. This includes a design and colors reflecting corporate 
identity, illuminated channel letters and logo on a raceway, freestanding cabinet signs, and 
individual non-illuminated letters on an architectural wall. The placement of signs on 
buildings is in recognizable sign bands, and proportional to the building facades. No 

Page 49 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 50 of 60 

evidence exists nor has testimony been received that the subject signs would detract from 
the visual appearance of the surrounding development. 

 
Subsection 4.156.02 (.05) E. 2. Class II Sign Permit Review Criteria: Nuisance and Impact on 
Surrounding Properties 
 
C6. Review Criteria: “The proposed signage will not create a nuisance or result in a significant 

reduction in the value or usefulness of surrounding development;” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: There is no evidence and no testimony has been received that the 
subject signs would create a nuisance or negatively impact the value of surrounding 
properties. 

 
Subsection 4.156.02 (.05) E. 3. Class II Sign Permit Review Criteria: Items for Special 
Attention 
 
C7. Review Criteria: “Special attention is paid to the interface between signs and other site elements 

including building architecture and landscaping, including trees.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDC 2. 
Explanation of Finding: The building signs are within an architectural feature identifiable 
as a sign band with a buffer within the sign band around the sign, which demonstrates 
consideration of the interface between the signs and building architecture. A condition of 
approval requires specific landscape treatment typical of landscaping next to structure for 
the area around the foundation of the freestanding sign along Boones Ferry Rd. No sign-
tree conflicts have been noted.  

 
Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) B. 1. Consistent and Compatible Design 
 
C8. Review Criteria: “The Master Sign Plan provides for consistent and compatible design of signs 

throughout the development;” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied or will be satisfied by Conditions of Approval PDC 3, 
and PDC 4. 
Explanation of Finding: Building signs are limited to internally illuminated logo cabinet 
signs or internally illuminated individual channel letters. Logo cabinets and channel letters 
are generally compatible on the same building and are currently mixed on a variety of 
commercial buildings in the City, including Argyle Square. The Carl’s Jr. sign drawings in 
the Master Sign Plan section of the applicant’s notebook, Exhibit B1., shows the sign 
mounted without an exposed raceway. Use of raceways is not defined for the multi-tenant 
building. If exposed raceways are used a condition of approval requires they be painted to 
match the building. The applicant must indicate whether exposed raceways will be used on 
the multi-tenant building, and if so, all illuminated wall signs on the building will similarly 
be mounted on raceways. Also, there is no indication of the color of returns for the backlit 
signs. Master sign plans often require a consistent color of return to be used. The use of a 
consistent color of returns, as required by a condition of approval, will help ensure a 
consistent and compatible design between signs. 

 
 
 

Page 50 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 51 of 60 

Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) B. 2. Future Needs 
 
C9. Review Criteria: “The Master Sign Plan considers future needs, including potential different 

configurations of tenant spaces and different sign designs, if allowed.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The master sign plan allows for sufficient flexibility to provide 
different design needs and preferences of individual tenants.  

 
Section 4.156.03 Sign Measurement 
 
Subsection 4.156.03 (.01) A. Measurement of Cabinet Signs and Similar 
 
C10. Review Criteria: “The area for signs enclosed by cabinet, frame, or other background (including 

lighted surface) not otherwise part of the architecture of a building or structure shall be the area of 
a shape drawn around the outer dimension of the cabinet, frame, or background.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The proposed signs have been measured consistent with this 
subsection. 

 
Subsection 4.156.03 (.01) B. Measurement of Individual Element Signs 
 
C11. Review Criteria:“The area for signs constructed of individual elements (letters, figures, etc.)  

attached to a building wall or similar surface or structure  shall be the summed area of up to three 
squares, rectangles , circles, or triangles drawn around all sign elements.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The proposed signs have been measured consistent with this 
subsection. 

 
Subsection 4.156.03 (.02) A. Measurement of Sign Height Above Ground 
 
C12. Review Criteria: “The height above ground of a freestanding or ground-mounted sign is 

measured from the average grade directly below the sign to the highest point of the sign or sign 
structure except as follows:” Listed 1.-2. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The proposed signs have been measured consistent with this 
subsection. 

 
Subsection 4.156.03 (.03) A.-B. Measurement of Sign Height and Length 
 
C13. Review Criteria: “Height of a sign is the vertical distance between the lowest and highest points 

of the sign.” 
Length of a sign is the horizontal distance between the furthest left and right points of the sign.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The proposed signs have been measured consistent with this 
subsection. 

 
 
 
 

Page 51 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 52 of 60 

Subsection 4.156.05 (.01) C. Signs Exempt From Sign Permit Requirements: Flags 
 
C14. Review Criteria: “Flags displayed from permanently-located freestanding on wall-mounted 

flagpoles that are designed to allow raising and lowering of flags. One site may have up to two (2) 
exempt flags; no exempt flag may be more than thirty (30) feet in height” 
Finding: These criteria will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDC 8. 
Explanation of Finding: The condition ensures the flag pole shown on the site plan, sheet 
A1.0 of the applicant’s plan set, Exhibit B2, does not exceed the allowed height or number 
of signs exempted from sign permit requirements by this subsection. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) Freestanding and Ground Mounted Signs in the PDC, PDI, and PF 
Zones 
 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) A. General Allowance 
 
C15. Review Criteria: “One freestanding or ground mounted sign is allowed for the first two-hundred 

(200) linear feet of site frontage.  One additional freestanding or ground mounted sign may be 
added for through and corner lots having at least two-hundred (200) feet of frontage on one street 
or right-of-way and one-hundred (100) feet on the other street or right-of-way.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The Carl’s Jr. site has not been included in a previous Master 
Sign Plan, and is considered a separate site for the purpose of this allowance. With at least 
200 feet of frontage on 95th Avenue and greater than 100 feet of frontage on Boones Ferry 
Road the site is allowed two signs. Two are proposed, one on Boones Ferry Road, and one 
collocated with the existing Chevron sign on 95th Avenue. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) B. Allowed Height 
 
C16. Review Criteria: “The allowed height above ground of a freestanding or ground mounted sign is 

twenty (20) feet except as noted in 1-2 below.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The sign along Boones Ferry north of the multi-tenant retail is 
proposed to be twenty feet (20’), which is the allowed height. The 95th avenue sign will 
also be mounted to be twenty feet (20’) high. The “Boones Ferry Pointe” monument sign is 
much less than the allowed twenty feet (20’). 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) C. Allowed Area 
 
C17. Review Criteria: This subsection identifies the allowed area for freestanding signs. 

Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The following table shows the allowed area for each of the 
freestanding signs. 

  

Page 52 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 53 of 60 

 
Building (# of 
Tenants) 

Building Square Feet Allowed Sign 
Area (sf)  

Base Area  32 
Carl’s Jr. (1) 2867 (rounded down 

to 2000) 
9 

Retail Building (3) 3150 (rounded down 
to 3000) 

18 

Total  59 
Note: the applicant’s calculations of allowed area in the response to incomplete application 
and project narrative are not accurate. 
Boones Ferry Road Sign North of Multi-tenant Commercial: Staff notes that the area for 
this sign is incorrectly represented in all tables listing its area in the applicant’s submitted 
material. The correct calculation is as follows based on the revised sign drawing in the 
applicant’s Response to Second Request for Additional Information and Revisions in the 
applicant’s notebook, Exhibit B1: 

Carl’s Jr. cabinet: 22.48 square feet 
4 additional cabinets at 9 sf each: 36 square feet 
Total Area: 58.48 square feet 

The proposed 58.48 square feet is less than the 59 square feet allowed.  
95th Avenue “Collocated” Sign and Monument Sign: A thirty-six (36) square feet sign 
panel is being collocated on an existing pylon sign opposite the existing Chevron sign. The 
collocation will reduce clutter and provide for efficient placement of signs for multiple 
developments using a shared driveway. Thirteen (13) square feet of the allowance for a 
second sign is being used for a planned development sign on the north end of the site 
pursuant to Subsection 4.156 (.03) B. This leaves ten (10) square feet of the allowance 
unused. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) D. Pole or Sign Support Placement 
 
C18. Review Criterion: “Pole or sign support placement shall be installed in a full vertical position.” 

Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: All poles and sign supports are proposed to be in a full vertical 
position. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) E. Extending Over Right-of-Way, Parking, and Maneuvering Areas 
 
C19. Review Criterion: “Freestanding and ground mounted signs shall not extend into or above 

public rights-of-way, parking areas, or vehicle maneuvering areas.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Freestanding signs are not proposed to extend into or above the 
listed areas. 

 
 
 
 

Page 53 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 54 of 60 

Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) G. Design of Freestanding Signs to Match or Complement Design of 
Buildings 
 
C20. Review Criterion: “Freestanding and ground mounted signs shall be designed to match or 

complement the architectural design of buildings on the site.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The freestanding sign along Boones Ferry Road north of the 
multi-tenant commercial building has a base of brick matching the brick on the buildings. 
Otherwise it is of a basic cabinet nature reflective of the nature of the proposed businesses 
on the site and providing a clean look. The sign along 95th Avenue is a simple monopole 
support with attached cabinet signs. The sign also creates a clean look typical of 
commercial areas. Rather than designing sign structures to match the buildings, the 
applicant elected to have minimal structure to highlight the businesses and not distract for 
the architectural design of the site. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) H. Width vs. Height of Signs Over 8 Feet 
 
C21. Review Criterion: “For freestanding and ground mounted signs greater than eight (8) feet in 

height, the width of the sign shall not exceed the height.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Both freestanding signs are greater than eight (8) feet in height, 
but both are much less in width than they are in height. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) J. Sign Setback 
 
C22. Review Criteria: “Freestanding and ground mounted signs shall be no further than fifteen (15) 

feet from the property line and no closer than two (2) feet from a sidewalk or other hard surface in 
the public right-of-way.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDC 5. 
Explanation of Finding: The planned development monument sign is approximately 13.5 
feet from the property line and is well back from the public sidewalk. The final location of 
the freestanding sign along Boones Ferry has not yet been determined. The condition of 
approval requires the placement to meet the sign setback requirements defined in this 
subsection. The 95th Avenue sign is setback approximately 12.5 feet from the sidewalk and 
is within fifteen (15) feet of the property line. The existing Chevron sign collocated on the 
same pylon is approximately 6.5 feet from the sidewalk. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) K. Address Requirement 
 
C23. Review Criteria: “Except for those signs fronting Interstate 5, freestanding and ground mounted 

signs shall include the address number of associated buildings unless otherwise approved in writing 
by the City and the Fire District.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Addresses are provided on the freestanding sign adjacent to the 
shared driveway. As there is no associated vehicle access and the addresses are otherwise 
visible, the freestanding sign on Boones Ferry Road and monument sign are not being 
required to have addresses by the City or the Fire District. 

 

Page 54 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 55 of 60 

Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) L. Design of Sign Based on Initial Tenant Configuration and Size 
 
C24. Review Criteria: “When a sign is designed based on the number of planned tenant spaces it shall 

remain a legal, conforming sign regardless of the change in the number of tenants or configuration 
of tenant spaces.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The master sign plan is proposed based on the number of 
planned tenants, and it is understood the sign plan will be valid regardless on the number 
of future tenants. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) Building Signs in the PDC, PDI, and PF Zones 
 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) A. Sign Eligible Facades 
 
C25. Review Criteria: “Building signs are allowed on a facade of a tenant space or single tenant 

building when one or more of the following criteria are met: 
1. The facade has one or more entrances open to the general public; 
2. The facade faces a lot line with frontage on a street or private drive with a cross section 

similar to a public street, and no other buildings on the same lot obstruct the view of the 
building facade from the street or private drive; or 

3. The facade is adjacent to the primary parking area for the building or tenant.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: All facades of the two proposed buildings are sign eligible for 
the reasons listed below: 
Carl’s Jr. Building: North: public entrance, primary parking area 
    East: public entrance, primary parking area 
    South: faces private drive 
    West: faces public street 
Multi-tenant Commercial Building: North: faces public street 
      East: faces public street 
      South: public entrance, primary parking area 
      West: faces public street 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) B. Building Sign Area Allowed 
 
C26. Review Criteria: This subsection includes a table identifying the sign area allowed for facades 

based on the linear length of the façade. Exception are listed 2. through 5. 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The allowed area for each facade is as follows: 
 

Carl’s Jr. Building 

Façade Linear 
Length 

Sign Area 
Allowed Proposed Max 

North 41 feet 36 sf 36 sf 
East 72 feet 36 sf 36 sf 
South 41 feet 36 sf 36 sf 
West 72 feet 36 sf 36 sf 

 

Page 55 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 56 of 60 

The applicant proposes a maximum of thirty-six (36) square feet on each façade. However, 
smaller signs can be installed at the tenant’s request. Sheet A4.0 and A5.0 in the 
applicant’s plan set, Exhibit B2, show nine foot by 4 foot areas on each façade as the 
identified sign bands. These sheets say these sign locations are conceptual. However, page 
9 of the Response to Incomplete Application in the applicant’s notebook, Exhibit B1, 
identifies these as the proposed sign locations. For the purposes of the Master Sign Plan 
these boxes identify the sign band, or allowed sign placement area, for each façade. Signs 
may be of a different shape that extend beyond the boxes, but should be centered at the 
center of the box and maintain proportional and recognizable spacing from the edges of the 
architectural feature. 

 
Multi-tenant Commercial Building 

Façade Linear 
Length 

Sign Area 
Allowed Proposed Max 

North    
Tenant Space A (western most) 22.5 feet 24 sf 24 sf 
Tenant Space B (middle) 25 feet 32 sf 24 sf 
Tenant Space C (eastern most) 22.5 feet 24 sf 24 sf 
Space B combined with A or C as 
single tenant space 47.5 feet 36 sf 32 sf 

All spaces combined as single tenant 
space 70 feet 36 sf 36 sf 

East 48 feet 36 sf 36 sf 
South    

Tenant Space A (western most) 22.5 feet 24 sf 24 sf 
Tenant Space B (middle) 25 feet 32 sf 24 sf 
Tenant Space C (eastern most) 22.5 feet 24 sf 24 sf 
Space B combined with A or C as 
single tenant space 47.5 feet 36 sf 32 sf 

All spaces combined as single tenant 
space 70 feet 36 sf 36 sf 

West 48 feet 36 sf 36 sf 
 

The applicant proposes a maximum of thirty-six (36) square feet on the east and west 
façade. On the north and south façade the applicant proposes each of the three tenant 
spaces are allowed a twenty-four (24) square sign. However, if the center tenant space is 
combined with either of the end tenant spaces, then the center sign area can be increased to 
thirty-two (32) square feet. If all three tenant spaces are occupied by the same tenant they 
can elect to put a single thirty-six (36) square foot sign in the center sign area. See page 10 
of the Response to Incomplete Application in the applicant’s notebook, Exhibit B1. Sheets 
AC2.0 and AC2.1 in the applicant’s plan set, Exhibit B2, show sign bands for each of the 
signs. These sheets say they are conceptual and typical. However, for the purposes of the 
Master Sign Plan these boxes identify the sign band, or allowed sign placement area, for 
each façade. The height is understood to be the maximum due to the requirement that a 
recognizable space is maintained between upper and lower edges of the sign band. 
However, signs could be longer as long as they remain similarly centered of the window or 
entry. If the center sign areas are increased to 32 or 36 square feet due to combing of tenant 

Page 56 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 57 of 60 

spaces is it understood the signs will continue to be centered above the canopies in the 
brick area of the façade. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) B. 6. Calculating Linear Length to Determine Sign Area Allowed. 
 
C27. Review Criteria: “For facades of a single tenant building the length the facade measured at the 

building line, except as noted in a. and b. below. For multi-tenant buildings the width of the façade 
of the tenant space shall be measured from the centerline of the party walls or the outer extent of 
the exterior wall at the building line, as applicable, except as noted in a. and b. below. Applicants 
shall provide the dimensions needed to calculate the length. Each tenant space or single occupant 
building shall not be considered to have more than five (5) total facades.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant has supplied the required measurements used to 
determine linear lengths according to this subsection. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) C. Building Sign Length Allowed 
 
C28. Review Criterion: “The length of individual tenant signs shall not exceed seventy-five (75) 

percent of the length of the facade of the tenant space.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: None of the proposed sign bands shown in sheets A4.0, A5.0, 
AC2.0, and AC2.1 of the applicant’s plan set, Exhibit B2, exceed seventy-five (75) percent 
of the length of the façade. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) D. Building Sign Height Allowed 
 
C29. Review Criteria: “The height of building signs shall be within a definable sign band, fascia, or 

architectural feature and allow a definable space between the sign and the top and bottom of the 
sign band, fascia, or architectural feature.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: All of the proposed sign bands shown in sheets A4.0, A5.0, 
AC2.0, and AC2.1 of the applicant’s plan set are within a definable architectural feature 
and have a definable space between the sign and the top and bottom of the architectural 
feature. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) E. Building Sign Types Allowed 
 
C30. Review Criterion: “Types of signs permitted on buildings include wall flat, fascia, projecting, 

blade, marquee and awning signs.  Roof-top signs are prohibited.” 
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: All the proposed buildings signs are wall flat, which is an 
allowable type. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.03) A. Additional Signs: Directional Signs 
 
C31. Review Criteria: “Notwithstanding the signs allowed based on the site in (.01) and (.02) above, 

the following signs may be permitted, subject to standards and conditions in this Code:” “In 
addition to exempt directional signs allowed under Subsection 4.156.05 (.02) C. freestanding or 

Page 57 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 58 of 60 

ground mounted directional signs six (6) square feet or less in area and four (4) feet or less in 
height: 
1. The signs shall be designed to match or complement the architectural design of buildings 
on the site; 
2. The signs shall only be placed at the intersection of internal circulation drives; and 
3. No more than one (1) sign shall be placed per intersection corner with no more than two 
(2) signs per intersection.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied or will be satisfied by Condition of Approval PDC 7. 
Explanation of Finding: Two (2) illuminated double faced directional signs are proposed 
as part of the Master Sign Plan. The signs are identified as Signs L and M in the Master 
Sign Plan and can be found on page 12 of the Master Sign Plan section of the applicant’s 
notebook, Exhibit B1. Each sign is six (6) square feet. The signs are shown at 4’1” tall. 
Condition of Approval PDC 8 limits the height to the allowed four (4) feet. The signs 
match the design of other signs on the property and complement the architecture of the 
building similarly. The signs are placed at the intersection of internal circulation drives, 
and only one sign is placed per intersection. 

 
Subsection 4.156.08 (.03) A. Additional Signs: Planned Development Signs 
 
C32. Review Criteria: “Notwithstanding the signs allowed based on the site in (.01) and (.02) above, 

the following signs may be permitted, subject to standards and conditions in this Code:” “Up to 
thirty (32) square feet of the allowed sign area for freestanding signs in a planned development 
may be used for a separate on-site monument sign or off-site monument sign on an adjacent parcel 
identifying the Planned Development project.” 
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Thirteen (13) square feet of the allowed area for freestanding 
signs is being used for an on-site monument sign identifying the “Boones Ferry Pointe” 
development. See also Finding C16 above. 

 
Site Design Review 
 
Subsections 4.400 (.01) and 4.421 (.03) Excessive Uniformity, Inappropriateness of Design, 
Etc. 
 
C33. Review Criteria: “The Board shall also be guided by the purpose of Section 4.400, and such 

objectives shall serve as additional criteria and standards.” “Excessive uniformity, 
inappropriateness or poor design of the exterior appearance of structures and signs and the lack of 
proper attention to site development and landscaping in the business, commercial, industrial and 
certain residential areas of the City hinders the harmonious development of the City, impairs the 
desirability of residence, investment or occupation in the City, limits the opportunity to attain the 
optimum use in value and improvements, adversely affects the stability and value of property, 
produces degeneration of property in such areas and with attendant deterioration of conditions 
affecting the peace, health and welfare, and destroys a proper relationship between the taxable 
value of property and the cost of municipal services therefor.”  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding:  
Excessive Uniformity: The sign plan allows for a variety of sign shapes, fonts, and colors 
chosen by different tenants so as to avoid excessive uniformity. 

Page 58 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 59 of 60 

Inappropriate or Poor Design of Signs: Signs are typical of the type of development 
proposed found to be appropriate throughout the City. As issuance of the Class I Sign 
Permits consistent with the Master Sign Plan the City will ensure quality design of signs. 
Lack of Proper Attention to Site Development: The appropriate professional services have 
been used to design the site incorporating unique features of the site including site size and 
shape, and available access, demonstrating appropriate attention being given to site 
development and sign placement. 
Lack of Proper Attention to Landscaping: No specific landscaping is proposed around the 
proposed freestanding sign. Condition of Approval PDC 2 ensures proper attention is paid . 
See Finding C7. 

 
Subsections 4.400 (.02) and 4.421 (.03) Purposes of Objectives of Site Design Review 
 
C34. Review Criteria: “The Board shall also be guided by the purpose of Section 4.400, and such 

objectives shall serve as additional criteria and standards.” “The City Council declares that the 
purposes and objectives of site development requirements and the site design review procedure are 
to:” Listed A through J. including D. which reads “Conserve the City's natural beauty and visual 
character and charm by assuring that structures, signs and other improvements are properly related 
to their sites, and to surrounding sites and structures, with due regard to the aesthetic qualities of 
the natural terrain and landscaping, and that proper attention is given to exterior appearances of 
structures, signs and other improvements;”  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: It is staff’s professional opinion that the signs comply with the 
purposes and objectives of site design review, especially objective D. which specifically 
mentions signs. The proposed signs are of a scale and design appropriately related to the 
subject site and the appropriate amount of attention has been given to visual appearance. 

 
Subsection 4.421 (.01) Site Design Review-Design Standards 
 
C35. Review Criteria: This subsection lists the design standards for Site Design Review. Listed A 

through G. Only F. is applicable to this application, which reads, “Advertising Features.  In 
addition to the requirements of the City's sign regulations, the following criteria should be 
included:  the size, location, design, color, texture, lighting and materials of all exterior signs and 
outdoor advertising structures or features shall not detract from the design of proposed buildings 
and structures and the surrounding properties.”  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: There is no indication that the size, location, design, color, 
texture, lighting or material of the proposed signs would detract from the design of the 
building and the surrounding properties. 

 
Subsection 4.421 (.02) Applicability of Design Standards to Signs 
 
C36. Review Criteria: “The standards of review outlined in Sections (a) through (g) above shall also 

apply to all accessory buildings, structures, exterior signs and other site features, however related to 
the major buildings or structures.”  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Design standards have been applied to exterior signs, as 
applicable, see Finding C34 above. 

Page 59 of 82



Development Review Board Panel ‘A’Staff Report March 4, 2013 Exhibit A1 
Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building 
DB12-0074 through DB12-0076  Page 60 of 60 

 
Subsection 4.421 (.05) Site Design Review-Conditions of Approval 
 
C37. Review Criterion: “The Board may attach certain development or use conditions in granting an 

approval that are determined necessary to insure the proper and efficient functioning of the 
development, consistent with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, allowed densities and the 
requirements of this Code.”  
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: No additional conditions of approval are recommended to ensure 
the proper and efficient functioning of the development. 

 
Subsection 4.421 (.06) Color or Materials Requirements 
 
C38. Review Criterion: “The Board or Planning Director may require that certain paints or colors of 

materials be used in approving applications.  Such requirements shall only be applied when site 
development or other land use applications are being reviewed by the City.”   
Finding: This criterion is satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: Staff does not recommend any additional requirements for 
materials or colors for the proposed signs.  

 
Section 4.440 Site Design Review-Procedures 
 
C39. Review Criteria: “A prospective applicant for a building or other permit who is subject to site 

design review shall submit to the Planning Department, in addition to the requirements of Section 
4.035, the following:” Listed A through F.  
Finding: These criteria are satisfied. 
Explanation of Finding: The applicant has submitted a sign plan as required by this 
section. 

Page 60 of 82



Page 61 of 82

swhite
Stamp



Page 62 of 82



Page 63 of 82



Page 64 of 82



Page 65 of 82



Page 66 of 82



Page 67 of 82



Page 68 of 82



Page 69 of 82



Development Review (DB12-0074 – Carl’s Jr.).doc  
February 25, 2013 

 

 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT MEMORANDUM 
 

 
To: Daniel Pauly, Associate Planner 
 
From: Kerry Rappold, Natural Resources Program Manager 
 
Date:  February 25, 2013 
 
RE: Commercial Development (DB12-0074 – Carl’s Jr.) 
 
 
This memorandum includes staff conditions of approval. The conditions of approval are based on 
the submitted Stage II Final Plan and Site Design Review. The conditions of approval apply to 
the applicant’s submittal of construction documents (i.e. engineering drawings).  
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 
The following conditions of approval are based on the material submitted by the applicant. Any 
subsequent revisions to the submitted plans may require conditions of approval to be modified by 
staff. 
 
Stormwater Management 
  

1. Pursuant to the policies and implementation measures of the 2012 Stormwater Master 
Plan, the applicant shall prioritize the use of Low Impact Development in the design and 
implementation of the stormwater management system. Low Impact Development entails 
managing rainfall at the source, using decentralized, small scale controls that provide 
infiltration, filtration, vegetative uptake, and the creation of extended flow paths.  
 

2. Submit a final drainage report and drainage plans. The report and plans shall demonstrate 
proposed stormwater facilities satisfy the policies and standards of the City of 
Wilsonville’s Stormwater Master Plan and Public Works Standards. 

 
3. Provide profiles, plan views and specifications for proposed stormwater facilities 

consistent with the requirements of the Public Works Standards. 
 

4. Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, the applicant shall submit a maintenance plan 
(including the City’s stormwater maintenance and access easement) for proposed 
stormwater facilities prior to approval for occupancy of the associated development. 

 
5. Pursuant to the Public Works Standards, access shall be provided to all areas of proposed 

stormwater facilities. At a minimum, at least one access shall be provided for 
maintenance and inspection.  

Page 70 of 82

swhite
Stamp



Development Review (DB12-0074 – Carls Jr.).doc  
February 25, 2013 

 
2 

 
Other 
 

6. Pursuant to the City of Wilsonville’s Ordinance No. 482, the applicant shall submit an 
erosion and sedimentation control plan. The following techniques and methods shall be 
incorporated, where necessary:  

 
a. Gravel construction entrance; 
b. Stockpiles and plastic sheeting; 
c. Sediment fence; 
d. Inlet protection (Silt sacks are recommended); 
e. Dust control;  
f. Temporary/permanent seeding or wet weather measures (e.g. mulch);  
g. Limits of construction; and 
h. Other appropriate erosion and sedimentation control methods. 

 
7. The applicant shall comply with all applicable state and federal requirements for the 

proposed construction activities and proposed facilities (e.g. DEQ NPDES #1200–C 
permit).  
 

8. Pursuant to the Wilsonville City Code, the applicant is required to provide covered waste 
and recycling enclosures. A drain is not allowed within the enclosure, and the floor in the 
enclosure shall be raised to prevent stormwater runoff from entering. The enclosure shall 
contain adequate area for proper use of all receptacles. These measures minimize the risk 
of pollutants entering the public stormwater system. 

 

Page 71 of 82



EXHIBIT A 
PLANNING DIVISION  

STAFF REPORT 
 

PROJECT NAME 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD PANEL ‘___’ 
QUASI JUDICIAL HEARING 

 
 

Public Hearing Date:   
Date of Report:   
Application Numbers:  Request A: DB12-0074 Stage II Final Plan  

Request B: DB12-0075 Site Design Review 
Request C: DB12-0076 Master Sign Plan for Boones 
Ferry Pointe 

Property 
Owners/Applicants:  
 

 

 
PD = Planning Division conditions 
BD – Building Division Conditions 
PF = Engineering Conditions. 
NR = Natural Resources Conditions 
TR = SMART/Transit Conditions 
FD = Tualatin Valley Fire and Rescue Conditions  
 
 
Standard Comments: 
PFB 1. All construction or improvements to public works facilities shall be in conformance 

to the City of Wilsonville Public Works Standards. 
PFB 2. Applicant shall submit insurance requirements to the City of Wilsonville in the 

following amounts: 
General Aggregate      $2,000,000 
Products-Completed Operations Aggregate   $2,000,000 
Each Occurrence                 $2,000,000 
Automobile Insurance                                         $1,000,000 
Fire Damage (any one fire)     $    50,000 
Medical Expense (any one person)    $    10,000 

PFB 3. No construction of, or connection to, any existing or proposed public 
utility/improvements will be permitted until all plans are approved by Staff, all fees 
have been paid, all necessary permits, right-of-way and easements have been 
obtained and Staff is notified a minimum of 24 hours in advance. 

PFB 4. All public utility/improvement plans submitted for review shall be based upon a 
22”x 34” format and shall be prepared in accordance with the City of Wilsonville 
Public Work’s Standards. 

PFB 5. Plans submitted for review shall meet the following general criteria: 

Page 72 of 82

swhite
Stamp



 
a. Utility improvements that shall be maintained by the public and are not 

contained within a public right-of-way shall be provided a maintenance access 
acceptable to the City. The public utility improvements shall be centered in a 
minimum 15-ft. wide public easement for single utilities and a minimum 20-ft 
wide public easement for two parallel utilities and shall be conveyed to the City 
on its dedication forms. 

b. Design of any public utility improvements shall be approved at the time of the 
issuance of a Public Works Permit.  Private utility improvements are subject to 
review and approval by the City Building Department. 

c. In the plan set for the PW Permit, existing utilities and features, and proposed 
new private utilities shall be shown in a lighter, grey print.  Proposed public 
improvements shall be shown in bolder, black print. 

d. All elevations on design plans and record drawings shall be based on NAVD 88 
Datum.   

e. All proposed on and off-site public/private utility improvements shall comply 
with the State of Oregon and the City of Wilsonville requirements and any 
other applicable codes. 

f. Design plans shall identify locations for street lighting, gas service, power lines, 
telephone poles, cable television, mailboxes and any other public or private 
utility within the general construction area. 

g. As per City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 615, all new gas, telephone, cable, 
fiber-optic and electric improvements etc. shall be installed underground.  
Existing overhead utilities shall be undergrounded wherever reasonably 
possible. 

h. Any final site landscaping and signing shall not impede any proposed or 
existing driveway or interior maneuvering sight distance. 

i. Erosion Control Plan that conforms to City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 482. 
j. Existing/proposed right-of-way, easements and adjacent driveways shall be 

identified. 
k. All engineering plans shall be stamped by a Professional Engineer registered in 

the State of Oregon.  
PFB 6. Submit plans in the following general format and order for all public works 

construction to be maintained by the City: 
 

a. Cover sheet 
b. City of Wilsonville construction note sheet 
c. General construction note sheet 
d. Existing conditions plan. 
e. Erosion control and tree protection plan. 
f. Site plan.  Include property line boundaries, water quality pond boundaries, 

sidewalk improvements, right-of-way (existing/proposed), easements 
(existing/proposed), and sidewalk and road connections to adjoining properties. 

g. Grading plan, with 1-foot contours. 
h. Composite utility plan; identify storm, sanitary, and water lines; identify storm 

and sanitary manholes. 
i. Detailed plans; show plan view and either profile view or provide i.e.’s at all 

Page 73 of 82



utility crossings; include laterals in profile view or provide table with i.e.’s at 
crossings; vertical scale 1”= 5’, horizontal scale 1”= 20’ or 1”= 30’. 

j. Street plans. 
k. Storm sewer/drainage plans; number all lines, manholes, catch basins, and 

cleanouts for easier reference 
l. Water and sanitary sewer plans; plan; number all lines, manholes, and cleanouts 

for easier reference. 
m. Detailed plan for storm water detention facility (both plan and profile views), 

including water quality orifice diameter and manhole rim elevations.  Provide 
detail of inlet structure and energy dissipation device. Provide details of drain 
inlets, structures, and piping for outfall structure.  Note that although storm 
water detention facilities are typically privately maintained they will be 
inspected by engineering, and the plans must be part of the Public Works 
Permit set. 

n. Detailed plan for water quality facility (both plan and profile views).  Note that 
although storm water quality facilities are typically privately maintained they 
will be inspected by Natural Resources, and the plans must be part of the Public 
Works Permit set. 

o. Composite franchise utility plan. 
p. City of Wilsonville detail drawings. 
q. Illumination plan. 
r. Striping and signage plan. 
s. Landscape plan. 

PFB 7. Prior to manhole and sewer line testing, design engineer shall coordinate with the 
City and update the sanitary and stormwater sewer systems to reflect the City’s 
numbering system.  Video testing and sanitary manhole testing will refer to the 
updated numbering system.  Design engineer shall also show the updated 
numbering system on As-Built drawings submitted to the City. 

PFB 8. The applicant shall install, operate and maintain adequate erosion control measures 
in conformance with the standards adopted by the City of Wilsonville Ordinance 
No. 482 during the construction of any public/private utility and building 
improvements until such time as approved permanent vegetative materials have 
been installed. 

PFB 9. Applicant shall work with City’s Natural Resources office before disturbing any 
soil on the respective site.  If 5 or more acres of the site will be disturbed applicant 
shall obtain a 1200-C permit from the Oregon Department of Environmental 
Quality.  If 1 to less than 5 acres of the site will be disturbed a 1200-CN permit 
from the City of Wilsonville is required. 

PFB 10. To lessen the impact of the proposed project on the downstream storm drain 
system, and adjacent properties, project run-off from the site shall be detained and 
limited to the difference between a developed 25-year storm and an undeveloped 
25-year storm. The detention and outfall facilities shall be designed and constructed 
in conformance with the Public Works Standards. 

PFB 11. A storm water analysis prepared by a Professional Engineer registered in the State 
of Oregon shall be submitted for review and approval by the City to address 
appropriate pipe and detention facility sizing. 

Page 74 of 82



PFB 12. The applicant shall be in conformance with all water quality requirements for the 
proposed development per the Public Works Standards.  If a mechanical water 
quality system is used, prior to City acceptance of the project the applicant shall 
provide a letter from the system manufacturer stating that the system was installed 
per specifications and is functioning as designed. 

PFB 13. Storm water quality facilities shall have approved landscape planted and/or some 
other erosion control method installed and approved by the City of Wilsonville 
prior to streets and/or alleys being paved. 

PFB 14. The applicant shall provide the City with a Stormwater Maintenance and Access 
Easement (on City approved forms) for City inspection of those portions of the 
storm system to be privately maintained.  Applicant shall maintain all LID storm 
water components and private conventional storm water facilities located within 
medians and from the back of curb onto and including the project site. 

PFB 15. Fire hydrants shall be located in compliance with TVF&R fire prevention 
ordinance and approval of TVF&R. 

PFB 16. All survey monuments on the subject site, or that may be subject to disturbance 
within the construction area, or the construction of any off-site improvements shall 
be adequately referenced and protected prior to commencement of any construction 
activity.  If the survey monuments are disturbed, moved, relocated or destroyed as a 
result of any construction, the project shall, at its cost, retain the services of a 
registered professional land surveyor in the State of Oregon to restore the 
monument to its original condition and file the necessary surveys as required by 
Oregon State law.  A copy of any recorded survey shall be submitted to Staff. 

PFB 17. Sidewalks, crosswalks and pedestrian linkages in the public right-of-way shall be in 
compliance with the requirements of the U.S. Access Board. 

PFB 18. No surcharging of sanitary or storm water manholes is allowed. 
PFB 19. The project shall connect to an existing manhole or install a manhole at each 

connection point to the public storm system and sanitary sewer system.  
PFB 20. A City approved energy dissipation device shall be installed at all proposed storm 

system outfalls.  Storm outfall facilities shall be designed and constructed in 
conformance with the Public Works Standards. 

PFB 21. All required pavement markings, in conformance with the Transportation Systems 
Plan and the Bike and Pedestrian Master Plan, shall be completed in conjunction 
with any conditioned street improvements. 

PFB 22. Street and traffic signs shall have a hi-intensity prismatic finish meeting ASTM 
4956 Spec Type 4 standards. 

PFB 23. The applicant shall provide adequate sight distance at all project driveways by 
driveway placement or vegetation control. Specific designs to be submitted and 
approved by the City Engineer. Coordinate and align proposed driveways with 
driveways on the opposite side of the proposed project site. 

PFB 24. Access requirements, including sight distance, shall conform to the City's 
Transportation Systems Plan (TSP) or as approved by the City Engineer. 
Landscaping plantings shall be low enough to provide adequate sight distance at all 
street intersections and alley/street intersections. 

PFB 25. Applicant shall prepare an Ownership and Maintenance agreement between the 
City and the Owner.  Stormwater or rainwater facilities may be located within the 

Page 75 of 82



public right-of-way upon approval of the City Engineer.  The Ownership and 
Maintenance agreement shall specify that the rainwater and stormwater facilities 
shall be privately maintained by the Applicant; maintenance shall transfer to the 
respective homeowners association when it is formed. 

PFB 26. All water lines that are to be temporary dead-end lines due to the phasing of 
construction shall have a valved tee with fire-hydrant assembly installed at the end 
of the line. 

PFB 27. Applicant shall provide a minimum 6-foot Public Utility Easement on lot frontages 
to all public right-of-ways. An 8-foot PUE shall be provided along Minor and 
Major Collectors. A 10-ft PUE shall be provided along Minor and Major Arterials. 

PFB 28. Mylar Record Drawings:  
At the completion of the installation of any required public improvements, and 
before a 'punch list' inspection is scheduled, the Engineer shall perform a record 
survey. Said survey shall be the basis for the preparation of 'record drawings' which 
will serve as the physical record of those changes made to the plans and/or 
specifications, originally approved by Staff, that occurred during construction. 
Using the record survey as a guide, the appropriate changes will be made to the 
construction plans and/or specifications and a complete revised 'set' shall be 
submitted. The 'set' shall consist of drawings on 3 mil. Mylar, an electronic copy in 
AutoCAD, current version, and a digitally signed PDF. 

Specific Comments:  
PFB 29. At the request of Staff, DKS Associates completed a Trip Generation and Access 

Analysis dated March 20, 2012.  The project is hereby limited to no more than the 
following impacts. 

 
Estimated New PM Peak Hour Trips 60 

PFB 30. The applicant shall pay the City for required ROW and easements ($250 per tax 
lot) for future MP street and signal improvements, in addition to the legal 
descriptions and exhibits.  If quitclaim and reconveyed, applicant shall pay an 
additional $500 per tax lot for recording fees and insurance. 

PFB 31. This development is conditioned on the execution of work agreed to by the 
applicant in the Development Agreement filed with Washington County on August 
17, 2012.   

PFB 32. The existing 24 inch storm pipe shall be either be removed or abandoned in place 
and filled with compact density fill (CDF), in accordance with the Public Works 
Standards.   

PFB 33. All work performed on property belonging to the Oregon Department of 
Transportation shall have the appropriate approval from ODOT prior to work 
taking place.    

PFB 34. The proposed 24 inch storm line shall be a public utility and constructed in 
accordance with the Public Works Standards.   

 
 

Page 76 of 82



Development Review Template 
  
DATE: 2/27/13 
 
TO:  DAN PAULY AICP, ASSOCIATE PLANNER 
FROM: DON WALTERS 
SUBJECT: DEVELOPMENT REVIEW # DB12-0074-76 
 
WORK DESCRIPTION:  CARL’S JUNIOR AND ADJACENT RETAIL BUILDING 
 
*************************************************************************** 
 

Building Division Conditions: 

BD 1. ACCESSIBLE PARKING cannot be fully reviewed at this time.  Accessible parking 
will be fully reviewed as part of the plan review of the building permit.  The additional 
information available at plan review may require changes to the number and location of 
accessible parking spaces shown on these preliminary plans. 

BD 2. A GREASE INTERCEPTOR will be required for Carl’s Junior.  If there is a possibility 
that a business requiring a grease interceptor will occupy the new retail building, a 
sewer line shall be run from the retail building to the grease interceptor.  The grease 
interceptor shall be sized as directed in the Plumbing Code. 

BD 3. TRASH ENCLOSURE.  If a drain is installed in the covered trash enclosure it shall be 
plumbed to the grease interceptor. 

 

 

Page 77 of 82

swhite
Stamp



 
 
 
 
 
 
February 26, 2013 
 
Daniel Pauly 
Associate Planner 
City of Wilsonville 
Wilsonville, Oregon 
97070 
 
Re: Case File DB 12-0074 thru 12-0076, New Fast Food Restaurant and Retail Building  
 
Dear Mr. Pauly, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to review the proposed site plan surrounding the above named development 
project.  Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue endorses this proposal predicated on the following criteria and conditions 
of approval:  
 

1)  SURFACE AND LOAD CAPACITIES:  Fire apparatus access roads shall be of an all-weather surface 
that is easily distinguishable from the surrounding area and is capable of supporting not less than 12,500 
pounds point load (wheel load) and 60,000 pounds live load (gross vehicle weight). You may need to 
provide documentation from a registered engineer that the design will be capable of supporting such 
loading. (OFC D102.1)  Applicable to the parking lot.   

2)  PAINTED CURBS:  Where required, fire apparatus access roadway curbs shall be painted red and 
marked “NO PARKING FIRE LANE” at approved intervals.  Lettering shall have a stroke of not less than 
one inch wide by six inches high.  Lettering shall be white on red background. (OFC 503.3) Provide curb 
lane striping along the face of the curb at the landscape island housing the new fire hydrant.    

3)  COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS - REQUIRED FIRE FLOW:  The required fire flow for the building shall not 
exceed 3,000 gallons per minute (GPM) or the available GPM in the water delivery system at 20 psi, 
whichever is less as calculated using IFC, Appendix B.  A worksheet for calculating the required fire flow 
is available from the Fire Marshal’s Office. (OFC B105.3)  Please provide a current fire flow test of the 
nearest fire hydrant demonstrating available flow at 20 psi residual pressure as well as fire flow 
calculation worksheets.  Please forward copies to both TVF&R as well as local building 
department.  Fire flow calculation worksheets as well as instructions are available on our web site 
at www.tvfr.com.   

4)  FIRE HYDRANTS – COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS:  Where a portion of the building is more than 400 feet 
from a hydrant on a fire apparatus access road, as measured in an approved route around the exterior of 
the building, on-site fire hydrants and mains shall be provided.   This distance may be increased to 600 
feet for buildings equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system. (OFC 507.5.1)  The 
proposed fire hydrant is obstructed by passenger vehicle parking stalls.  Please relocate the new 
fire hydrant from its proposed location to the landscape island to the south.   

5)  REFLECTIVE HYDRANT MARKERS:  Fire hydrant locations shall be identified by the installation of 
reflective markers.  The markers shall be blue.  They shall be located adjacent and to the side of the 
centerline of the access road way that the fire hydrant is located on.  In case that there is no center line, 
then assume a centerline, and place the reflectors accordingly. (OFC 510.1) 

6)  PHYSICAL PROTECTION:  Where fire hydrants are subject to impact by a motor vehicle, guard posts, 
bollards or other approved means of protection shall be provided. (OFC 507.5.6) Please provide 
bollards at the new fire hydrant.   

7)  CLEAR SPACE AROUND FIRE HYDRANTS:  A 3 foot clear space shall be provided around the 
circumference of fire hydrants. (OFC 507.5.5) 

Page 78 of 82

http://www.tvfr.com/
swhite
Stamp



8)  ACCESS AND FIRE FIGHTING WATER SUPPLY DURING CONSTRUCTION:  Approved fire apparatus 
access roadways and fire fighting water supplies shall be installed and operational prior to any 
combustible construction or storage of combustible materials on the site. (OFC 1410.1 & 1412.1) 

9)  KNOX BOX:  A Knox Box for building access is required for this building.  Please contact the Fire 
Marshal’s Office for an order form and instructions regarding installation and placement. (OFC 506.1) 
Provide a Knox box at each new building.   

10)  PREMISES IDENTIFICATION:  Buildings shall have approved address numbers, building numbers or 
approved building identification placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible from the street or road 
fronting the property.  These numbers shall contrast with their background.  Address numbers shall be 
Arabic numerals or alphabet numbers.  Numbers shall be a minimum of 4 inches high with a ½ inch 
stroke. (OFC 505.1) Please provide a physical address for each new building visible from the 
approaching roadway.   

11)  FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS TO EQUIPMENT:  Fire protection equipment shall be identified in an 
approved manner.  Rooms containing controls for HVAC, fire sprinklers risers and valves or other fire 
detection, suppression or control features shall be identified with approved signs. (OFC 509.1) 

 
If you have questions or need further clarification, please feel free to contact me at 503-259-1404. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Drew S. DeBois 
 
Drew DeBois 
Deputy Fire Marshal II/CFI 
 
Copy: D. Walters, COW, File  
 

Page 79 of 82



Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 P
la
n 

Re
vi
ew

 C
om

m
en

t 
Fo

rm
 

 
Pl
an

s 
fo

r 
Re

vi
ew

: 
 

Bo
on

es
 F

er
ry

 P
oi
nt

e 
– 
Ca

rl
’s
, 

Jr
 

Re
tu

rn
 A

ll 
Co

m
m
en

ts
 T

o:
 

D
an

ie
l 
Pa

ul
y 

D
ue

 D
at

e:
 

 
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
5,

 2
01

3 
 

N
am

e 
Se

c 
N
o.

 
Co

m
m
en

ts
 

En
gi
ne

er
in
g’
s 

Re
sp

on
se

 
Ra

nd
y 

W
at

so
n 

 
Ca

rl
’s 

Jr
 s

ha
ll 

co
m

pl
y 

wi
th

 t
he

 n
ew

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
O

re
go

n 
Pl

um
bi

ng
 

Sp
ec

ia
lt

y 
Co

de
 w

hi
ch

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
al

l p
lu

m
bi

ng
 f

ix
tu

re
s,

 g
ar

ba
ge

 d
is

po
sa

ls
, 

di
sh

wa
sh

er
s,

 f
lo

or
 d

ra
in

s,
 a

nd
 c

oo
ki

ng
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
wi

th
 d

ra
in

 
co

nn
ec

ti
on

s 
in

 f
oo

d 
an

d/
or

 b
ev

er
ag

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
ar

ea
s 

be
 c

on
ne

ct
ed

 
to

 t
he

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
GR

D
. 

 Th
e 

tr
as

h 
ra

ck
 a

re
a 

sh
al

l b
e 

co
ve

re
d 

pe
r 

W
ils

on
vi

lle
 C

od
e 

8.
21

0(
9)

 a
nd

 
if

 a
 d

ra
in

 is
 p

ro
vi

de
d,

 it
 t

oo
 s

ha
ll 

be
 c

on
ne

ct
ed

 t
o 

a 
gr

ea
se

 r
em

ov
al

 
de

vi
ce

. 

 

St
ev

e 
M

un
st

er
m

an
 

 
N

o 
Co

m
m

en
ts

 
 

D
an

 H
ou

se
 

 
 

 
St

ev
e 

Ge
ri

ng
 

D
D

2 
Th

er
e 

ap
pe

ar
s 

to
 b

e 
an

 e
xi

st
in

g 
wa

te
rl

in
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

un
de

r 
th

e 
ES

E 
co

rn
er

 o
f 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 3
15

0 
sf

 r
et

ai
l b

ui
ld

in
g.

  I
s 

th
e 

lin
e 

be
in

g 
re

lo
ca

te
d?

 

 

M
at

t 
Ba

ke
r 

 
 

 
A

rn
ie

 G
ra

y 
 

 
 

M
ar

k 
Fo

lz
 

 
 

 
Pa

ul
 H

av
en

s 
 

 
 

 

Page 80 of 82

swhite
Stamp



1

Pauly, Daniel

From: White, Shelley
Sent: Monday, February 11, 2013 2:10 PM
To: Pauly, Daniel
Subject: FW: Development Review Team Mailing (DB12-0074 et al - Boones Ferry Pointe/Carl's Jr)

Dan – a response to the Boones Ferry Pointe/Carl’s Jr. DRT notice below… 
 

Shelley White 
Administrative Assistant 
City of Wilsonville  
Ph:  503 570-1575 
swhite@ci.wilsonville.or.us 
  
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this E-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law. 
  
From: Raymond Lambert [mailto:Raymond.Lambert@pgn.com]  
Sent: Monday, February 11, 2013 1:12 PM 
To: White, Shelley 
Subject: RE: Development Review Team Mailing (DB12-0074 et al - Boones Ferry Pointe/Carl's Jr) 
 
Power is not readily available to this parcel.  Developer should contact PGE to develop a plan as soon as possible.  Call 
the PGE service coordinator at 503‐736‐5450. 
 
Thanks, 
Ray Lambert 
S&D Project Manager 
PGE – Wilsonville 
 
 

From: White, Shelley [mailto:swhite@ci.wilsonville.or.us]  
Sent: Monday, February 11, 2013 8:39 AM 
To: Gray, Arnie; Jacobson, Barbara; Ben Baldwin (DevelopmentReview@trimet.org); Bill Rhoades 
(rhoadesw@wlwv.k12.or.us); Edmonds, Blaise; Brian Harper (Brian.Harper@oregonmetro.gov); Stevenson, Brian; 
Cosgrove, Bryan; Neamtzu, Chris; Christine Jeibmann (Christine.Jeibmann@nwnatural.com); Knoll, Dan; Stark, Dan; 
Pauly, Daniel; Kerber, Delora; Walters, Don; Drew DeBois (Drew.Debois@tvfr.com); Parent, Gail; Miller, Holly; Massa 
Smith, Jen; (Karen.mohling@tvfr.com); Kenneth Parris (kenneth_parris@cable.comcast.com); Rappold, Kerry; Lance 
Cheeley (Lance.Cheeley@nwnatural.com); Lorraine Katz; Bushman, Luke; Marah Danielson 
(marah.b.danielson@odot.state.or.us); Brown, Martin; Baker, Matt; Ward, Mike; Wheeler, Mike; Kraushaar, Nancy; Watt, 
Nick; Duke, Pat; Raymond Lambert; Region 1 Development Review Applications 
(Region1DEVREVApplications@odot.state.or.us); Robert Buck; Ryan Truair (rmk@nwnatural.com); Sandra Larsen 
(sandra.larsen@aviation.state.or.us); Simonton, Scott; Lashbrook, Stephan; Adams, Steve; Allen, Steve; Munsterman, 
Steve; Steven Schalk (Steven.B.Schalk@ODOT.state.or.us); Tiffany Ritchey; Tom Maier (Thomas.Maier@awin.com) 
Subject: Development Review Team Mailing (DB12-0074 et al - Boones Ferry Pointe/Carl's Jr) 
 
Development Review Team members, 
 
Please find the attached Development Review Team mailing for your review: 
 
DB12‐0074 et al – Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl’s Jr. Restaurant and Multi‐Tenant Commercial Building 
 

Page 81 of 82

swhite
Stamp



2

Comments are due to Daniel Pauly, Associate Planner, by 4 pm on February 25, 2013 for the March 11, 2013 DRB 
public hearing. 
 
Thank you. 
 

Shelley White 
Administrative Assistant 
City of Wilsonville  
Ph:  503 570-1575 
swhite@ci.wilsonville.or.us 
  
DISCLOSURE NOTICE:  Messages to and from this E-mail address may be subject to the Oregon Public Records Law. 
  

Page 82 of 82



swhite
Stamp































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































swhite
Stamp



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VIII. Board Member Communications:    
A.  Agenda Results from the February 25, 2013 DRB 

Panel B meeting 
 

 



City of Wilsonville 

Development Review Board Panel B Meeting 
Meeting Results 

DATE:    FEBRUARY 25, 2013 
LOCATION:  29799 SW TOWN CENTER LOOP EAST, WILSONVILLE, OR 
TIME START:      6:30 P.M. TIME END:   8:49 P.M.  

ATTENDANCE LOG 

BOARD MEMBERS STAFF 
Andrew Karr, Chair Blaise Edmonds 
Dianne Knight                            Barbara Jacobson 
Jhuma Chaudhuri Daniel Pauly 
Aaron Woods Amanda Hoffman 
Cheryl Dorman, Vice Chair, was absent. Chris Neamtzu 

 
AGENDA RESULTS 

AGENDA ACTIONS 
CITIZENS’ INPUT None 
  
CONSENT AGENDA  

A. Approval of January 28, 2013 Minutes Unanimously approved as submitted 
PUBLIC HEARING  

A. Resolution No. 245. Les Bois Row Homes:  Polygon Northwest Company 
– applicant.  The applicant is requesting approval of Final Development 
Plan (FDP) for PDP - 1 Central (Les Bois Row Homes) for detached row 
houses and duplexes. The site includes Tax Lots 14300 – 1440 and 14600 
– 15200 in Section 15DB, T3S, R1W, Clackamas County, Oregon. Staff:  
Blaise Edmonds 

 
Case File:     DB12-0083 – Final Development Plan 

 
B. Resolution No. 246. Toulouse Street Detached Row Homes: Stacy 

Connery, Pacific Community Design for Polygon Northwest Company – 
applicant. The applicant is requesting approval of a Preliminary 
Development Plan (PDP) Refinement and Amendment with Specific Area 
Plan Refinement, Tentative Subdivision Re-plat and Final Development 
Plan (FDP) for PDP - 1 Central (Toulouse St. Row Homes) for detached 
row houses. The site includes Tax Lots 8200, 8300, 8400 and 8500, 
Section 15DB, T3S, R1W, Clackamas County, Oregon. Staff:  Amanda 
Hoffman 

 
Case Files:     DB12-0077 - Preliminary Development Plan Refinement and 

Amendment with Specific Area Plan 
Refinement 

                       DB12-0078 - Tentative Subdivision Re-plat 
                       DB12-0079 - Final Development Plan 

 

A. Resolution No. 245 unanimously 
continued to March 25, 2013. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
B. Resolution No. 246 unanimously 
adopted with corrections to the Staff 
report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



C. Resolution 247.  Costa Circle West Detached Row Homes:  Stacy 
Connery, Pacific Community Design for Polygon Northwest Company – 
applicant.  The applicant is requesting approval of a Preliminary 
Development Plan (PDP) Refinement and Amendment with Specific Area 
Plan Refinement, Tentative Subdivision Re-plat and Final Development 
Plan (FDP) for PDP - 2 Central (Costa Circle West Row Homes) for 
detached row houses. The site includes Tax Lots 400, 500, 600, 700, 800, 
900, 1000, 1100, 1200, 1300, 1400, 1500, 1600, 1700 and 1800 in Section 
15AD, T3S, R1W, Clackamas County, Oregon. Staff:  Daniel Pauly 
 
Case Files:    DB12-0080 -  Preliminary Development Plan Refinement and 

Amendment with Specific Area Plan 
Refinement 

                                     DB12-0081 - Tentative Subdivision Re-plat 
                                    DB12-0082 -  Final Development Plan 

 

C. Resolution No 247 unanimously 
adopted with added Condition PDC 
13 which addressed the placement of 
rainwater planters. 

  

BOARD MEMBER COMUNICATIONS  
A. Results of the February 11, 2013 DRB Panel A meeting None 

  
STAFF COMMUNICATIONS None  

RECORDED BY:   


	Wilsonville City Hall
	29799 SW Town Center Loop East
	Wilsonville, Oregon
	V. City Council Liaison Report
	This agenda item was addressed following the public hearing on Resolution No. 243.
	Finding B19 in Exhibit A1: Subsection 4.118 (.03) E. Other Requirements or Restrictions:
	AASR 2.11.2013.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION
	LAND USE DESIGNATION: Wilsonville Comprehensive Plan Map


	REQUESTED ACTIONS:
	APPLICABLE CRITERIA:
	CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR REQUESTS �A� � �E�:
	MASTER EXHIBITS LIST:
	FINDINGS OF FACT:
	Planned Development Regulations
	Subsection 4.140 (.01) Purpose of Planned Development Regulations
	Subsection 4.140 (.02) Lot Qualifications for Planned Developments
	Details of Finding: The subject properties are greater than 2 acres, are designated for commercial development in the Comprehensive Plan, and are zoned Planned Development Commercial-Town Center. The properties have been and continue to be developed a...
	Subsection 4.140 (.03) Ownership Requirements for Submitting Planned Development Application
	Details of Finding: The land included in the current application is under the single ownership of Wilsonville Land Partnership, dba Wilsonville Family Fun Center and an authorized representative, Darren Harmon, has signed the application.
	Subsection 4.140 (.04) Professional Design Team Required for Planned Developments
	Details of Finding: As can be found in the applicant�s submitted materials, appropriate professionals have been involved in the planning and permitting process. Ben Altman of SFA Design Group has been designated the coordinator for the planning portio...
	Subsection 4.140 (.05) Planned Development Permit Process
	Details of Finding: The subject property is greater than 2 acres, is designated for commercial development in the Comprehensive Plan, and is zoned Planned Development Commercial-Town Center. The property has been and continues to be developed as a pla...
	Subsection 4.140 (.06) Stage I Master Plan Consistent with Comprehensive Plan
	Details of Finding: The proposed project, as found elsewhere in this report, complies with the Planned Development Commercial-Town Center zoning designation, which implements the Comprehensive Plan designation of �Commercial� for this property. All ot...
	Subsection 4.140 (.07) Stage I Master Plan Application Requirements and Hearing Process
	Details of Finding: Review of the proposed revised Stage I Master Plan has been scheduled for a public hearing before the Development Review Board in accordance with this subsection and the applicant has met all the applicable submission requirements ...
	Details of Finding: The proposed uses are consistent with the purpose of the PDC-TC zone as they include entertainment uses. The prior approvals allowed for outdoor activities as being consistent with the allowed entertainment function being provided.
	Subsection 4.131.05 (.03) Example of uses that are typically recommended in PDC-TC Zone
	Details of Finding: The existing uses include the following listed in this subsection: Entertainment under A.
	Subsection 4.135 (.04) Block and Access Standards in PDC-TC Zone

	SUMMARY FINDINGS FOR DB12-0070 � Stage I Modification to a Final Development Plan:
	Planned Development Regulations
	Subsection 4.140 (.01) Purpose of Planned Development Regulations
	Subsection 4.140 (.02) Lot Qualifications for Planned Developments
	Details of Finding: The development site is greater than 2 acres, is designated for commercial development in the Comprehensive Plan, and is zoned Planned Development Commercial-Town Center. The property will be developed as a component of a planned d...
	Subsection 4.140 (.03) Ownership Requirements for Submitting Planned Development Application
	Subsection 4.140 (.04) Professional Design Team Required for Planned Developments
	Details of Finding: As can be found in the applicant�s submitted materials, appropriate professionals have been involved in the planning and permitting process. Ben Altman of SFA Design Group has been designated the coordinator for the planning portio...
	Subsection 4.140 (.05) Planned Development Permit Process
	Details of Finding: The subject property is greater than 2 acres, is designated for commercial development in the Comprehensive Plan, and is zoned Planned Development Commercial-Town Center. The property has been and continues to be developed as a pla...
	Subsection 4.118 (.03) E. Other Requirements or Restrictions
	Subsection 4.118 (.04) Effect of Determination of Compliance and Conditions of Approval on Development Cost
	Subsection 4.155 (.02) General Parking Provisions
	Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 8. Parking Minimum and Maximum


	SUMMARY FINDINGS FOR DB12-0071 � Stage II Final Development Plan:

	REQUEST A
	DB12-0071: STAGE I MASTER PLAN MODIFICATION
	REQUEST B
	DB12-0071: STAGE II 
	REQUEST C
	DB12-0072: SITE DESIGN REVIEW
	Subsection 4.400 (.02) Purposes of Objectives of Site Design Review
	Section 4.420 Site Design Review-Jurisdiction and Power of the Board
	Subsection 4.421 (.01) Site Design Review-Design Standards
	Subsection 4.421 (.02) Applicability of Design Standards to Various Site Features
	Subsection 4.421 (.03) Objectives of Section 4.400 Serve as Additional Criteria and Standards
	Subsection 4.421 (.05) Site Design Review-Conditions of Approval
	Subsection 4.421 (.06) Color or Materials Requirements
	Section 4.430 Design of Trash and Recycling Enclosures
	Section 4.440 Site Design Review-Procedures
	Section 4.442 Time Limit on Approval
	Subsection 4.450 (.01) Landscape Installation or Bonding
	Parking
	Subsection 4.155 (.02) Provision and Maintenance of Off-Street Parking
	Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 1.-3. Landscaping of Parking Areas
	Subsection 4.176 (.03) Landscape Area and Locations
	Subsection 4.176 (.04) Buffering and Screening
	SUMMARY FINDINGS FOR DB12-0072 � Site Design Review:


	STAFF REPORT
	WILSONVILLE PLANNING DIVISION
	LAND USE DESIGNATIONS: Wilsonville Comprehensive Plan Map


	REQUESTED ACTIONS:
	APPLICABLE CRITERIA:
	SUMMARY:
	CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:
	MASTER EXHIBITS LIST:
	FINDINGS OF FACT:
	Section 4.008. Application Procedures - In General.
	Section 4.009. Who May Initiate Applications.
	Section 4.034. Application Requirements.
	Section 4.124 PDR (Planned Development Residential) Zone
	(.01)  Examples of principal uses that are typically permitted:
	(.03) Parking.

	Section 4.138: Old Town (O) Overlay
	Section 4.155 General Regulations � Parking, Loading and Bicycle Parking
	Section 4.421. Criteria and Application of Design Standards.
	SUMMARY FINDINGS FOR DB13-0002 � Site Design Review:

	REQUEST DB13-0006: SITE DESIGN REVIEW
	CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS
	Boones Ferry Pointe: Carl�s Jr. Restaurant and Multi-tenant Commercial Building
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP DESIGNATION: Commercial
	ZONE MAP CLASSIFICATION:  PDC (Planned Development Commercial)
	STAFF REVIEWERS: Daniel Pauly AICP, Associate Planner
	BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:
	Approved Stage I Master Plan/Site History
	Stage II Final Plan (DB12-0074)
	Site Design Review (DB12-0075)
	Architectural Design
	Landscape and Hardscape Design

	Master Sign Plan (DB12-0076)

	discussion topics:
	CONCLUSION AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:
	REQUEST A: DB12-0074 Stage II Final Plan
	REQUEST B: DB12-0075 Site Design Review
	REQUEST C DB12-0076 Master Sign Plan for Boones Ferry Pointe

	MASTER EXHIBIT LIST:
	FINDINGS OF FACT:
	CONCLUSIONARY FINDINGS:
	GENERAL INFORMATION
	Section 4.008 Application Procedures-In General
	Section 4.009 and Subsection 4.140 (.03) Who May Initiate Application and Ownership
	Subsection 4.010 (.02) Pre-Application Conference
	Subsection 4.011 (.02) B. Lien Payment before Application Approval
	Subsection 4.035 (.04) A. General Site Development Permit Submission Requirements
	Section 4.110 Zoning-Generally

	REQUEST A: DB12-0074 Stage II Final Plan
	Planned Development Regulations
	Subsection 4.140 (.01) Purpose of Planned Development Regulations
	Subsections 4.140 (.02) and (.05) Planned Development Lot Size and Permit Process
	Explanation of Finding: The development site is less than two (2) acres. However, it is previously been zoned for Planned Development. The property is designated for commercial development in the Comprehensive Plan, and is zoned Planned Development Co...
	Subsection 4.140 (.04) Professional Design Team Required for Planned Developments
	Explanation of Finding: The applicant�s compliance narrative lists the appropriate professionals involved in the planning and permitting process. Ben Altman of SFA Design Group has been designated the coordinator for the planning portion of the project.

	Stage II Final Plan Submission Requirements and Process
	Subsection 4.140 (.09) A. Timing of Submission
	Subsection 4.140 (.09) C. Conformance with Stage I and Additional Submission Requirements
	Subsection 4.140 (.09) D. Stage II Final Plan Detail
	Subsection 4.140 (.09) E. Submission of Legal Documents
	Subsection 4.140 (.09) J. Planned Development Permit Requirements

	Commercial Development in Any Zone
	Subsection 4.116 (.01) Commercial Development to be in Centers and Complexes
	Subsection 4.116 (.05) All Commercial Activity to be Completely Enclosed
	Subsection 4.116 (.07) Uses Limited to those Meeting Industrial Performance Standards
	Subsection 4.116 (.08) Vision Clearance Standards for Corner Lots
	Subsection 4.116 (.10) Commercial Development Generally
	Subsection 4.116 (.14) B. Prohibited Uses

	Standards Applying in All Planned Development Zones
	Subsection 4.118 (.01) Additional Height Guidelines
	Subsection 4.118 (.03) Waivers
	Subsection 4.118 (.03) E. Other Requirements or Restrictions
	Subsection 4.118 (.04) Effect of Determination of Compliance and Conditions of Approval on Development Cost
	Subsection 4.118 (.05) Requirements to Set Aside Tracts for Certain Purposes
	Subsection 4.118 (.09) Habitat Friendly Development Practices

	Planned Development Commercial Zone
	Subsection 4.131 (.01) A. 1. Uses Typically Permitted
	Explanation of Finding: The proposed uses include a fast food restaurant (service establishment) and a commercial building for tenants yet to be determined. The remaining tenants can be a variety of commercial uses listed in this subsection as long as...
	Subsection 4.131 (.02) Prohibited Uses
	Explanation of Finding: The applicant has not proposed any prohibited uses for the site.
	Subsection 4.131 (.03) 1. Block and Access Standards: Connectivity for Different Modes
	Explanation of Finding: No new blocks are proposed, and the proposed development proposes to use the existing shared private driveway on 95th Avenue partially on the subject property. A development agreement has been agreed upon between the owner of t...

	Parking and Loading
	Subsection 4.155 (.02) General Parking Provisions
	Subsection 4.155 (.03) A. Functional Design of Parking, Loading, and Delivery Areas
	Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 1.-3. Parking Area Landscaping
	Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 4. Parking and Loading Areas-Safe and Convenient Access
	Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 5.Parking Connectivity and Efficient On-site Circulation
	Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 8. Parking Minimum and Maximum
	Subsection 4.155 (.04) A. Required Number of Loading Berths
	Section 4.167 Access, Ingress, and Egress

	Natural Features
	Section 4.171 Protection of Natural Features and Other Resources

	Public Safety and Crime Prevention
	Subsection 4.175 (.01) Design to Deter Crime and Ensure Public Safety
	Subsection 4.175 (.02) Addressing and Directional Signing
	Subsection 4.175 (.03) Surveillance and Police Access
	Subsection 4.175 (.04) Lighting to Discourage Crime

	Landscaping Standards
	Subsection 4.176 (.01) Purpose of Landscape, Screening, and Buffering
	Subsection 4.176 (.02) B. Landscaping Standards and Code Compliance
	Subsection 4.176 (.02) C. 1. General Landscape Standards-Intent
	Subsection 4.176 (.02) C. 2. General Landscape Standards-Required Materials
	Subsection 4.176 (.02) E. 1. High Screen Landscape Standard-Intent
	Subsection 4.176 (.02) E. 2. High Screen Landscape Standard-Required Materials
	Subsection 4.176 (.03) Landscape Area and Locations
	Subsection 4.176 (.04) Buffering and Screening
	Subsection 4.176 (.09) Landscape Plans
	Subsection 4.176 (.12) Mitigation Standards

	Other Standards
	Section 4.177 Street Improvement Standards
	Section 4.178 Sidewalk and Pathway Standards
	Section 4.179 Mixed Solid Waste and Recyclables Storage
	Sections 4.199.20 Outdoor Lighting
	Sections 4.300-4.320 and Subsection 4.118 (.02) Underground Installation of Utilities


	Request B: DB12-0075 Site Design Review
	Site Design Review
	Subsection 4.400 (.01) and Subsection 4.421 (.03) Excessive Uniformity, Inappropriateness of Design, Etc.
	Subsection 4.400 (.02) and Subsection 4.421 (.03) Purposes of Objectives of Site Design Review
	Section 4.420 Development in Accordance with Plans
	Subsection 4.421 (.01) and (.02) Site Design Review-Design Standards
	Subsection 4.421 (.05) Site Design Review-Conditions of Approval
	Subsection 4.421 (.06) Color or Materials Requirements
	Section 4.430 Design of Trash and Recycling Enclosures
	Section 4.440 Site Design Review-Submittal Requirements
	Subsection 4.450 (.01) Landscape Installation or Bonding
	Subsection 4.450 (.02) Approved Landscape Plan Binding
	Subsection 4.450 (.03) Landscape Maintenance and Watering
	Subsection 4.450 (.04) Addition and Modifications of Landscaping

	Parking
	Subsection 4.155 (.02) Provision and Maintenance of Off-Street Parking
	Subsection 4.155 (.03) B. 1.-3. Landscaping of Parking Areas
	Section 4.171 Protection of Natural Features and Other Resources

	Landscaping
	Subsection 4.176 (.02) B. Landscape Standards and Compliance with Code
	Subsection 4.176 (.02) C. 1. General Landscape Standards-Intent
	Subsection 4.176 (.02) C. 2. General Landscape Standards-Required Materials
	Subsection 4.176 (.02) E. 1. High Screen Standard-Intent
	Subsection 4.176 (.02) E. 2. High Screen Standard-Required Materials
	Subsection 4.176 (.03) Landscape Area and Locations
	Subsection 4.176 (.04) Buffering and Screening
	Subsection 4.176 (.05) Site Obscuring Fence or Planting
	Subsection 4.176 (.06) A. Plant Materials-Shrubs and Groundcover
	Subsection 4.176 (.06) B. Plant Materials-Trees
	Subsection 4.176 (.06) D. Plant Materials-Street Trees
	Subsection 4.176 (.06) E. Types of Plant Species
	Subsection 4.176 (.06) G. Exceeding Plant Material Standards
	Subsection 4.176 (.07) Installation and Maintenance of Landscaping
	Subsection 4.176 (.09) Landscape Plans
	Subsection 4.176 (.10) Completion of Landscaping
	Subsection 4.176 (.12) Mitigation and Restoration Plantings

	Other Standards
	Section 4.178 Sidewalk and Pathway Standards
	Section 4.179 Mixed Solid Waste and Recyclables Storage

	Outdoor Lighting
	Section 4.199.20 Applicability of Outdoor Lighting Standards
	Section 4.199.30 Outdoor Lighting Zones
	Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) A. Alternative Methods of Outdoor Lighting Compliance
	Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) C. Performance Option for Outdoor Lighting Compliance
	Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) C. 1. Weighted Average of Direct Uplight Lumens Standard
	Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) C. 2. Maximum Light Level at Property Lines
	Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) C. 2. Maximum Light Level at Property Lines
	Subsection 4.199.40 (.01) D. Outdoor Lighting Curfew
	Subsection 4.199.50 Submittal Requirements


	REQUEST C: DB12-0076 Master Sign Plan for Boones Ferry Pointe
	Subsection 4.031 (.01) M. and Subsection 4.156.02 (.03) Review Process
	Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) Master Sign Plans Generally
	Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) A. Master Sign Plan Submission Requirements
	Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) B. Master Sign Plan Review Criteria
	Subsection 4.156.02 (.05) E. Class II Sign Permit Review Criteria: Generally and Site Design Review
	Subsection 4.156.02 (.05) E. 1. Class II Sign Permit Review Criteria: Compatibility with Zone
	Subsection 4.156.02 (.05) E. 2. Class II Sign Permit Review Criteria: Nuisance and Impact on Surrounding Properties
	Subsection 4.156.02 (.05) E. 3. Class II Sign Permit Review Criteria: Items for Special Attention
	Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) B. 1. Consistent and Compatible Design
	Subsection 4.156.02 (.07) B. 2. Future Needs

	Section 4.156.03 Sign Measurement
	Subsection 4.156.03 (.01) A. Measurement of Cabinet Signs and Similar
	Subsection 4.156.03 (.01) B. Measurement of Individual Element Signs
	Subsection 4.156.03 (.02) A. Measurement of Sign Height Above Ground
	Subsection 4.156.03 (.03) A.-B. Measurement of Sign Height and Length
	Subsection 4.156.05 (.01) C. Signs Exempt From Sign Permit Requirements: Flags

	Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) Freestanding and Ground Mounted Signs in the PDC, PDI, and PF Zones
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) A. General Allowance
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) B. Allowed Height
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) C. Allowed Area
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) D. Pole or Sign Support Placement
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) E. Extending Over Right-of-Way, Parking, and Maneuvering Areas
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) G. Design of Freestanding Signs to Match or Complement Design of Buildings
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) H. Width vs. Height of Signs Over 8 Feet
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) J. Sign Setback
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) K. Address Requirement
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.01) L. Design of Sign Based on Initial Tenant Configuration and Size

	Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) Building Signs in the PDC, PDI, and PF Zones
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) A. Sign Eligible Facades
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) B. Building Sign Area Allowed
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) B. 6. Calculating Linear Length to Determine Sign Area Allowed.
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) C. Building Sign Length Allowed
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) D. Building Sign Height Allowed
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.02) E. Building Sign Types Allowed
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.03) A. Additional Signs: Directional Signs
	Subsection 4.156.08 (.03) A. Additional Signs: Planned Development Signs

	Site Design Review
	Subsections 4.400 (.01) and 4.421 (.03) Excessive Uniformity, Inappropriateness of Design, Etc.
	Subsections 4.400 (.02) and 4.421 (.03) Purposes of Objectives of Site Design Review
	Subsection 4.421 (.01) Site Design Review-Design Standards
	Subsection 4.421 (.02) Applicability of Design Standards to Signs
	Subsection 4.421 (.05) Site Design Review-Conditions of Approval
	Subsection 4.421 (.06) Color or Materials Requirements
	Section 4.440 Site Design Review-Procedures



	Exhbit C1 Natural Resources Conditions.pdf
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT MEMORANDUM
	To: Daniel Pauly, Associate Planner
	Stormwater Management
	Other


	Exhibit C2 Engineering Conditions.pdf
	Standard Comments:
	PFB 1. All construction or improvements to public works facilities shall be in conformance to the City of Wilsonville Public Works Standards.
	PFB 2. Applicant shall submit insurance requirements to the City of Wilsonville in the following amounts:
	PFB 3. No construction of, or connection to, any existing or proposed public utility/improvements will be permitted until all plans are approved by Staff, all fees have been paid, all necessary permits, right-of-way and easements have been obtained and Staff is notified a minimum of 24 hours in advance.
	PFB 4. All public utility/improvement plans submitted for review shall be based upon a 22”x 34” format and shall be prepared in accordance with the City of Wilsonville Public Work’s Standards.
	PFB 5. Plans submitted for review shall meet the following general criteria:
	PFB 6. Submit plans in the following general format and order for all public works construction to be maintained by the City:
	PFB 7. Prior to manhole and sewer line testing, design engineer shall coordinate with the City and update the sanitary and stormwater sewer systems to reflect the City’s numbering system.  Video testing and sanitary manhole testing will refer to the updated numbering system.  Design engineer shall also show the updated numbering system on As-Built drawings submitted to the City.
	PFB 8. The applicant shall install, operate and maintain adequate erosion control measures in conformance with the standards adopted by the City of Wilsonville Ordinance No. 482 during the construction of any public/private utility and building improvements until such time as approved permanent vegetative materials have been installed.
	PFB 9. Applicant shall work with City’s Natural Resources office before disturbing any soil on the respective site.  If 5 or more acres of the site will be disturbed applicant shall obtain a 1200-C permit from the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality.  If 1 to less than 5 acres of the site will be disturbed a 1200-CN permit from the City of Wilsonville is required.
	PFB 10. To lessen the impact of the proposed project on the downstream storm drain system, and adjacent properties, project run-off from the site shall be detained and limited to the difference between a developed 25-year storm and an undeveloped 25-year storm. The detention and outfall facilities shall be designed and constructed in conformance with the Public Works Standards.
	PFB 11. A storm water analysis prepared by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of Oregon shall be submitted for review and approval by the City to address appropriate pipe and detention facility sizing.
	PFB 12. The applicant shall be in conformance with all water quality requirements for the proposed development per the Public Works Standards.  If a mechanical water quality system is used, prior to City acceptance of the project the applicant shall provide a letter from the system manufacturer stating that the system was installed per specifications and is functioning as designed.
	PFB 13. Storm water quality facilities shall have approved landscape planted and/or some other erosion control method installed and approved by the City of Wilsonville prior to streets and/or alleys being paved.
	PFB 14. The applicant shall provide the City with a Stormwater Maintenance and Access Easement (on City approved forms) for City inspection of those portions of the storm system to be privately maintained.  Applicant shall maintain all LID storm water components and private conventional storm water facilities located within medians and from the back of curb onto and including the project site.
	PFB 15. Fire hydrants shall be located in compliance with TVF&R fire prevention ordinance and approval of TVF&R.
	PFB 16. All survey monuments on the subject site, or that may be subject to disturbance within the construction area, or the construction of any off-site improvements shall be adequately referenced and protected prior to commencement of any construction activity.  If the survey monuments are disturbed, moved, relocated or destroyed as a result of any construction, the project shall, at its cost, retain the services of a registered professional land surveyor in the State of Oregon to restore the monument to its original condition and file the necessary surveys as required by Oregon State law.  A copy of any recorded survey shall be submitted to Staff.
	PFB 17. Sidewalks, crosswalks and pedestrian linkages in the public right-of-way shall be in compliance with the requirements of the U.S. Access Board.
	PFB 18. No surcharging of sanitary or storm water manholes is allowed.
	PFB 19. The project shall connect to an existing manhole or install a manhole at each connection point to the public storm system and sanitary sewer system. 
	PFB 20. A City approved energy dissipation device shall be installed at all proposed storm system outfalls.  Storm outfall facilities shall be designed and constructed in conformance with the Public Works Standards.
	PFB 21. All required pavement markings, in conformance with the Transportation Systems Plan and the Bike and Pedestrian Master Plan, shall be completed in conjunction with any conditioned street improvements.
	PFB 22. Street and traffic signs shall have a hi-intensity prismatic finish meeting ASTM 4956 Spec Type 4 standards.
	PFB 23. The applicant shall provide adequate sight distance at all project driveways by driveway placement or vegetation control. Specific designs to be submitted and approved by the City Engineer. Coordinate and align proposed driveways with driveways on the opposite side of the proposed project site.
	PFB 24. Access requirements, including sight distance, shall conform to the City's Transportation Systems Plan (TSP) or as approved by the City Engineer. Landscaping plantings shall be low enough to provide adequate sight distance at all street intersections and alley/street intersections.
	PFB 25. Applicant shall prepare an Ownership and Maintenance agreement between the City and the Owner.  Stormwater or rainwater facilities may be located within the public right-of-way upon approval of the City Engineer.  The Ownership and Maintenance agreement shall specify that the rainwater and stormwater facilities shall be privately maintained by the Applicant; maintenance shall transfer to the respective homeowners association when it is formed.
	PFB 26. All water lines that are to be temporary dead-end lines due to the phasing of construction shall have a valved tee with fire-hydrant assembly installed at the end of the line.
	PFB 27. Applicant shall provide a minimum 6-foot Public Utility Easement on lot frontages to all public right-of-ways. An 8-foot PUE shall be provided along Minor and Major Collectors. A 10-ft PUE shall be provided along Minor and Major Arterials.
	PFB 28. Mylar Record Drawings: 
	At the completion of the installation of any required public improvements, and before a 'punch list' inspection is scheduled, the Engineer shall perform a record survey. Said survey shall be the basis for the preparation of 'record drawings' which will serve as the physical record of those changes made to the plans and/or specifications, originally approved by Staff, that occurred during construction. Using the record survey as a guide, the appropriate changes will be made to the construction plans and/or specifications and a complete revised 'set' shall be submitted. The 'set' shall consist of drawings on 3 mil. Mylar, an electronic copy in AutoCAD, current version, and a digitally signed PDF.
	Specific Comments: 
	PFB 29. At the request of Staff, DKS Associates completed a Trip Generation and Access Analysis dated March 20, 2012.  The project is hereby limited to no more than the following impacts.
	PFB 30. The applicant shall pay the City for required ROW and easements ($250 per tax lot) for future MP street and signal improvements, in addition to the legal descriptions and exhibits.  If quitclaim and reconveyed, applicant shall pay an additional $500 per tax lot for recording fees and insurance.
	PFB 31. This development is conditioned on the execution of work agreed to by the applicant in the Development Agreement filed with Washington County on August 17, 2012.  
	PFB 32. The existing 24 inch storm pipe shall be either be removed or abandoned in place and filled with compact density fill (CDF), in accordance with the Public Works Standards.  
	PFB 33. All work performed on property belonging to the Oregon Department of Transportation shall have the appropriate approval from ODOT prior to work taking place.   
	PFB 34. The proposed 24 inch storm line shall be a public utility and constructed in accordance with the Public Works Standards.  

	Exhibit C4 TVF&R.pdf
	Drew S. DeBois




